
 

 

North Devon Council 
Brynsworthy Environment Centre 
Barnstaple 
North Devon   EX31 3NP 
 

K. Miles 

Chief Executive. 
 

 
 

LICENSING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting ofAppointments Agenda the Licensing and Community Safety Committee will 
be held in the Barum Room - Brynsworthy on TUESDAY, 12TH SEPTEMBER, 2023 at 
10.00 am. 
 
(NOTE: A location plan for the Brynsworthy Environment Centre is attached to the 
agenda front pages. For meetings held at Brynsworthy only, you can join the 
meeting virtually via Microsoft Teams. There are also limited spaces to attend the 
meeting in person.  Please check the Council’s website for the latest information 
regarding the arrangements that are in place and the requirement to book a place 
2 working days prior to the meeting. Taking part in meetings (northdevon.gov.uk) 
 
 
 
Members of the Licensing and Community 
Safety Committee 

Councillor York (Chair) 

 
Councillors Biederman, Cann, Denton, Haworth-Booth, Hunt, Jusef, Lethaby, Maskell, 
Milton, Norman, Quinn, Renshaw, Whitehead and Williams 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence   

2.   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 4 July 2023 
(attached)  (Pages 5 - 8) 

3.   Items brought forward which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered by 
the meeting as a matter of urgency   

4.   Declarations of Interests   

5.   To agree the agenda between Part 'A' and Part 'B' (Confidential Restricted 
Information)   

PART 'A' 

6.   Review of Licensing Act 2003 Policy  (Pages 9 - 70) 

 Report by Public Protection Manager (attached). 
 

7.   Appointment of members to the Crime and Disorder Committee   

 It is recommended that a Crime and Disorder Committee be appointed and that all 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 
2 

 

Members of the Licensing and Community Safety Committee be appointed to the 
Crime and Disorder Sub-Committee.  (NOTE: In accordance with the roles and 
responsibilities of the committee, in Part 3 of the constitution, the committee has 
the function to act as Crime and Disorder committee in accordance with and with 
the powers set out in the Police and Justice Act 2006, the Local Government and 
Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and Regulations made under those Acts). 

 

PART 'B' (CONFIDENTIAL RESTRICTED INFORMATION) 

Nil. 
 
 
 

 

If you have any enquiries about this agenda, please contact Corporate and 
Community Services, telephone 01271 388253 

 
 
 

4.09.23 
 



 
 

 
3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

North Devon Council protocol on recording/filming at Council meetings 
 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency in its decision-making. 
Recording is permitted at Council meetings that are open to the public. Members of the 
public that attend meetings must be aware that these meetings are open to the public 
and so therefore both individuals and the Council itself have the right to record the 
meeting. The Council understands that some members of the public attending its 
meetings may not wish to be filmed. The Chair of the meeting will make sure any request 
not to be filmed is respected. 
 
The rules that the Council will apply are:  
 

1. The recording must be overt (clearly visible to anyone at the meeting) and must 
not disrupt proceedings. The Council will put signs up at any meeting where we 
know recording is taking place.  

 
2. The Chair of the meeting has absolute discretion to stop or suspend recording if, 

in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice proceedings at the meeting or 
if the person recording is in breach of these rules.  

 
3. We will ask for recording to stop if the meeting goes into ‘part B’ where the public 

is excluded for confidentiality reasons. In such a case, the person recording 
should leave the room ensuring all recording equipment is switched off. 

 
4. Any member of the public has the right not to be filmed. We ensure that agendas 

for, and signage at, Council meetings make it clear that recording can take place – 
anyone not wishing to be filmed must advise the Chair at the earliest opportunity 
to allow them to be directed to an area in the room where they will not be caught 
on camera. Subject to paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 above, audio recordings shall be 
permitted at all times during public meetings.  

 
5. The recording should not be edited in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or 

misrepresentation of the proceedings or in a way that ridicules or shows a lack of 
respect for those in the recording. The Council would expect any recording in 
breach of these rules to be removed from public view.  

 
Notes for guidance: 
 
Please contact either our Corporate and Community Services team or our 
Communications team in advance of the meeting you wish to record at so we can make 
all the necessary arrangements for you on the day.  
 
For more information contact the Corporate and Community Services team on 01271 
388253 or email memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk or the Communications Team 
on 01271 388278, email communications@northdevon.gov.uk. 

mailto:memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk
mailto:communications@northdevon.gov.uk


 
 

 
4 

 

 
 
North Devon Council offices at Brynsworthy, the full address is:  
Brynsworthy Environment Centre (BEC), Roundswell,  
Barnstaple, Devon, EX31 3NP. 
 
Sat Nav postcode is EX31 3NS. 
 
At the Roundswell roundabout take the exit onto the B3232, after about ½ mile take the 
first right, BEC is about ½ a mile on the right. 
 
Drive into the site, visitors parking is in front of the main building on the left hand side.  
 
On arrival at the main entrance, please dial 8253 for Corporate and Community Services. 
 
All public meetings held at Brynsworthy Environment Centre are held on the ground floor 
and are accessible through the main entrance to the building or via a ramp located 
adjacent to the main entrance 
 

 
 



 

Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 4 July 2023 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Licensing and Community Safety Committee held in the 
Barum Room - Brynsworthy on Tuesday, 4th July, 2023 at 10.00 am 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor York (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Haworth-Booth, Hunt, Maskell, Norman, Quinn, 

Whitehead and Williams 
 

 Officers: 
 

 Solicitor and Public Protection Manager, Solicitor and Licensing Case 
Officer 
 

 
   
 

8.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Biederman, Denton, Jusef, 
Lethaby, Milton and Renshaw. 

9.   TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 13 JUNE 2023 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2023 (circulated 
previously) be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

10.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 
 

There were no declarations of interest announced. 

11.   LICENSING ACT 2003 POLICY REVIEW 
 

The Committee considered a report on the Licensing Act 2003 Policy Review 
(circulated previously) by the Public Protection Manager. 
 
The Public Protection Manager introduced a new team member, Mr C Northcott, and 
invited him to give a summary of his background to the Committee.  Until recently, he 
had worked as a Police Officer.  The last four years working in Community Safety, 
liaising across North Devon and Torridge areas, he was very partnership focussed.  
He was recently recruited by North Devon Council as a Licensing Case Officer. 
 
The Public Protection Manager highlighted the following: 

 The Council was legally obligated to have a policy in place which was 
reviewed every 5 years. 

 Appendix A of the report showed a tracked changes document which 
highlighted the changes. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 4 July 2023 

 
 

 
2 

 

 The Licensing Act 2003 prescribed a list of persons to be sent the 
consultation. 

 There was an additional initiative to be added under paragraph 18.0.  The 
Licensing Authority was supportive of Designated Driver Schemes, whereby 
licensed premises supply a designated driver soft drinks. 

 Paragraph 4.4.1 of Appendix A, the preference for events to apply for a 
premises licence instead of multiple Temporary Event Notices (TENs) had 
been added. 

 At paragraph 4.5.5 clarifications had been added in terms of events where live 
music was being played or premises playing recorded music. 

 At paragraph 4.5.6 a link to the Home Office right-to-work page on the 
GOV.UK website had been added. 

 At paragraph 5.1.6 learned experience had been incorporated into the Policy 
in terms of the issues experienced by the Licensing Authority whereby a 
premises was being run ‘behind the scenes’ by a person unable to hold a 
licence.  The Licensing Authority was proposing to fully support and consider 
Police information for  example in exceptional circumstances pertaining to a 
change of Designated Premises Supervisor. 

 At paragraph 5.4 the addition of suggested conditions pertaining to alcohol 
deliveries. 

 At paragraph 9.4 the addition of the Licensing Authority’s stance on the sale 
of age restricted products to children will be robust with the revocation/refusal 
of a premises licence whereby relevant evidence was presented.      

 At paragraph 11.0 the misuse of psychoactive substances had been added to 
the Policy. 

 Paragraph 15.0 added mitigations to noise disturbance from beer gardens. 

 Paragraph 16.0 amendments to Temporary Activities had been added in 
relation to the introduction of pavement licences during the pandemic. 

 Paragraph 17.0 had been updated to reflect that a ‘Pub Watch’ scheme was 
in operation in Barnstaple. 

 Paragraph 18.0 had been updated to include initiatives, tackling violence and 
harm to women in pubs and during the night time economy, supported by the 
Licensing Authority. 

 Paragraph 23.0 expansion of the Local Authority’s recognition of its 
responsibilities under the Equalities Act 2010. 

 Paragraph 24.0 added the aspiration that all licensed premises would keep 
their contact details up-to-date. 

 
The Public Protection Manager advised the Committee that Martyn’s Law (the 
Protection of Terrorism Bill) was awaiting Royal Assent so had not at this time been 
included in the Policy but an amendment would be made as soon as the Bill had 
received Royal Assent.  Information regarding the obligations on licensed premises 
would be made fully available on the Council’s website in the intervening period. 
 
In response to questions, the Public Protection Manager replied with the following: 

 The Ask Angela initiative was not used in every pub in North Devon but the 
Police had visited most establishments giving out literature and materials for 
publicising in the premises. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



 
Licensing and Community Safety Committee - 4 July 2023 

 
 

 
3 

 

 It was proposed that a link to a list of premises that had signed up to Ask for 
Angela would be added to the Policy. 

 As part of the funding received from the Safer Streets scheme an 
accreditation scheme would be developed for premises to be rated a bronze, 
silver or gold standard and part of this accreditation scheme would include 
whether a premises had signed up for an initiative to tackle violence against 
women and girls.  An accredited premises would ensure its staff were trained 
on dealing with a request for “Angela” from a customer. 

 
The Licensing Case Officer added that the Pubs were aware of the Ask for 
Angela Initiative but that the wider public needed to be made aware of the 
initiative.  He was not aware of the Ask for Clive initiative, which was set up by a 
Charity to help men who felt unsafe during a night out. 
 
The Chair updated the Committee that she had been made aware recently that 
some of the Safer Streets funding was to be used to set up a Safe Space 
Scheme in Barnstaple whereby someone who was needing assistance and/or to 
seek safe harbour could go to get help at a location set up for this purpose.  More 
information on this could be found on the following website: Safe Space Scheme 
 
The Vice-Chair advised members to visit pubs in their own wards to speak with 
the Landlord’s promoting the initiative of Ask for Angela. 

 
 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That the revised Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy as detailed 
at Appendix A of the report be noted and  

(b) That the Public Protection Manager conduct a public consultation on the 
revised Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy as detailed at 
Appendix A of the report. 

 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 10.52 am 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2

https://www.safespacescheme.org/#:~:text=The%20Safe%20Space%20Scheme%20is,until%20the%20threat%20has%20passed.


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

North Devon Council 

Report Date: 12 September 2023 

Topic: Review of Licensing Act 2003 Policy  

Report by: Katy Nicholls, Public Protection Manager 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. North Devon Council is under a legal obligation to review its Licensing Act 
2003 Statement of Licensing Policy on a five yearly basis. 

 

1.2. This report seeks to report on the results of a consultation on a proposed  
draft revision to the Council’s Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing 
Policy. Moreover, it recommends that consideration is made to the 
consultation responses received, and whether any further amendments be 
proposed to the policy prior to the document being recommended for onward 
approval. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Licensing and Community Safety Committee: 

2.1 Consider the responses received to the consultation on the draft revised 
Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy found within Appendix 
B. 
 

2.2 Consider the new amendments made by the Home Office to the Section 
182 guidance issued pursuant to the Licensing Act 2003 in August 2023. 
 

2.3 Consider whether to make any further draft policy amends as a result of 
the responses to the Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy 
and the amended Section 182 guidance. 

 

2.4 A tracked change document highlighting proposed amendments made to 
the current policy is found at Appendix A. 

 

2.5 Make recommendation to Strategy and Resources Committee for the 
approval of a revised Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy, to 
be in turn approved by Full Council on 22.11.23. 

 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1. In order to discharge its statutory duties under the Licensing Act 2003, North 
Devon Council is required to produce a Licensing Act 2003 Statement of 
Licensing Policy and review it at least every five years. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1178789/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_removal_of_minor_variation_relating_to_off_sales.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1178789/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_removal_of_minor_variation_relating_to_off_sales.pdf


 

 

3.2. The Section 182 Home Office Guidance is provided to licensing authorities in 
relation to the carrying out of their functions under the 2003 Act. It also 
provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing appeals against licensing 
decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit of those who 
run licensed premises, their legal advisers and the general public. It is a key 
medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent application of 
licensing powers across England and Wales and for promoting fairness, 
equal treatment and proportionality. As such, any revisions to this document 
should be considered in the review of the Councils Licensing Act 2003 Policy. 

     

3.3. The current Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy was adopted 
by the Council on the 21.11.18 and became effective on 07.01.19. In order to 
keep within the statutory time-scale and adhere to the Council’s Constitution, 
and committee time-tables, Licensing and Community Safety Committee will 
today consider the responses made to the consultation and make 
recommendation on a proposed draft to Strategy and Resources. Strategy 
and Resources will then consider the document during their meeting of the 
06.11.23; so that any recommended final draft can be approved by Full 
Council on the 22.11.23; and be published and become effective prior to the 
07.01.24. 

 

4. REPORT 

 

4.1. The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”) received royal assent in July 2003. The 

Act created a single integrated scheme for licensed premises which are used 

for the supply of alcohol, provision of regulated entertainment and late night 

refreshment. 

 

4.2. North Devon Council has responsibilities under the Act to issue premises 

licences and temporary event notices in respect of premises where it is 

proposed that licensable activities and qualifying club activities should take 

place. Additionally the Council is responsible for issuing personal licences. 

 

4.3. Section 5 of the Act (as amended) requires all licensing authorities to prepare 

and publish a Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy that they 

intend to apply in exercising their functions under the Act. This Licensing Act 

2003 Statement of Licensing Policy will last for a maximum of five years, but 

it can be reviewed and revised by the authority at any time during that five 

year period. 

 

4.4. The revised draft Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy 

(Appendix A) has been written pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing 

Act 2003, and the Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act. 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



 

 

4.5. A consultation on the Council’s draft revised Statement of Licensing Policy 

ran for a six week period, closing on the 22 August 2023.   

 

4.6 The main proposed amendments to the Licensing Act 2003 Statement of  

 Licensing Policy which were consulted upon follow (original paragraphs 

where the proposed changes are made are included): 

 

1.1 Reflect latest revision to Section 182 Guidance being made in 

December 2022. 

1.4  Update Licensing Authority Area section with latest statistics 

pertaining to population, numbers of licensed premises etc. 

4.1  Addition of available closure powers afforded by way of Section 

76 of the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014. 

4.1.3  Reflect new Corporate Enforcement Policy approved by the 

Council. 

4.1.5  Reflect latest title of Licensing and Community Safety 

Committee. 

4.4.1  Cite that preference is for a Premises Licence rather than 
multiple TENs for larger events, and direct users to the Safety 
Advisory Group pages on the Council’s website.  

4.5.2  Reflect new Public Space Protection Orders which have 
replaced Designated Public Place Orders, for a more limited 
number of localities. 

4.5.5  Provide clear advice about the de-regulation of live and 
recorded music and entertainment facilities. 

4.5.6  Update section in respect of duties on local authorities and 
applicants pertaining to the Immigration Act. Provide link to the 
Home Office’s Employer right to work checks and supporting 
guidance. 

5.1.6  Reflect learned experience of issues with licensed premises 
enforcement, and concerns with licensed premises being run 
behind the scenes by persons who may not otherwise be able 
to possess a licence themselves. 

5.2  Reflect a new form for representations for those that wish to 
utilise it available on the Council’s website. 

5.4 Update section on Mobile, Remote, Internet and Other Delivery 
Sales to provide example conditions. 

9.4  Set out the stance taken by Licensing Authority in respect of 
the protection of children. For example where its discretion is 
engaged this Licensing Authority will consider refusal/revocation 
in the first instance where test purchases have found venues 
selling age restricted products to children. 

11.0 Addition of new information regarding psychoactive substances 
and the stance taken by the Licensing Authority whereby 
persons are seen using or selling these. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 

 

15.0 Set out examples of mitigating measures to reduce any 
disturbance to neighbouring residents by way of utilisation of 
beer gardens and outdoor spaces. 

16.0 Amend Temporary Activities section to reflect updates to limits 
brought in via The Alcohol Licensing (Coronavirus) (Regulatory 
Easements) (Amendment) Regulations 2021. Provide clarity 
surrounding notice periods, and make a suggestion for inclusion 
of risk assessments and event management plans where 
appropriate.  

17.0 Reflect newly formed Barnstaple Pubwatch scheme. 
18.0 Insert new sections to cover initiatives supported by the Council 

including Project Nighteye, Ask For Angela, and Anti-Drink 
Spiking Initiatives. 

23.0  Enhance information available to licence holders in respect of 
their duties to equality. 

24.0  Suggestions made with regard contact details, and relevant 
updates to these. 

 
4.7. Since undertaking consultation on the proposed draft, it should be noted 

that the Section 182 guidance has been updated with an August 2023 
edition (paragraph 1.1 amended accordingly with this new date). The 
Home Office has amended the guidance in line with recommendations 
made in relation to the Manchester Arena Inquiry, largely to support 
licensing authorities and applicants when considering the provision of 
health care and counter terrorism measures at venues. As a result of the 
revision a new section 4.5 has been inserted into the draft Licensing Act 
Policy which reads: 
 

Counter Terrorism and Public Safety 
North Devon Council will give due consideration to appropriate 
counterterrorism measures and advice when considering licence 
applications, for example at high profile or large premises or events, 
or where there are factors which may increase attractiveness to 
attacks, and in particular when in receipt of relevant advice from 
police counter terrorist staff. 
 
It will be particularly relevant to consider conditions around health 
care provision in this regard. Any additional licensing conditions 
must be appropriate and proportionate to the venue. The Licensing 
Authority will pay particular attention to terrorist threats when 
making specific licence conditions in relation to security or health 
care provision at appropriate premises and events applying for a 
licence. 
 
When appropriate to do so, the Licensing Authority may 
recommend conditions such as ensuring appropriate access for 
emergency services and vehicles; good communication with local 
authorities and emergency services, for example communications 
networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts; and 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



 

 

ensuring the presence of sufficiently trained first aiders on the 
premises and appropriate first aid kits. 
 
In some instances, the authority may wish to tailor its approach, 
depending on the particular nature of the application, and go further 
when addressing concerns around possible terrorist or other such 
risks. In making their consideration the Licensing Authority will be 
mindful of the Annex in the Section 182 guidance. This Annex will 
help to inform and support its decision making with regards to 
additional licence conditions for premises and events, that may 
benefit from further security planning and health care provision in 
the aftermath of a particular type of incident. 

 
 
4.8. There were 22 responses received in respect of the consultation, 17 of 

which were received via the web-form and 5 by way of direct 
communication. Of the 17 using the web-form 5 were made by individuals 
representing an organisation, including shops and hotels. One was 
received from Croyde Area Residents Association. Of those 5 by way of 
direct communication, one was received from Georgeham Parish Council 
and another from Witheridge Parish Council. Additionally one further 
response was submitted by the manager of North Devon Coast Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty, whilst this was received after the consultation 
period had closed, it was received in time for the publication of this report, 
so has been included for consideration. Responses are outlined at 
Appendix B. 
 

4.9. Responses received have been examined and comments have been 
made in italic where there queries have been raised, or where a response 
is considered relevant.  

 

4.10. It should be noted that some of those matters raised by the respondents, 
whilst relevant, may not be able to actioned in the manner desired, for 
various reasons including the fact that the legislation may not support the 
desired outcome.  

 

4.11. Further to the comments received, amendments have been made to the 
draft policy. Amendments include the addition of a new comments box in 
the Licensing Act 2003 representation form and the addition of the 
following paragraphs: 

 

3.4.1 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of 
legislation. It is however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and 
retains its broad common law meaning. It may include in appropriate 
circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and 
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the 
licensed premises.  Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

 

adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its 
effect is prejudicial to health.  
 

3.4.4 Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. 
Bright lighting outside premises which is considered appropriate to 
prevent crime and disorder may itself give rise to light pollution for 
some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities and responsible 
authorities will need to balance these issues.  

 

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.7. There are no expected financial costs likely to be incurred through the 

review of this policy.  

6. EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 

6.7. An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken. The impact of the 

proposals are neutral. The improved section in the policy pertaining to 

equality will have a positive impact.  

7. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

7.1.    An environmental assessment has been undertaken and revealed a 

neutral impact. 

8. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

8.1. Article of Part 3 Annexe 1 paragraph:4b 

8.2. Referred or delegated power?: delegated 

9. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

9.1 .This report contains no confidential information or exempt information under 

the provisions of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

10.BACKGROUND PAPERS 

10.1.The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 
(The background papers are available for inspection and kept by the author of the 
report).  

 

 Home Office Guidance issued under s.182 of the Licensing Act 2003,  
  August 2023. 
 

 LGA Guidance Note on Drink Spiking Prevention 7 September 2022.  

11. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 

11.1 The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all 

appropriate Councillors and Officers. 

Author: Katy Nicholls, Public Protection Manager 

Date:    03.09.23 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

1 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
Statement of Licensing Policy 

Tracked changes detail proposed policy 

amendments for consultation 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Environmental Health and 

Housing Services 
 
 

Formatted: Left

Page 17

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

2 

 

 
 
  

Page 18

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

3 

 

Table of Contents 
 
 
 

 
Topic 

 

 
Page 

  1. Introduction 4 

  2. Consultation 6 

  3. The Licensing Objectives 6 

  4. The Licensing Function 
 
Counter Terrorism and Public Safety  

7 

  5.  The Licensing Process 14 

  6.  Licensing Hours 16 

  7.  Licence Conditions 17 

  8.  Cumulative Impact 19 

  9.  Enforcement 20 

10.  Children in Licensed Premises 22 

11.  Drugs/Illegal Substances 23 

12.  Door Supervisors 23 

13.  Vessels 24 

14.  Licensing of Public Land 24 

15.  Beer Gardens or Other Outdoor Spaces 24 

16.  Temporary Activities 24 

17.  Late Night Levy 26 

18.  Early Morning Restriction Orders 26 

19. Personal Licence 27 

20.  Fees 27 

21.  Equality Issues 27 

22.  Further Information 28 

21.  Appendices  

  

     A   Glossary 29 

 
  

Page 19

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Version  32.0 Date reviewed  June 202318 

Author  
K NichollsH Bee 

Next Review Date  June 20283 

Approved by Strategy and 
Resources Committee 
Licensing 
Committee 

Proposed 
06.11.239.10.18 

Approved by Council  Proposed: 221.11.2318 

 
              Licensing Statement of Policy 202419  
              Licensing Act 2003 
 
              Published by 
 
              The Licensing Team 
              Environmental Health & Housing Services 
              North Devon Council 
              Lynton House 
              Commercial Road 
              Barnstaple 
              Devon 
              EX31 1DG 
              Published and Effective TBC: 7 January 2024  
 
              Telephone 01271 388870 
              licensing@northdevon.gov.uk 
 
              www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing 

Formatted: Font color: Red

Page 20

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

5 

 

 
1 INTRODUCTION 

 
NB.  This Policy is intended to provide general guidance only.  It does not constitute a definitive statement of law.  
Applicants who require legal advice on a specific licensing topic are advised to consult a licensing solicitor. Text in the 
shaded boxes is advisory or explanatory and intended only to give general assistance.  

 
1.1 Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires each Licensing Authority “to determine a policy with 

respect to the exercise of its licensing functions”.  
 

This Statement of Licensing Policy (“the Policy”) draws its authority from the Licensing Act 2003 
("the Act") and has been prepared in accordance with revised Guidance issued by the Home Office 
under section 182 of the Act in 6 April 2018.August 2023. 
 
The Policy has four main purposes: 
 

 to assist the Licensing Authority in determining licence applications in a consistent and 
equitable manner, 

 to inform and advise applicants,  

 to inform and advise residents and businesses, and 

 to inform a court at appeal. 
 

1.2 The Policy relates to the licensable activities identified by the Act, namely: - 
 

 Retail sale of alcohol 

 Supply of alcohol to club members 

 Provision of 'regulated entertainment' - to the public, to club members or with a view to profit.  
Regulated entertainment is defined by the Act as: 
 

 A performance of play 

 An exhibition of a film 

 An indoor sporting event 

 Boxing or wrestling entertainment 

 A performance of live music 

 Any playing of recorded music 

 A performance of dance 

 Entertainment of a similar description to live music, recorded music or dance. 

 The supply of hot food and/or hot drink from any premises including mobile food stalls 
between 11pm and 5 am. 

 
1.3 This Policy sets out those matters that North Devon District Council Licensing Authority (“the 

Authority”) will normally take into account when determining licence applications.  Additionally, the 
document seeks to provide clarity for applicants, residents and members of the business 
community, thus enabling them to make plans to move to, remain in or invest in the District with 
some measure of certainty.  

  
Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by s.122 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility 
Act 2001) requires a Licensing Authority to prepare and publish a statement of its licensing policy every five 
years.  Such a policy must be published before the Authority carries out any function in respect of individual 
applications made under the terms of the 2003 Act.  
 
The Licensing Authority will keep this policy statement under continual review and make such changes as it 
feels are necessary in accordance with any changes in the legislation and with local circumstances.  Where 
revisions are made, the Authority will publish a statement of those revisions. 

 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

6 

 

1.4 The Licensing Authority Area 
 

In being largely rural in character, and an area of outstanding natural beauty, North Devon, in 
common with other parts of Devon, has much to offer its residents and visitors. The holiday and 
entertainment industries, therefore, are major contributors to the economy of the district. 
 

North Devon is 108,590 hectares (419 square miles) in size, and has an estimated resident 
population of 99,4005,400(1), of which 52,8% live in rural areas (1).comprised of in the region of 
48,4195,766(2) households. Of those residents 486,5800(1) are male and 5048,9600(1) are female. 
The median age of the resident population is 48 years of age. With individuals aged 16 to 64 
estimated to number 55,200(1). The total population from minority ethnic groups in 2011 was 2.1%.In 
2021, 91.8% of North Devon residents reported their country of birth as England(1). 

 
 
Almost half of the population lives in, or close to, Barnstaple, whilst there are smaller 
concentrations of population at Braunton, Ilfracombe and South Molton. Holiday locations such as 
Croyde and Woolacombe have national and international renown. 
 
Despite the popularity and benefits of the area, however, the median gross weeklyannual pay for 
employees in full time employment or part time employment (not including self-employed) in North 
Devon for 202216 was £554, which is lower than the £642.20 national average (3).is £17,565(3) 

some £5,519(3) below the median for all employees in the UK. The rate of unemployment is 
2.53%(4) , which is 1.12%(4) lower than the national average. 
 
At the time of preparing this Policy, the Authority has responsibility for regulating: 

 

 64524 alcohol-licensed premises/clubs 

 676 non-alcohol-licensed premises 

 36549 standard temporary events (202217 figure). 

 12233 late temporary events ( 202217 figure) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Data Sources 
1. 202117 Population estimates published by Office for National Statistics 
2. NDC derived figure for numbers of properties banded for Council Tax Figure 149.69.202318 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2 cm, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, No underline

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, No underline, Font color: Auto,
Subscript

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm

Page 22

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

7 

 

3. ONS annual survey of hours and earnings 2022 2017 Office for National Statistics population estimate 
4. Office of National Statistics Jan – Dec 2022April 2017 to March 2018 Office for National Statistics annual population survey 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

8 

 

2. CONSULTATION 

 
2.1 In preparing this Policy the Licensing Authority has consulted the following: - 

 

 The Chief Officer of Police 

 Devon & Somerset Fire and Rescue Service 

 Public Health Devon 

 Devon Safeguarding Children’s Board 

 Devon County Council Trading Standards 

 Representatives of holders of premises licences issued by this authority 

 Representatives of holders of Club premises certificates issued by this authority 

 Representatives of holders of Personal Licences issued by this authority 

 Local businesses and their representatives 

 Local residents and their representatives 
 

2.2 Consultation took place for a period of 69 weeks, between 11 July 2023 – 22 August 20236 July 
2018 to 17 September 201822 A a period considered taking into consideration the Consultation 
Principles (November 2013) outlined by the Cabinet Office. 

 
2.3 The approved policy will be published on our website. (www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing). Copies 

will also be available for viewing at the Licensing Team’s Offices at North Devon Council, Lynton 
House, Commercial Road, Devon, EX31 1DG. 

 
2.4 Should you have comments regarding the Policy please write to the above address or email 

licensing@northdevon.gov.uk . 
 

2.5 Proper weight will be given to the views of organisations and individuals prior to implementing this 
Policy. 

 
2.6 This Policy was approved at a meeting of the Full Council on the 21 November 2018TBC: 22 

November 2023 and published on our website as effective as of TBC: 7 January 2024. 
 
2. 7 This Policy will remain in force for a maximum period of five years and will then be subject to review 

and further consultation.  The Authority may revise the Policy at any time during the five year period 
if it considers it appropriate to do so. The Authority will consult on any substantial revisions to the 
Policy. 

 
Section 5(3) of the Act places a legal obligation on licensing authorities to consult the above individuals, 
groups and organisations when determining and publishing its Statement of Licensing Policy.  However, the 
Authority may consult beyond the statutory requirements if it believes this is necessary and  appropriate 

 

3. THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES 
 

3.1 The Authority has a duty under s.4 of the Act to carry out its licensing functions with the aim of 
promoting the four licensing objectives.  The objectives are: 

 

 the prevention of crime and disorder 

 public safety 

 the prevention of public nuisance  

 the protection of children from harm 
 

Each licensing objective is of equal importance.  When discharging its licensing function, the 
Authority will attach the utmost importance to the promotion of the objectives. 

 
3.2 Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a

http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing
mailto:licensing@northdevon.gov.uk


 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

9 

 

3.2.1 The Authority will endeavour to reduce crime and disorder throughout the district in accordance 
with its statutory duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.  Where relevant 
representations are made, the Licensing Authority may look more favourably upon applications 
where the applicant has addressed the issue of preventing crime and disorder in a positive way.   

 
3.2.2  The Authority will require applicants to take appropriate and proportionate measures to promote 

the crime and disorder objective. Such measures may include those listed in the Authority’s 
guidance for applicants which can be viewed at www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing.                    

 
3.3 Public Safety   
 
3.3.1 All premises will be risk-rated by the Licensing Authority, and are to be subject to both announced 

and unannounced inspections (including multi-agency inspections). 
 

3.3.2 The Authority will require applicants to take appropriate and proportionate measures to promote 
the public safety objective. Such measures may include those listed in the Authority’s guidance for 
applicants which can be viewed at www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing.                    

 
3.4 Prevention of Public Nuisance  
 

3.4.1 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however not 
narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may include 
in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and 
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises.  Public 
nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and 
insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.  
 

3.4.2 Public nuisance can include low level nuisance affecting a few people living locally, as well 
as a major disturbance affecting the wider community.  Nuisance is generally attributable to 
noise (from loud music or from rowdy customers), vibration, light pollution, noxious smells 
and litter.  Applicants will be required to demonstrate that they have adequate measures in 
place in their applications to prevent nuisance and disturbance. 

 
3.4.3Noise from people entering and leaving licensed premises, particularly late at night or in the 
early hours of the morning, can be a significant problem. Customers under the influence of alcohol 
are often less inhibited about their behaviour and may be unaware of the noise they are creating.  
As background noise levels are lower at night, any noise is more intrusive for residents trying to 
sleep.  

 
3.4.2 3.4.4Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting 
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may itself give rise 
to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities and responsible authorities 
will need to balance these issues.  

 
3.4.3 The Licensing Authority will require applicants to take appropriate and proportionate measures for 

the prevention of public nuisance. Such measures may include those listed in the Authority’s 
guidance for applicants which can be viewed at www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing.                    

 
3.5 Protection of Children from Harm  

 
3.5.1 The Authority recognises the great variety of premises for which licences may be sought.  These 

include theatres, members’ clubs, sports clubs, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, cafes, 
takeaways, community halls, schools and off-licences.  The Authority will not restrict access by 
children to any particular type of premises unless it is considered necessary to do so in order to 
protect them from harm. 

 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Outline numbered + Level: 3 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  2 cm + Indent at:  3.27 cm

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left:  3.27 cm, First line: 
0 cm

Formatted: List Paragraph, Outline numbered + Level: 3 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  2 cm + Indent at:  3.27 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.27 cm,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  1 cm,  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2 cm,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Page 25

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

10 

 

3.5.2 The Authority will require applicants to take appropriate and proportionate measures for the 
protection of children. Such measures may include those listed in the Authority’s guidance for 
applicants which can be viewed at www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing.                  

 
4.0 THE LICENSING FUNCTION 

 
4.1 Regulation 

 
4.1.1 Licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed premises, in qualifying clubs and at 

temporary events under the provisions of the Act.  Licensing also involves making judgements 
about risk, in particular the risk of any adverse effect on the licensing objectives of granting licences 
and club premises certificates. 

 
4.1.2 The licensing function is only one means of delivering the licensing objectives and should not be 

seen as a panacea for solving all alcohol- and entertainment-related problems within the 
community.  The Authority recognises that as well as the licensing function there are a number of 
other mechanisms for addressing alcohol-related nuisance, crime and disorder such as: 

 

 planning controls 

 Community Alcohol Partnerships 

 installation and/or expansion of CCTV systems in problem areas 

 powers to designate parts of the District as places where alcohol may not be consumed 
publicly (Public Space Protection Designated Public Places Order) 
S.27 and s.30 Dispersal Orders (Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003)  

 Section 35 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 

 police powers to close some premises for up to 24 hours in extreme cases of disorder or 
excessive noise (Licensing Act, ss.160 & 161) 

 the power of Responsible Authorities and other persons to apply for a review of the licence 
(see 9.2) 

 Section 76 Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 provides for service of a 
Closure Notice for a period of 24 Hours where the use of particular premises has resulted, 
or is likely soon to result, in nuisance to members of the public or that there has been, or is 
likely soon to be, disorder near those premises associated with the use of those premises 
and that the Notice is necessary to prevent the nuisance or disorder from continuing, 
recurring or occurring. Section 77 of the said Act allows an extension for a further 24 hours. 
Section 80, facilitates an application to the Magistrates Court to close the premises. If a 
Closure Order is made the closure period is for up to 3 months.  

 
The Authority will therefore continue to work in partnership with other Licensing Authorities, the 
Responsible Authorities, other agencies such as North Devon and Torridge Community Safety 
Partnership and with local businesses and residents in a co-ordinated approach to tackling alcohol-
related crime and anti-social behaviour.  

 
4.1.3 In discharging its licensing function, the Licensing Authority will comply with relevant legislation 

and have regard to: 
 

(i) Strategies 
  

 current  North Devon and Torridge community Safety Partnership Strategy  

 current Government alcohol strategy  

 NDC Corporate Plan  2015 -2018 New policy TBC  
 
 (ii) Policies/Codes of Practice 
 

 Regulators’ Compliance Code (BIS) ( April 2014) 

 North Devon Council’s Corporate Enforcement Policy, July 2022 

 NDC Community Engagement Framework 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.73 cm, First line:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Body Text Indent, Indent: Left:  2 cm, Hanging: 
1 cm, Tab stops:  3 cm, Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm

Page 26

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

11 

 

 DCC Local Transport Plan 

 Age Restricted Products and Services: A Code of Practice for Regulatory Delivery  

 
(iii) Guidance 
 

 Guidance issued under s.182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Home Office) 

 The Purple Guide to Health, Safety and Welfare at Music and Other Events  

 The Event Safety Guide (HSE)  

 Guide to Fire Precautions in Entertainments and Like Premises 

 Good Practice Guide on the Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs (Institute of Acoustics) 

 Good Practice in Managing the Evening and Late Night Economy (ODPM) 

 Technical Standards for Places of Public Entertainment (ABTT/IOL) 

 Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts (Noise Council) 

 Home Office Guide to Safer Clubbing 

 ‘No Proof of Age – No Sale’ (Trading Standards handbook) 

 The Portman Group Code of Practice on the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic 
Drinks 

 
4.1.4 The central purpose of the licensing function is to promote the licensing objectives through the 

effective regulation of licensed premises, qualifying clubs and temporary events.  The Authority is 
keen to foster a safe and vibrant leisure economy and will work with applicants and licence holders 
to encourage and sustain well managed premises which make a positive contribution to the 
community.   The Authority will expect applicants and licence holders to demonstrate that they have 
given thought to and have in place adequate measures to ensure that the operation of their 
premises will not have an adverse effect on the quality of life of persons living and/or working in the 
vicinity of the premises. 

 
4.1.5 The powers of the Licensing Authority under the Act may be carried out by the Licensing and 

Community Safety Committee, by a sub-Committee of the Licensing and Community Safety 
Committee or by one or more officers acting under delegated authority.  Many licensing procedures 
are largely administrative with no perceived areas of contention. In the interests of efficiency, these 
procedures will generally be carried out by licensing officers. 

 
4.1.6 The Authority will ensure that all Officers and Members have received adequate and appropriate 

training for their roles under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
4.1.7 The Authority will delegate its functions in the following ways: 

 
Matter to be dealt with 

 
Full Committee Sub-Committee Officers 

Application for personal 
licence 

 If a police objection  made If no police objection 
made 

Application for personal 
licence with relevant unspent 
convictions or relevant 
convictions arising during 
tenure of a licence 

  Decision to revoke or 
suspend if referred 

All cases unless referred 
for revocation or 
suspension 

Application for premises 
licence/club premises 
certificate 

 If a relevant representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation made 

Application for provisional 
statement 

 If a relevant representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation made 

Application to vary premises 
licence/club premises 
certificate 

 If a relevant representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation made 

Application for minor variation 
of premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

  All cases 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

12 

 

Matter to be dealt with 
 

Full Committee Sub-Committee Officers 

Application to vary designated 
premises supervisor 

 If a police objection made All other cases 

Request to be removed as 
designated premises 
supervisor 

  All cases 

Application for transfer of 
premises licence 

 If a police objection made All other cases 

Applications for interim 
authorities 

 If a police objection made All other cases 

Application to review premises 
licence/club premises 
certificate 

 All cases  

Decision on whether a 
complaint is irrelevant frivolous 
vexatious etc. 

  All cases 

Decision to object when local 
authority is a consultee and 
not the relevant authority 
considering the application 

 All cases  

Determination of an objection 
to a temporary event notice 

 All cases  

Determination of application to 
vary premises licence for 
community premises to include 
alternative licence condition 

 If a police objection made All other cases 

Decision whether to consult 
other responsible authorities 
on minor variation application 

  All cases 

Suspension of premises 
licence/club premises 
certificate for non-payment of 
annual fee 

  All cases 

Review of Statement of 
Licensing Policy 

All cases (Full 
Council) 

  

Implementation of a Late Night 
Levy 

All cases (Full 
Council) 

  

Creation of an Early Morning 
Restriction Order 

All cases (Full 
Council) 

  

 
4.2 The Licensing Authority as Responsible Authority 
 
4.2.1 Section 103 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 amended the Licensing Act 

by making the Licensing Authority a ‘responsible authority’.  This enables the Authority to make 
representations about an application for a premises licence or club premises certificate or to apply 
for a review of a premises licence or a club premises certificate. 

 
4.2.2 In cases where the Authority is acting in its capacity as a responsible authority, it has established 

a clear separation of responsibilities within the Authority’s Licensing Team in order to ensure 
procedural fairness and to avoid potential conflict of interest.  

 
4.3 Integrating Strategies and Avoiding Duplication 
 
4.3.1 The Authority recognises that unnecessary and over-burdensome regulation can prevent 

businesses from thriving and growing.  The Authority will therefore endeavour to regulate licensed 
premises in a proportionate manner in accordance with the Regulators’ Compliance Code.  
Premises will be assessed on the basis of risk to the promotion of the licensing objectives.  
Premises with a high risk-rating will be inspected more frequently than premises with a low risk-
rating. 

 
4.3.2 The Authority will endeavour to ensure that this Statement of Licensing Policy is aligned with and 

supports local crime prevention, transport, tourism and cultural strategies (see 4.1.3).  To this end, 

Page 28

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

13 

 

the Authority will work closely with other agencies and will contribute, where appropriate, to the 
development of policies and initiatives to tackle alcohol-related crime and disorder.  This may 
include promoting and participating in schemes such as Best Bar None, Purple Flag, and Business 
Improvement Districts etc. 

 
4.3.3 The Authority recognises that it is a fundamental principle of the Act that the licensing function 

should not duplicate other statutory regulation.  In particular, the Licensing Authority recognises 
that licensing applications should not be seen as a repeat of the planning application and building 
control approval processes and that there is no legal basis to refuse a licence application because 
it does not have planning permission. Applicants are recommended, however, to ensure that 
appropriate planning permissions are obtained before an application for a premises licence or club 
premises certificate is made. (See Section 7 – Licence Conditions – for further advice). 

 
Home Office guidance makes it clear that licensing committees are not bound by decisions made by planning, and vice-
versa.  The Guidance also states that, where, as a condition of a planning permission, a terminal hour has been set for 
use of the premises for commercial purposes and this is different to the licensing hours, the applicant must observe the 
earlier closing times. (Home Office Guidance  14.64 and 14.65) 

 
4.4 Large Scale Public Events and the Safety Advisory Group (SAG) Function 

 
4.4.1 The Council recommends that organisers of large scale public events (outdoor music concerts, 

sporting events, festivals, carnivals, firework displays etc.) consult the Council at the earliest 
opportunity to discuss arrangements for the licensing of those activities falling under the Act.  

 

 In respect of some events, the organisers may require a single premises licence to cover a 
wide range of activities at different locations within the premises. This may involve the 
preparation of a substantial operating schedule and event management plan. For other 
events, applications for connected premises licences or TENs may be made which in 
combination will represent a single event. The Authority consider it is essential to have proper 
co-ordination of such arrangements and will expect organisers to work with the Authority in 
ensuring that responsible authorities are aware of the connected nature of the individual 
applications. Despite this being said, it will always be the preference of the Licensing Authority 
that instead of multiple TENs an application for a premises licence is made considering the 
improved clarity of arrangements for all parties by way of conditions imposed. 

 

 Applicants planning a large scale event - whether this involves licensable activities or not - 
are likely to be requested to  submit an application to the Safety Advisory Group (SAG).   SAG  
comprises of personnel from relevant statutory authorities and will provide the applicant with 
advice and guidance to help ensure public health and safety.  A SAG meeting will generally 
be recommended where there is a higher risk to public safety and more than 500 persons are 
expected to attend the event although smaller events with perceived high risks to public safety 
may also be required to attend a SAG meeting.  It will be the responsibility of the event 
organiser to submit an application to  SAG. It will be the responsibility of the Authority to 
arrange and convene SAG meetings. Individuals seeking advice are recommended to contact 
the Authority if in any doubt as to whether a SAG application is required and seek further 
advice from www.northdevon.gov.uk/sag. 

 
 

4.5 Counter Terrorism and Public Safety 

 
North Devon Council will give due consideration to appropriate counterterrorism 
measures and advice when considering licence applications, for example at high 
profile or large premises or events or where there are factors which may increase 
attractiveness to attacks, and in particular when in receipt of relevant advice from 
police counter terrorist staff. 
 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left,  No bullets or numbering,
Tab stops: Not at  3 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.54 cm,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, First line:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Page 29

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a

http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/sag


 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

14 

 

It will be particularly relevant to consider conditions around health care provision in 
this regard. Any additional licensing conditions must be appropriate and 
proportionate to the venue. The Licensing Authority will pay particular attention to 

terrorist threats when making specific licence conditions in relation to security or 
health care provision at appropriate premises and events applying for a licence. 
 
When appropriate to do so, the Licensing Authority may recommend conditions 
such as ensuring appropriate access for emergency services and vehicles; good 
communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example 
communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts; 
and ensuring the presence of sufficiently trained first aiders on the premises and 
appropriate first aid kits. 
 
In some instances, the authority may wish to tailor its approach, depending on the 

particular nature of the application, and go further when addressing concerns 
around possible terrorist or other such risks. In making their consideration the 
Licensing Authority will be mindful of the Annex in the Section 182 guidance. This  
Annex will help to inform and support its decision making with regards to additional 
licence conditions for premises and events, that may benefit from further security 
planning and health care provision in the aftermath of a particular type of incident. 

 
4.65 Related Legislation 
  
4.65.1 There is a significant interplay between the Licensing Act and other legislation.  The Authority 

will endeavour to interpret and apply other statutory requirements in a way which is consistent with 
the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
4.65.2  Anti-Social Behaviour and Policing Act 2014 

 
Under the provisions of the Act, consumption of alcohol is not a licensable activity.  However, the 
Authority recognises that consumption of alcohol can be a major contributory factor to disorder and 
nuisance both within and outside licensed premises.  This Council has adopted the relevant powers 
under the Anti-Social Behaviour and Policing Act 2014 to designate parts of the District as places 
where alcohol may not be consumed publicly.   

 
Five Aareas within Barnstaple, and IlfracombeCroyde, Ilfracombe, South Molton, and Woolacombe 
are currently designated with Public Spaces Protection Orders  Public Space Protection Orders 
(PSPO’s)  Please refer toThis page contains 
  http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/entertainment-and-alcohol-
licences/alcohol-free-zones/ for zone maps and more information on the powers available to 
authorised officersthe police in a controlled zone.  The Authority, in conjunction with the police,  
North Devon and Torridge community Safety Partnership  and other Responsible Authoritiesand 
partners, will keep this under review and may recommend the designation of other areas if there is 
evidence that this is necessary to reduce or prevent alcohol-related crime and disorder. 

 
4.65.3 Gambling Act 2005 
 

The provision of gaming machines and certain forms of low-stakes gambling (e.g. poker, bingo) are 
permitted in alcohol-licensed premises and qualifying clubs under the Gambling Act 2005.  The 
type of gambling allowed and stakes and prizes are specified in regulations and are set at levels 
which are designed to keep this form of gaming a low-risk, sociable activity.  Generally, such gaming 
should be ancillary to the primary use of the premises.  The Authority may take action against a 
premises where it believes that gaming is becoming the dominant activity or is having a detrimental 
effect on the licensing objectives. 

 
4.65.4 Health Act 2006 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Page 30

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/north-devon-legal-services/public-space-protection-orders-pspos/


 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

15 

 

 
 The introduction of the Health Act 2006 which prohibited smoking in enclosed or substantially 

enclosed spaces in England has had a significant impact on alcohol-licensed premises and  
         qualifying clubs. In many premises, customers wishing to smoke must do so in beer gardens, 

outdoor patio areas or in the street. This can result in noise, nuisance and anti-social behaviour for 
nearby residents, businesses and passers-by, especially late at night when background noise levels 
are low.  The Authority will expect applicants and licence holders to have particular regard to the  

         management of customers in the immediate vicinity of their premises to ensure that their behaviour 
does not cause offence or undermine the licensing objectives. 

 
4.65.5  Live Music Act 2012; The Licensing Act 2003 (Descriptions of Entertainment) (Amendment) 

Order 2013: The Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order 2013 and 2014 
  

 Since 2012 The Government has made deregulatory changes that have amended the Act meaning 
that no licence is required for some activities. 

 
 Included in this de-regulation are the following: 
 

 plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided 
that the audience does not exceed 500. 

 dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided 
that the audience does not exceed 500. 

 films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises 
between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and 
the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening from a person who is responsible for the 
premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by age classification ratings. 

 indoor sporting events: no licence is required for an event between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, provided that those present do not exceed 1000. 

 boxing or wrestling entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of 
Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided 
that the audience does not exceed 1000. 

 live music and recorded music: no licence is required at certain times of the day,dependant 
upon the nature of the premises and other licences in place.   

 unamplified live music: no licence is required provided it takes place between 8am and 11pm 
(all venues). This is subject to the right of a licensing authority to impose conditions about live 
music following a review of a premises licence where the premises are authorised to supply 
alcohol for consumption on the premises. 

 amplified live music: no licence is required provided it takes place between 8am and 11pm 
before audiences of no more than 500 persons on premises authorised to supply alcohol for 
consumption on the premises. This is subject to the right of a licensing authority to impose 
conditions about live music following a review of a premises licence. 

 amplified live music: no licence is required provided it takes place between 8am and 11pm 
before audiences of no more than 500 persons in workplaces (but not necessarily for workers) 
not otherwise licensed under the 2003 Act (or licensed only for the provision of late night 
refreshment). 

 provision of entertainment facilities, and it widens the licensing exemption for live music 
integral to a performance of Morris dancing or dancing of a similar type, so that the exemption 
applies to live or recorded music instead of unamplified live music. 

 
 

 
An overview of circumstances in which entertainment facilities are not licensable can be viewed at 
Section 16.5.to 16.9 of the Home Office revised guidance issued under 182 of the Act. (April 2018 
version). 

 
Any conditions relating to live music which are attached to a premises licence or a Club Premises 
Certificate will stay in place but will be suspended between 8.00 am and 11.00 pm.  However, the 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: List Paragraph, Justified, Indent: Left:  2 cm,
Hanging:  1 cm, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  4.44 cm +
Indent at:  5.08 cm, Tab stops:  3 cm, Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Underline, Font color:
Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Underline, Font color:
Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Red

Page 31

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

16 

 

Licensing Authority will be able to re-impose these conditions (or attach new conditions) following 
a review of a licence.   
 
Any current licence condition that relates to an activity for which a licence is no longer required 
will have no effect, except in certain circumstances where non-licensable activities take place at 
the same time as other activities for which a licence is required. Licence holders wishing to 
remove such conditions may apply for a minor licence variation. In the course of considering such 
applications, the Licensing Authority will generally remove such conditions unless there are 
sufficiently serious specific concerns about the hosting of deregulated entertainment activities in 
relation to the remaining licensable activities taking place in the premises in question. 
  

 The Authority recognises the importance of encouraging live music as part of the Authority’s wider 
cultural strategy and will endeavour to promote this activity through its licensing function.  However, 
applicants and licence holders must be aware that, although certain types of live music are no 
longer licensable, this does not mean that such activity is totally exempt from licensing controls.  
The legal duty on licence holders to promote the licensing objectives remains.   A Responsible 

            Authority or any other person may apply for a review of a premises licence where it can be 
demonstrated that live music provided under the provisions of the Live Music Act undermines any 
of the licensing objectives. 

 
 When considering whether an activity constitutes ‘the provision of regulated entertainment’ each 

case will be treated on its own merits. There will inevitably be a degree of judgement as to whether 
a performance constitutes live music or not.  If in doubt, organisers of events should check with the 
Licensing Authority. 

  
The impact of this Policy on regulated entertainment, particularly live music and dancing will be 
monitored.  Where it appears that such events are being deterred or constrained by licensing  
requirements, the Policy will be reviewed. 
 
 
 

 
 

4.65.6 Immigration Act 2016 
 

From 6 April 2017 the provisions of Immigration Act 2016 which relate to Licensing became 
effective. These provisions amend the Act making the Secretary of State a responsible authority 
in respect of premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment. In effect this conveys the 
role of responsible authority to Home Office Immigration Enforcement who exercises the powers 
on the Secretary of State’s behalf. 

 
Applicants for personal or premises licence (for sale of alcohol/provision of late night refreshment) 
must be able to satisfy the Licensing Authority that they have permission to be in the United 
Kingdom and are entitled to undertake work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. 

 
Licences will not be issued to disqualified persons who are: 

 

 unlawfully present in the UK 

 not permitted to work in the UK 

 permitted to work, but not in this licensable activity 
 

A premises or personal licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 
will lapse if the holder’s permission to live or work in the UK comes to an end. 
 

The application for personal and premises licences must submit one of the documents listed in 
Annex A of the Home Office’s Employer Right to Work Checks Supporting Guidance ( 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/right-to-work-checks-employers-guide)_with their 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, First line:  0 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Page 32

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

17 

 

application, to show that they have the right to work in the UK and to undertake work in a 
licensable activity. Applicants may provide photocopies or scanned copies of the documents, 
which do not need to be endorsed as a copy of the original. Applicants are not required to submit 
original copies of documents. As an alternative to using one of the documents listed in the above 
guidance, applicants may choose to demonstrate their right to work by allowing this Licensing 
Authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service. As a 
result, we invite applicants to provide their shared code available from https://www.gov.uk/prove-
right-to-work in their application. This code along with the applicant’s date of birth allows this 
Licensing Authority to check their immigration status via the online service. 

In order to establish the applicant’s right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant 
is allowed to work in the United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from 
doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. 

An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an 
immigration status that can be shared digitally. The Home Office online right to work checking 
service sets out what information and/or documentation applicants will need in order to access the 
service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service should submit copies 
of documents as set out above. 

Licence applications will not be determined until applicants have complied with the necessary 
guidance. 

Where an applicant has restrictions on the length of time they may work in the UK, a premises 
licence or personal licence may still be issued, but the licence will cease to have effect when the 
right to work lapses. 

The licensing authority is under no duty to carry out on-going immigration checks to see whether 
a licence-holder’s permission to be in the UK has been brought to an end, and the Act does not 
place a duty on the licensing authority to withdraw or revoke the licence if this occurs. 

The Home Office as a Responsible Authority may request a review of a licence, where a licence 
is prejudicial to the prevention of illegal working. This may be as a result of: 

· An enforcement operation or data sharing that identifies a relevant offence, 

· The issue of a civil penalty for employing illegal workers, 

· The identification of a licence holder whose leave to be in the UK, or their permission to work, 
has come to an end. 

 
 
 

4.65.7 Sexual Entertainment Venues 
 

Performances of dance which are “relevant entertainment” within the meaning of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“the 1982 Act”) are not affected by The 
Licensing Act 2003 (Descriptions of Entertainment) (Amendment) Order 2013, regardless of the 
size of the audience or the time of day. “Relevant entertainment” is defined in the 1982 Act as a 
live performance or live display of nudity that, ignoring financial gain, can be assumed to be 
provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the audience. 

In almost all cases where a performance of dance is potentially licensable as both the provision of 
relevant entertainment (under the 1982 Act) and regulated entertainment (under the 2003 Act), 
the 1982 Act disapplies the entertainment licensing regime in the 2003 Act in favour of its stricter 
regime for the control of sex establishments. However, an authorisation under the 2003 Act will be 
required where: 

 the premises are not licensed as a sex entertainment venue under the 1982 Act, and 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 33

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a

https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work
https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work


 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

18 

 

 relevant entertainment has been provided at those premises on no more than 11 occasions 
in any 12 month period, with none of those occasions lasting longer than 24 hours or taking 
place within a month of any other such occasion. 

 
Where the promoter of a sexual entertainment venue wishes to provide any of the licensable 
activities as outlined in the Licensing Act 2003 in addition to relevant entertainment, a premises 
licence will also be required to authorise such activities. 
 
The Council’s Sex Establishment Policy is the subject of a separate public consultation and the 
adopted policy stands separate from this Licensing Policy.  The Policy may be viewed on the Sex 
Establishment Toolkit available on www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing. 
 
 

   
5. THE LICENSING PROCESS 
 
5.1 Applications 
 
5.1.1 Application forms may be downloaded from the Authority’s website. Applicants are strongly 

recommended to discuss their application with a member of the Licensing Team prior to formal 
submission.   The Authority may reject applications which have not been completed correctly or 
contain insufficient information. 

 
5.1.2 The Authority will act in accordance with the section 182 Guidance with respect to- 

 

 when applications, notices, or relevant representations are ‘given’ i.e. submitted to the Authority 

 holding and deferring electronic applications 
 

5.1.3 The Act requires that applications for premises licences/club premises certificates – or variations 
thereof – are advertised in accordance with regulations.  The Authority will need to be satisfied that 
the applicant has complied fully with these regulations and may request copies of notices and 
advertisements to verify that the application has been properly made.  If an application has not 
been correctly advertised, the Authority is are likely to reject the application.  Further guidance on 
advertising applications is available on the  Authority’s website at www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing  

 
5.1.4 When preparing applications, it is essential that applicants give full consideration to the nature of 

the premises, the locality in which a premises is situated, the potential risks involved in carrying out 
licensable activities and put in place measures which are appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.  (See also 7.5) 

 
5.1.5 Applicants and licence holders should ensure that they have due regard to any planning restrictions 

on the use of the premises when applying for a licence to avoid any enforcement action by a council 
officer.  

 
5.1.6 The Licensing Authority has become aware of some concerning practices with persons not identified 

as a Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) having ‘control’ over a 
licensed premises, and in effect running a premises ‘behind the scenes’. This may be for reasons 
of criminality, for example whereby individuals may possess a relevant offence under the Licensing 
Act 2003 which would preclude them becoming a DPS. This Licensing Authority takes a very 
serious view of instances whereby it believes this to be the case. It will carefully consider 
representations and be supportive of the Police when genuinely exceptional circumstances exist. 
For example, whereby the Chief of Police cites that exceptional circumstances of a case are such 
that granting an application for a change of a DPS would undermine the crime prevention objective, 
and evidence exists of such, then it is highly likely that an application would meet refusal. 

 
 

5.2 Representations 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Body Text Indent, Justified, Indent: Hanging:  1
cm, Tab stops:  2 cm, Left

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Italic

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Italic

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color: Black, Pattern:
Clear (White)

Page 34

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a

http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing


 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

19 

 

 Representations must be made to the Authority in writing within the 28 day consultation 
period.   

 For this purpose, a representation made by e-mail will be acceptable. A form to assist persons 
in making a representation is found at wwwnorthdevon.gov.uk/LA03rep 

 
 

5.2.1 Section 18(6) of the Licensing Act 2003 defines what constitutes a ‘relevant’ representation.  To be 
relevant, a representation must relate to the likely effect of the grant of a licence on the promotion 
of one or more of the licensing objectives.  There is nothing in the Act to say that a representation 
must be of a negative nature. The Act specifically refers to ‘representations’ rather than ‘objections’ 
recognising that representations may express positive support for an application.  The Authority will 
consider both positive and negative representations provided they are relevant. 

 
5.2.2 Where no relevant representations are received, the application will be granted on the terms applied 

for.   Where relevant representations are received, the application will be considered by a Licensing 
sub-Committee at a hearing as will any application for review of a licence (see 9.2). The Authority 
has established its own hearing procedures as provided for by regulations made under the Act and 
these are available on request to the Licensing Authority and Authorities website at  

         www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing 
 

Home Office Guidance states “A hearing is not required where an application has been properly made and no 
Responsible Authority or other person has made a relevant representation.  In these cases, the licensing authority must 
grant the application on the terms sought subject only to conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule and 
relevant mandatory conditions under the Act”. (Guidance 9.2)  

 
5.2.3 Any party to a hearing may expand on their representation but may not add new or different 

representations. 
 

5.2.4 Representations which are deemed by the Authority to be repetitious, frivolous, vexatious are likely 
be disregarded. 

 
5.2.5 Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the Licensing Authority is required by 

regulations to provide the applicant with copies of the relevant representations that have been 
made. In exceptional circumstances, a person wishing to make a representation may be reluctant 
to do so because of fears of intimidation or harassment if their personal details are disclosed to the 
applicant.   Where the Authority considers that the person has a genuine and well-founded fear of 
intimidation and may be deterred from making a representation, the Authority may consider 
alternative approaches. For example, the Authority may advise the individual to provide the relevant 
Responsible Authority with details of how they consider that the licensing objectives are being 
undermined so that the Responsible Authority can make representations if appropriate and justified.  
Alternatively, the Authority may advise the individual to request their local Councillor to make a 
representation on their behalf.  Where appropriate, the Authority may decide to withhold some or 
all of the person’s details from the applicant.  The Authority will only withhold such details where 
the circumstances justify such action.  Persons making representations should be aware that their 
personal details will normally be disclosed during the hearing process. 

 
 

5.3 Determining Applications 
 

5.3.1 When determining a licence application, the overriding principle adopted by this Authority will be 
that each application will be determined on its merits.  The Authority will have regard to any 
guidance issued by the Home Office, this Statement of Licensing Policy and any measures it deems 
necessary to promote the licensing objectives.  The Authority may depart from the guidelines in this 
Policy if it has justifiable and compelling reasons to do so.  The Authority will give reasons for any 
such departure from policy. 

 
5.3.2 The Authority will expect applicants to demonstrate in their applications active steps for the 

promotion the licensing objectives.  When determining an application, a key consideration for the 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

20 

 

Authority will be the adequacy of measures proposed in the Operating Schedule to promote the 
licensing objectives having regard to the type of premises, the licensable activities to be provided, 
the nature of the location and the needs of the local community.   

 
5.3.3 The Authority will also have regard to wider considerations affecting the residential population, 

businesses and the amenity of an area.  These include alcohol-related violence and disorder, anti-
social behaviour, littering, fouling, noise and the capacity of the infrastructure and police resources 
to cope with the movement of large numbers of people, particularly late at night and in the early 
morning. 

 
5.3.4 Since the introduction of the Act, the Authority’s experience is that the vast majority of complaints 

about licensed premises are caused by public nuisance, in particular excessive noise from live and 
recorded music and disturbance caused by customers congregating outside licensed premises.  
The Authority will expect applicants to have particular regard to these issues and to include in their 
Operating Schedules adequate and effective steps to control noise and disturbance from their 
premises.  Existing licence holders will also be expected to demonstrate – through the effective 
management of their premises – that they are taking appropriate and reasonable steps within their 
control to minimise disorder, anti-social behaviour and public nuisance. 

 
Public nuisance is not defined in the Licensing Act 2003 and retains its broad common law meaning. It should be noted 
that public nuisance can include low-level nuisance affecting a few people living locally as well as major disturbance 
affecting the whole community.  It may also include the reduction of the living and working amenity and environment of 
persons and businesses in the vicinity of licensed premises. (Home Office Guidance 2.16) 

 
5.3.5 When deciding whether to grant a licence, the Authority may take account of any non-compliance 

with other statutory requirements brought to its attention, if these undermine the licensing 
objectives.  This is because any non-compliance with other statutory requirements may 
demonstrate that the premises are unsuitable for the activities proposed, or that the management 
of the premises is not sufficiently competent to protect the public from harm or nuisance.  

 
5.3.6 When determining an application, the Authority will consider all relevant evidence, both oral and 

written, provided by parties to a hearing.  Evidence which is irrelevant may be disregarded.  The 
Authority encourages applicants and persons making representations to attend hearings so that 
they can give evidence.  Where an individual fails to attend the hearing, the Authority will consider 
their application or representation but may attach less weight to it. 

 
5.3.7 It should be noted that, when determining an application, the Authority is making a judgement about 

risk.  A key purpose of the licensing function is not to respond to crime and disorder, nuisance or 
public harm once it has happened but to make an informed assessment of the risk of such things 
occurring if a licence is granted and to take such steps as it considers appropriate to prevent or 
minimise such risks. 

 
5.3.8 The Authority will generally give its decision on an application at the end of a hearing and will give 

clear reasons for its decision.  In all other cases, the Authority will make its determination within five 
working days. 

 
5.3.9 Any party to a hearing who is dissatisfied with the Authority’s decision may appeal to the 

Magistrates’ Court.  An appeal must be made within 21 days of formal notification of the decision.  
 

5.4 Mobile, Remote, Internet and Other Delivery Sales 
 

5.4.1 The Licensing Authority shall have due regard to sales of alcohol which are made remotely, by 
mobile methods, internet or by other delivery sales. 

 
5.4.2 Persons who wish to run premises providing ‘alcohol delivery services’ should notify the relevant 

Licensing Authority that they are operating such a service in their operating schedule, and premises 
with existing premises licences who wish to include such a service should consider applying to vary 
their licence to add this activity. 

Page 36

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

21 

 

 
5.4.3 The expectation of the Licensing Authority is that conditions suggested by way of operating 

schedules for these types of activities are extremely robust in order to negate any perceived issues. 
The following form examples: 

 
5.4.3 Persons who wish to run premises providing ‘alcohol delivery services’ should notify the relevant 

Licensing Authority that they are operating such a service in their operating schedule, and premises 
with existing premises licences who wish to include such a service should consider applying to vary 
their licence to add this activity. 

 

 Every third party courier delivery box shall be labelled with the words “Age Restricted Product”. 
 

 There shall be mechanism either by an App or on the delivery package to show the delivery driver 
is aware it is an age restricted product to ensure ID checks are made upon delivery of alcohol.  

 

 The premises licence holder will ensure that an age verification policy will apply whereby all 
delivery drivers/riders will be trained to ask any customer to whom alcohol is delivered, who 
appears to be under the age of 25 years to produce, before being delivered alcohol, identification 
being a passport or photocard driving licence bearing a holographic mark or other form of 
identification that complies with any mandatory condition that may apply to this licence. 

 

 Alcohol shall only be delivered to a residential or business address and not to a public place or 
vehicle. 
 

 All off sales deliveries to be in sealed containers. 
 

 A warning shall be displayed on the digital platform on which an order is placed informing 
customers that they must be aged 18 or over to make a purchase of alcohol and notifying 
customers that the driver/rider will carry out age verification on delivery. The customer will be 
required to declare that he or she aged 18 or over. If the driver/ider is not satisfied that the 
customer is aged 18 or over any alcohol in the order will be withheld 

 

 The Licence holder shall notify the Licensing Authority of the digital platform(s) used for the 
sales of alcohol and any changes to those platforms. 

 

 
6.0 LICENSING HOURS 
 
6.1 In general, the Licensing Authority will deal with the issue of licensing hours on the individual merits 

of each application.  However, when issuing a licence with hours beyond midnight higher standards 
of control and supervision will be expected in order to promote the licensing objectives - especially 
for premises situated in or near residential areas.   

 
6.2 The Act does not provide for standard closing times.  Licensed premises will generally be permitted 

to sell alcohol during the hours they intend to open provided they can demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of the Licensing Authority that the premises will be operated in a manner consistent 
with the licensing objectives Home Office guidance and this Policy.  However, there is no 
presumption that applications for extended hours will take precedence over the human rights of 
local residents and businesses. 

 
6.3 The licensed hours will normally be approved where the applicant can show that the proposal would 

not adversely affect the licensing objectives.  The Licensing Authority may, however, set an earlier 
terminal hour where it considers this is appropriate to the nature of the activities and the amenity of 
the area or is necessary to achieve one or more of the licensing objectives. 

 

Formatted: Body Text Indent, Indent: Left:  1 cm, Hanging: 
1 cm, Right:  0 cm, Widow/Orphan control, Tab stops:  2 cm,
Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Red

Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Red

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  1.68 cm +
Indent at:  2.32 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Red

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  1.68 cm +
Indent at:  2.32 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Red

Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Red

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  1.68 cm +
Indent at:  2.32 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Red

Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Red

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  1.68 cm +
Indent at:  2.32 cm

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  1.68 cm +
Indent at:  2.32 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Red

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  1.68 cm +
Indent at:  2.32 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Red

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  1.68 cm +
Indent at:  2.32 cm

Formatted: Font color: Red

Page 37

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

22 

 

Home Office Guidance states that the licensing objectives should be the Authority’s paramount consideration 
at all times when determining applications.  If the Licensing Committee or a sub-Committee believes that 
granting longer hours would undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it with 
appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested. (Guidance 10.14) 

 
6.4 The Licensing Authority recognises that fixed and artificially early closing times in certain areas can 

lead to peaks of disorder and disturbance on the streets when large numbers of people tend to 
leave licensed premises at the same time.  Flexible licensing hours in relation to the sale of alcohol 
may therefore be considered as a potential means of reducing friction at late night food outlets, taxi 
ranks and other ‘flashpoints’ in areas where there have already been incidents of disorder and 
disturbance. 

 
6.5 Shops, stores and supermarkets will generally be permitted to sell alcohol for consumption off the 

premises during the normal hours they intend to open for shopping purposes.  However, in the case 
of individual shops, which are known to be a focus of disorder and disturbance then, where relevant 
representations are received from a Responsible Authority or an interested party, the Licensing 
Authority may consider a restriction on licensed hours where this is necessary to promote one or 
more of the licensing objectives. 

 
6.6  Because opening hours (i.e. hours when there are no licensable activities taking place) may in 

themselves impact on the licensing objectives, the Authority will require any proposed change to 
opening hours for an existing licence to be authorised by way of a variation to the licence. This 
can be achieved by way of a minor variation application. 

 
7. LICENCE CONDITIONS 
 
7.1 Conditions attached to a premises licence or club premises certificate are a key element of the 

regulatory framework established by the Act.  There are three types of condition: 
 

 mandatory conditions set out in the Act, 

 conditions consistent with the operating schedule, and 

 conditions imposed by the Licensing Authority. 
 

The Licensing Authority may only impose conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate where it has 
received a relevant representation about an application.  The application will then be determined at a hearing by a 
Licensing sub-Committee.  If no relevant representation is received, the application must be granted on the terms applied 
for subject only to the mandatory conditions and conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule. 

 
7.2 Conditions are crucial in setting the parameters within which premises can lawfully operate.  Any 

contravention of a condition on a premises licence or club premises certificate is a criminal offence 
so it is essential that conditions are worded clearly, precisely and unambiguously.  In addition,  

         conditions must: 
 

(i) be appropriate, reasonable and proportionate 
(ii) be enforceable 
(iii) not duplicate other statutory requirements 
(iv) be relevant to the particular type, location and character of the premises concerned 
(v) not be standardised 
(vi) not replicate offences set out in the Act or in other legislation 
(vii) be written in a prescriptive format 

 
7.3 The Authority encourages applicants to seek technical advice from the appropriate Responsible 

Authorities when preparing their Operating Schedules as this will enable any problems to be 
resolved at an early stage and will reduce the likelihood of representations.   

 
7.4 Experience has shown that many of the conditions volunteered by applicants are poorly worded, 

unclear or ambiguous and therefore unenforceable.  As an aid to applicants, the Authority has 
prepared a menu of suggested measures to promote the licensing objectives which applicants are 

Page 38

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

23 

 

encouraged to consider when preparing their operating schedules. These measures are not 
prescriptive but will help to ensure that licence conditions are expressed clearly and consistently 
and enable enforcement to be carried out equitably.  The measures can be viewed at  

         www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing.  The Authority, in consultation with the applicant, may amend  
         the wording of proposed conditions where this is unclear, ambiguous or unenforceable. 
 
  Home Office guidance states that it is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the wording from an 

applicant’s operating schedule.  A condition should be interpreted in accordance with the applicant’s intention. ((Home 
Office Guidance 10.5) 

 
7.5 The Authority will pay particular attention to the effect – potential or actual - of licensable activities 

on those living, working or otherwise engaged in the area concerned and, where relevant 
representations are received, may attach conditions if it considers it appropriate for the promotion 
of the licensing objectives. 

 
7.6 Conditions attached by the Authority to Premises Licences and Club premises certificates will relate 

to matters falling within the control of individual licensees.  It is recognised that the licensing function 
cannot be a mechanism for the control of disorderly behaviour by individuals once they are beyond 
the direct control of the licence holder.  However, the Licensing Authority and Responsible 
Authorities may take action where it can be established that there is a clear linkage between 
disorderly behaviour and a specific premises. 

   
7.7 The Authority will not impose inappropriate or over-burdensome conditions on licences.  The 

Authority may, however, impose conditions where existing legislation does not provide adequate 
controls and additional measures are considered to be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 

 
7.8 Although it is not a legal requirement, the Licensing Authority recommends as good practice - in 

respect of premises licensed to sell or supply alcohol for consumption on the premises - that a 
Personal Licence holder is on the premises at all times to make or authorise such sales or supplies. 
The Authority is keen to encourage the presence of properly trained staff on licensed premises.  
Applicants may wish to consider including this as a condition of licence, where appropriate, as a 
measure to promote the licensing objectives.  Where this is not possible (because the premises is 
too small or because staffing levels do not permit) or when the Premises Supervisor/Personal 
Licence holder will be absent for a significant length of time, a responsible person should be 
authorised to oversee the sale of alcohol in the place of the Premises Supervisor/Personal Licence 
holder.  The Authority will expect the authorisation to be made in writing, kept securely on the 
premises and made available for inspection by an authorised person if requested.  Copies of the 
authorisation should be sent to the Licensing Authority and the police. 

 
NB.  ‘Authorisation’ does not mean direct supervision.  The government  recommends that Personal Licence holders give 
specific written authorisations to individuals they are authorising to sell or supply alcohol and that such individuals are 
clearly identified (Home Office Guidance 10.331 and 10.3) 

 
7.9 Disapplication of Certain Mandatory Conditions for Community Premises 

 
7.9.1 An amendment to the Licensing Act 2003 made in 2009 allows certain community premises which 

have or are applying for a premises licence that authorises alcohol sales to also apply to include 
the ‘alternative licence condition’ instead of the usual mandatory conditions in sections 19(2) and 
19(3) of the Act  (requirement for a DPS and for alcohol sales to be made or authorised by a 
personal licence holder). Such an application may only be made if the licence holder is, or is to 
be, a committee or board of individuals with responsibility for the management of the premises.  

 

 Where it is not clear whether premises are community premises, the Licensing Authority will 
approach the matter on a case by case basis. The main consideration being how the premises 
are predominantly used. If they are genuinely made available for community benefit most of 
the time, and accessible by a broad range of persons and sectors of the local community for 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

24 

 

purposes which include purposes beneficial to the community as a whole, the premises will 
be likely to meet the definition. 

 
 
 

 
8. CUMULATIVE IMPACT 

 
‘Cumulative impact ‘or ‘saturation’ has been described within the Home Office Guidance and used by Llicensing 
Authorities within their policies since the Commencement of the 2003 Act. It is defined in Home Office guidance as ‘the 
potential impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives of a significant number of licensed premises concentrated 
in one area’. Whilst flexible opening hours may encourage the gradual dispersal of customers from premises, it is possible 
that the behaviour of customers from a concentration of premises, taken together, may have a disproportionate impact 
on the amenity of the surrounding area.  Where a Licensing Authority believes that a particular area is becoming saturated 
with licensed premises, it may adopt a  cumulative impact assessment’  and refuse applications for new premises licences 
where relevant representations relating to cumulative impact have been received. 

 
8.1 ‘Cumulative impact assessments’ (CIA) were introduced in the 2003 Act by the Policing and Crime 

Act 2017, with effect from 6 April 2018. 
 
8.2     The Authority may publish a cumulative impact assessment (CIA) to help limit the number or types 

of licence applications granted in areas where there is evidence to show that the number or density 
of licensed premises in the area is having a cumulative impact and leading to problems which are 
undermining the licensing objectives. 

 
8.3    This should not, however, be equated with 'need' which relates more to the commercial demand for 

a particular type of premises. The issue of 'need' is a matter for planning consideration or for the 
market to decide and does not form part of this licensing policy statement. 

 
8.4     If the Authority receives relevant  evidence suggesting that the cumulative impact of new and 

varied licences is leading to an area becoming saturated with premises of a particular type and 
thereby creating problems of disorder and nuisance over and above the impact of the individual 
premises, the Authority may consider the issue of cumulative impact when determining an 
application. The onus is on any person, or organisation, submitting evidence to prove the 
assertion that the grant of the licence would cause the cumulative impact claimed. 

 
8.5 The Authority does not propose to operate a quota system of any kind, which would have the effect 

of pre-determining any application; nor does it seek to impose general limitations on trading hours 
in particular areas.  The Authority recognises that pubs, clubs, restaurants, hotels, theatres, concert 
halls and cinemas have contrasting characteristics and styles of operation. Proper regard will be 
given to those differences and the impact they are likely to have on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 

 
8.6 There must be an evidential basis for the Authority to make the decision to publish a CIA. The 

Community Safety Partnership, the Police and Environmental Health, may hold relevant 
information which would assist the Licensing Authority when establishing the evidence base for 
publishing a CIA. Evidence of cumulative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives 
needs to relate to the relevant problems identified in the specified area to be covered by the CIA. 
Information which the Authority may be able to draw on includes: 

 

 local crime and disorder statistics, including statistics on specific types of crime and crime 
hotspots; 

 statistics on local anti-social behaviour offences; 

 health-related statistics such as alcohol-related emergency attendances and hospital 
admissions; 

 environmental health complaints, particularly in relation to litter and noise; 

 complaints recorded by the local authority, which may include complaints raised by local 
residents or residents’ associations; 

 residents’ questionnaires; 

Page 40

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

25 

 

 evidence from local and parish councillors; and 

 evidence obtained through local consultation. 

 Cconsult with those mentioned in section 5(3) of the Licensing Act 2003; 
 

8.7 This Licensing Authority may consider this evidence, alongside its own evidence of the impact of 
licensable activities within its area, and consider in particular the times at which licensable activities 
are carried on. Information which may inform consideration of these issues includes: 

 

 trends in licence applications, particularly trends in applications by types of premises and 
terminal hours; 

 changes in terminal hours of premises; 

 premises capacities at different times of night and the expected concentrations of drinkers 
who will be expected to be leaving premises at different times. 

 
Where there is evidence that a particular area of the District is already suffering adverse effects 
arising from a concentration of late night premises, or that residential areas are under stress, this 
may be taken into account in determining any further applications for licences within the area 
identified. In such circumstances the Licensing Authority may take into account: 

 

 The character of the surrounding area; 

 The impact of the licence on the surrounding area, both individually and cumulatively with 
existing licences; 

 The nature and character of the proposed operation. 

 Evidence from a Responsible Authority of potential or actual negative impact on the licensing 
objectives in any given area, 

 The number of substantiated complaints about licensed premises received from residents 
and/or businesses in any given area. 

 
8.8    If this Licensing Authority Publishes a CIA it will review it every three years. 
 
8.9 The concept of cumulative impact may be  relevant to the town centres of Barnstaple and Ilfracombe 

which, since the introduction of the Act, have seen a significant rise in the number of licensed 
premises granted extended hours,   resulting in a general trend towards later disorder and nuisance 
which places significant demands on police resources. 

 
8.10  This Authority does not currently propose to adopt a CIA in relation to cumulative impact.  However, 

the Authority recognises that there is a significant concentration of licensed premises in Barnstaple 
and Ilfracombe town centre which, collectively, has the capacity to have a disproportionate effect 
on residents and businesses both in the town centre and in the immediately adjacent area.  
Therefore, when considering applications for new licences/club premises certificates or applications 
to vary existing premises licences/club premises certificates - especially where longer hours are 
sought - applications will only be granted where the Authority is completely satisfied that there will 
be no adverse effect on the licensing objectives. 

 
 

9. ENFORCEMENT 
 
9.1 Enforcement Activity and Policy 
  
9.1.1 The Licensing Authority employs enforcement officers to investigate complaints against licensed 

premises, allegations of unlicensed activities, and the breach of licence conditions. Enforcement 
may be carried out independently by these authorised persons or in partnership with other 
enforcement agencies and Responsible Authorities. Where joint enforcement work is envisaged, 
the Licensing Authority will establish appropriate protocols, which will be reviewed at regular 
intervals.  

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

26 

 

9.2.1 9.2 In general, action will be taken in accordance with the Authority’s Licensing Corporate 
Enforcement Policy (July 2022) and The Regulators Code (April 2014). The Authority will apply the 
key principles of targeting, consistency, transparency and proportionality in accordance with the 
Regulatory Compliance Code.  Inspection and enforcement will be risk-based with a lighter touch 
being adopted for premises which are well managed and where there is little or no evidence of 
crime and disorder, public nuisance or other problems.   

 
9.3 An incremental approach will be adopted starting with a verbal or written warning for infringements 
of the law or failure to comply with licence conditions.  Failure to respond to such warnings will result in 
stronger enforcement measures being taken, which could lead to a prosecution or an application being 
made for the review of a licence or club premises certificate (see 9.2). (Please refer to section 18.0 with 
regard to the suspension of a premises licence or club premises certificate for non-payment of an 
annual maintenance fee).  

 
9.4 Where there are implications pertaining to the protection of children the Licensing Authority will 

take a robust stance, for example where its discretion is engaged this Licensing Authority will 
consider refusal/revocation in the first instance where test purchases have found venues selling 
age restricted products to children. 

9.2.2  
  

9.2.3 The Licensing Authority will refer to the following Policies when considering enforcement:  
 

 The Regulators Code (April 2014). 
 
 
 

9.2 Review 
 

9.2.1 A Responsible Authority and any other person can, at any time following the grant of a Premises 
Licence or Club Premises Certificate, apply to the Licensing Authority to review the  

          licence/certificate because of concerns arising at the premises which may have an adverse impact 
on any of the licensing objectives. The Authority regards this as a valuable protection for residents 
and businesses.  Applications for a review must be made in writing and will be considered by a 
Licensing sub-Committee at a hearing. 

 
9.2.2 Any application for a review should be treated seriously. Responsible authorities will aim to give 

licensees early warning of any concerns identified at a premises, and talk to the licence or 
certificate holder to establish whether there are any steps they may be willing to take to rectify the 
situation. Similarly those seeking a review which are not a responsible authority are encouraged 
to take initial steps such as: 

 

 asking the Licensing Authority to talk to the licence holder on their behalf 

 asking their local MP or Councillor to speak to the licence holder on their behalf 

 talking to the relevant responsible authority (e.g. Environmental Protection Team in relation 
to noise nuisance or the police in relation to crime and disorder) to establish whether there 
is other action that can be taken to resolve the problem. 

 
9.2.3 The review process is not intended as a means of challenging the grant of a licence following the 

failure of representations to persuade the Licensing Authority on an earlier occasion. No more than 
one review from a person other than a Responsible Authority will be entertained in relation to a 
particular premises within a period of twelve months on similar grounds, save in compelling 
circumstances (e.g. where new problems have arisen) or where it arises following a closure order 
made under s.160 or s.161 of the Act. 

 
9.2.4 When considering a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate, the Authority will 

expect the applicants for the review to provide evidence of previous infringements of licensing 
regulations, failure to comply with licence conditions and/or of failure to promote the licensing 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2 cm,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  1.25 cm, Hanging:  0.75
cm, Tab stops:  2 cm, Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 3 + Aligned at:  3.17 cm +
Indent at:  3.81 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Normal, Right:  0.5 cm, No widow/orphan
control, Tab stops:  1.66 cm, Left + Not at  2 cm

Page 42

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

27 

 

objectives. Further guidance on the review procedure is available from the Home Office 
(www.homeoffice.gov.uk) and North Devon Council (www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing). 

 
9.2.5 Following a review, the Authority will focus any remedial action directly on the concerns identified 

in the representations.  In all cases, action will be appropriate, reasonable and proportionate to the 
nature of the problems giving rise to the review.  Options available to the Authority are: 

 
(ii) to modify the conditions of licence 
(iii) to exclude a licensable activity form the scope of the licence 
(iv) to remove the designated premises supervisor 
(v) to suspend the licence for a period of not more than three months 
(vi) to revoke the licence 
 

9.2.6 In cases where the crime and disorder objective has been undermined or where it can be 
demonstrated that a premises has a history of persistent offending, suspension or revocation of a 
licence, even in the first instance, may be seriously considered as a form of deterrence. (See also 
10.6). 

 
9.2.7 Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Authority has the right of appeal to the Magistrates’ 

Court.  An appeal must be made within 21 days of the Licensing Authority’s decision. 
 

10. CHILDREN IN LICENSED PREMISES 
 
10.1 The Licensing Authority recognises the great variety of premises for which licences may be sought.  

These will include theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, registered clubs, cafes, 
takeaways, community halls and schools.  As a general principle, access by children to licensed 
premises will not be limited, and any restrictions will be left to the discretion of the licensee unless 
it is considered necessary to protect children from harm.  

 
10.2 When deciding whether to limit access to children, the Licensing Authority will judge each 

application on its individual merits.  Examples which may give rise to concern in respect of children 
would include premises:  

 

 where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is provided 

 where there is a strong element of gambling taking place 

 where a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving 
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in the 
context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming beer, 
wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal) 

 with a known association with drug taking or dealing 

 where it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access 

 in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol 

 for consumption on the premises. 
 

10.3 Where the exhibition of films is permitted, the Licensing Authority will expect age restrictions to be 
complied with in accordance with the British Board of Film Classification’s recommendations.  The 
Authority will only consider variations to this general rule in exceptional circumstances. 

 
 
10.4 Where relevant representations have been received, the Authority may impose licence conditions 

at premises where children will be present for regulated entertainment so that sufficient adult staff 
must be present to control the access and egress of children and to ensure their safety.  Where 
children may also be present at an event as entertainers it will be a requirement for there to be a 
nominated adult responsible for child performers present at such performances. 

 
10.5  The Licensing Authority will take strong measures to protect children where any licence holder is 

convicted of serving alcohol to minors, where premises have a known association with drug taking 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, Hanging:  1.27 cm, Tab
stops: Not at  2 cm

Page 43

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a

http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/


 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

28 

 

or dealing, gambling takes place on the premises or where entertainment of an adult or sexual 
nature is provided.  Options which the Authority may consider appropriate to limit access by children 
may include:  

:  

 a limit on the hours when children may be present 

 restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when particular 
specified activities are taking place 

 restricting on the parts of the premises to which children may have access 

 age restrictions (for under 18s) 

 restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place requirements for an 
accompanying adult ( including for example, a combination of requirements which provide 
that children under a particular age must be accompanied by an adult) 

  and full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are 
taking place. 

 
10.6 In the event of a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate for under age sales of 

alcohol, the Authority will take strong and appropriate action to ensure that children are protected.  
This may include, for example, removal of the Designated Premises Supervisor or suspension or 
revocation of the licence/club premises certificate. 

 
10.7  In the event of a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate for under age sales of 

alcohol, the Licensing Authority will take strong and appropriate action to ensure that children are 
protected.  This may include, for example, removal of the Designated Premises Supervisor or 
suspension or revocation of the licence/club premises certificate. 

 
10.8 This Authority has designated the Devon County Council (Devon Children and families 

partnership), as the body competent to advise the Authority on issues relating to the protection of 
children from harm. 

 

11.  DRUGS, /ILLEGAL , AND PSYCHOACTIVE SUBSTANCES 
 
11.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that drug use is not something that is experienced by all 

licensed premises.  However, where relevant representations are received, the Licensing Authority 
may need to impose special conditions for certain types of venues in order to reduce the sale and 
consumption of drugs and to create a safer environment for customers using the premises.  The 
conditions to be imposed in such cases will be taken from the Authority’s guidance notes which can 
be viewed at www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing. The Authority may also have regard to guidance 
published by the Home Office.  Where the Authority deems such conditions to be appropriate for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives, it will seek advice from an appropriate agency and the 
Police. 

 
 

Psychoactive Substances, e.g. Nitrous Oxide (NOx) 
 

11.2  Misuse of nitrous oxide is associated with increased antisocial behaviour including littering, noise 
nuisance and vandalism, all of which are detrimental to residents’ quality of life and feelings of safety.  
Use of nitrous oxide is also a health concern and has other associated harms.   

 
11.3  As a result, this Licensing Authority expects Licence Holders to refuse entry to any person seen using 

or selling NOx as a psychoactive Substance.  Refusals should also be entered into Licence Holders 
refusals log. 

 
Where its discretion is engaged this Licensing Authority may impose conditions to formally 
require refusal of persons seen selling or using NOx as a psychoactive Substance. 

 
 

12.  DOOR SUPERVISORS 

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, Hanging:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, Hanging:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm

Page 44

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a

http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing


 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

29 

 

 
12.1 Whenever any persons are employed at licensed premises to carry out any security activity, all 

such persons must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.  The Authority recognises that 
certain premises, because of the nature of their operation, their capacity, their licensed hours and 
the licensable activities provided, may require stricter supervision for the purpose of reducing crime 
and disorder and public nuisance.  In such cases, where relevant representations are received, the 
Authority may impose a condition that licensed door supervisors must be employed at the premises 
either at all times or at such times as certain licensable activities are being carried out. 

 
12.2 The Authority recognises that Door Supervisors have an important function in terms of supervising 

customers not only inside premises but also outside.  Door Supervisors will therefore be expected 
to take a pro-active role in managing the behaviour of customers outside premises in order to 
minimise any disturbance and nuisance to nearby residents.  Licence holders should ensure in 
particular that, at closing times, they have sufficient Door Supervisors to effectively control ‘surges’ 
of customers leaving premises. 

 
12.3  Whenever security operatives are employed at licensed premises to carry out any security function 

such operatives must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority (SIA). Competent and 
professional door supervisors are key to public safety at licensed premises and the provision of 
door supervisors is an action point for the leisure industry to consider in the Home Office Alcohol 
Harm Reduction Strategy.  

 
It is a mandatory condition of a Premises Licence that where the licence requires personnel to carry out security activity 
(e.g. screening of customers, dealing with conflict management, crowd control) such personnel are licensed by the 
Security Industry Authority. (Licensing Act 2003, s.21) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13.  VESSELS 
 
13.1 There are a number of additional responsible authorities stipulated in the Act which relate to the 

licensing of vessels. The Authority will consider any representations made by these Responsible 
Authorities when considering applications for premises licences in respect of a vessel.  Where, in 
the opinion of the Authority, any of the four objectives are undermined, and this cannot be resolved 
through the imposition of specific conditions, the application is likely to be refused. 

 
14.  LICENSING OF PUBLIC LAND 

 
14.1 The Authority recognises that land owned by the local authority and by other public bodies often 

lends itself to the performance of public events which involve one or more licensable activities.  In 
the interests of promoting cultural richness and diversity within the area, the Authority will 
encourage the local authority to apply for such licences for the benefit of the community where it is 
satisfied that they will not have a negative impact on the licensing objectives.  

 
14.2  In order to help event organisers and touring entertainment providers plan where licensable 

activities will be carried out the DCMS maintain a Register of Licensed Public Spaces in England 
and Wales (www.culture.gov.uk). When a licence is issued for public land, North Devon Council will 
provide those areas licensed and the activities to which the licence relates to the DCMS for use in 
this register. 

 
The Government encourages local authorities to consider establishing a policy of seeking premises licences for public 
spaces they own e.g. public parks, promenades, community buildings etc.  Where such licences are in force, this removes 
the burden on individuals and community organisations of applying for a premises licence or giving a Temporary Event 
Notice. 

 
15.  BEER GARDENS OR OTHER OUTDOOR SPACES 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a

http://www.culture.gov.uk/


 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

30 

 

 
15.1 Applicants will want to consider whether they might want to use a garden or other outdoor space 

as a location from which alcohol will be consumed. The sale of alcohol is to be treated as taking 
place where the alcohol is appropriated to the contract. In scenarios where drink orders are taken 
by a member of staff in the garden or outdoor space and the member of staff then collects the 
drinks from the licensed premises and returns to deliver them to the customer this would be 
treated as an off-sale and any conditions that relate to off-sales would apply. 

 
15.2 In such cases it will be not necessary to include the garden or other outdoor space on the plan 

as part of the area covered by the premises licence. However, it will be necessary for the 
applicant to include the garden or other outdoor space on the plan as part of the area covered 
by the premises licence if the intention is to provide a service whereby drinks are available for 
sale and consumption directly from that area (i.e. the provision of on-sales). This would apply in 
the case of an outdoor bar or a service whereby a member of staff who is in the garden or 
outdoor space carries with them drinks that are available for sale (without the need for the staff 
member to return to the licensed premises to collect them).  

 
15.3  Irrespective of whether a licence is required for on or off sales, the increase in the use of 

outdoor areas since the ending of the pandemic does still need to strike the right balance 
between allowing businesses to thrive whilst still protecting residents from being disturbed by 
the night time economy. Issues pertaining to noise nuisance may be actioned by way of 
alternative legislation and we would encourage applicants to address noise and anti-social 
behaviour by way of their management practices and for those requiring an outside area to be 
licensed this should be covered in their operating schedule. Mitigating measures to reduce any 
disturbance on neighbouring residents could include: 

 limiting the amount of patrons permitted in the outside area, and/or,  

 ceasing its use after a certain time.   
 
15.4   Where disturbance of residence from outside areas is likely, and where its discretion is 

engaged, this Licensing Authority may add conditions limiting the numbers of persons 
permitted to use any outside areas, and/or seek to cease the use of any outside areas after 
21:00 hours. 

 
 
15.53 If the beer garden or other outdoor area is to be used for the consumption of off-sales only, there 

is no requirement to show it on the plan of the premises, but the prescribed application form 
requires the applicant to provide a description of where the place is and its proximity to the 
premises. 

 
 
 

16 TEMPORARY ACTIVITIES 

 
16.1 The Licensing Act 2003 makes provision for regulating temporary events involving the supply of 

alcohol, the provision of regulated entertainment or the provision of late night refreshment at a 
premises which are not authorised by a premises licence or club premises certificate.  This provision 
can also be used by holders of premises licences and club premises certificates to authorise 
extensions to their permitted hours. 

 
16.2 The system of temporary activities is intended as a light touch process and, as such, the carrying 

on of licensable activities does not have to be authorised by way of an application. Instead, a person 
wishing to hold an event at which it is proposed to carry out such activities is required to notify the 
Licensing Authority by way of a Temporary Event Notice (TEN). 

 
16.3 A number of limitations are imposed on the use of TENs by the Act. The limitations apply to: 

 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Page 46

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

31 

 

 the number of times a premises user may give a TEN (50 times in a calendar year for a 
personal licence holder (inclusive of 10 late TENs only) and five times in a calendar year for 
other people, (which is inclusive of 2 late TENs only);  

 the number of times a TEN may be given for any particular premises (15* times in a 
calendar year); 

 the maximum duration of an event authorised by a TEN is 168 hours; 

 a maximum total duration of the events authorised by TENs in relation to individual 
premises (21** days in a calendar year); 

 athe maximum number of 499 people attending at any one time (which includes staff, 
performers, and volunteers etc.fewer than 500); and 

 the minimum period between events authorised under separate TENs in relation to the 
same premises (not including withdrawn TENs) by the same premises user (24 hours). 

 

16.4 The Alcohol Licensing (Coronavirus) (Regulatory Easements) (Amendment) Regulations 
2021 temporarily increased limits for the 2023 (calendar year): * increased to 20 days and ** 
increased to 26 days. 

 
 

Where events are planned outside the limits above, an application should be made for a limited 
duration Premises Licence. 

  
 

16.4 A TEN can be used for any ‘premises’.  This could be a building, a room in a building, a vehicle, a 
marquee, an open field etc. A TEN may only be given by an individual (aged over 18) and not by 
an organisation or club or business. 

 

16.5  There are two types of TEN; a standard TEN and a late TEN.  A standard TEN must be given no 
later than ten working days before the event to which it relates; a late TEN must be given not 
before nine and no later than five working days before the event.  (NB. Notice periods do not 
include the day the Notice is given to the Licensing Authority or the day of the event.  If this 
minimum period of notice is not given, the Authority will reject the Notice and the licensable 
activities may not take place). With regards to giving notice to the relevant authority, as the term 
“give” used in section 100 of Licensing Act 2003 is not defined, the Licensing Authority considers 
this to mean the date on which the TEN is received by the Licensing Authority and not the date on 
which it was sent. Applicants are therefore advised to hand deliver notices if time is short, as late 
notices will not be accepted under any circumstances. 

 
  
16.6  The police and North Devon Council’s Regulatory Services (‘relevant persons’) may object to a 

TEN.  If the Authority receives an objection notice from a relevant person that is not withdrawn, it 
must (in the case of a standard TEN only) hold a hearing to consider the objection (unless all parties 
agree that this is unnecessary). The Authority must consider any objection on the basis of the 
licensing objectives and decide whether the event should go ahead. Relevant persons may also 
intervene by agreeing a modification of the proposed arrangements directly with the person giving 
the TEN. It should be noted that with a late TEN if a relevant person (Devon and Cornwall Police 
and the Council’s Environmental Protection and Health and Safety teams) submit an objection the 
event will not go ahead. 

 
16.7  Where an objection is received, the Authority may impose conditions on a TEN but only where the 

venue at which the event is to be held has an existing premises licence or club premises certificate. 
The Authority may only otherwise intervene if the statutory permitted limits on TENs would be 
exceeded. 

 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.25 cm, Hanging:  1.75 cm,
Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … +
Start at: 4 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.27 cm + Indent
at:  2.01 cm

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1 cm

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Page 47

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

32 

 

16.8 When giving a TEN, the premises user should consider the promotion of the four licensing objectives.  
Organisers are strongly advised to contact relevant persons for advice at the earliest opportunity 
when planning events.  Planning at an early stage may well minimise or avoid potential objections. 

 

16.9 Paragraph 7.11 of the Section 182 guidance cites that  “Although ten clear working days is the 
minimum possible notice that may be given, licensing authorities should publicise their 
preferences in terms of advance notice and encourage premises users to provide the earliest 
possible notice of events planned by them. Licensing authorities should also consider publicising 
a preferred maximum time in advance of an event by when TENs should ideally be given to them. 

16.10 In accordance with this guidance, this Licensing Authority expects event organisers’ to give at 
least 28 days’ notice of a temporary event. We also expect that when relevant, events are 
discussed with relevant persons (Devon and Cornwall Police and the Council’s Environmental 
Protection and Health and Safety teams) prior to submission. This will ensure that full detailed 
discussion can take place between the organiser and any other interested parties in order to 
ensure promotion of the four licensing objectives. The maximum timescale this Licensing 
Authority suggests applicants notify of a TEN in advance of an event is 6 months.  

16.11 Risk Assessments and Event Management Plans: Whilst not a requirement, in order to assist 
relevant persons, we would strongly urge that Event Plans/Risk Assessments are either included 
with the TEN submission. 

16.12 Where the TEN includes the supply of alcohol, the responsibility for the supply rests with the person 
giving the Notice (the ‘premises user’).  The premises user does not have to be on the premises for 
the entire duration of the event but will be liable for any offences committed. 

 
 
 

16.130 Further advice on Temporary Events is available on our website at 
www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing or on the Home Office website at 

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/alcohol-licensing#temporary-events. Organisers should also read 

‘Safety Advisory Groups’ (Section 4.4) as certain higher risk TENs may be relevant to this 
process. 

 
17.0 PUBWATCH 
 
17.1 The Licensing Authority will support members of the licensed trade in the formulation and facilitation of 
Pubwatch. At the time of this review, one PubWatch is in existence in Barnstaple. 

 
 

18.0 INITIATIVES 
 
The Licensing Authority strongly support the following initiatives: 
 
18.1 Targeting violence against women and girls in the evening and night time economy  
(Devon and Cornwall Police: Project Nighteye) 
 
Premises Licence Holders, Designated Premises Supervisors, Personal Licence Holders and staff in licensed 
premises working in the evening and night time economy should be aware of the type of behaviours exhibited 
by perpetrators of violence against women and girls and when to report these to Devon and Cornwall Police.  
 
If you hear about, see, or someone tells you about concerning behaviour, the Licensing Authority strongly 
supports that you take action according to your management guidance, policy or event control instructions, 
this might include dialling 999 and alerting police who may be on patrol or on site. The following form some 
examples of behaviours of perpetrators: 

 
• Males loitering without reason and / or persistently returning to an area after being asked to leave 
• Males persistently making unwanted contact towards females 

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Page 48

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

33 

 

• Males blocking females from leaving a space, venue, event, or area 
• Males making lewd comments or unwanted sexual advances towards females 
• Males trying to isolate females and / or taking them away by physically pulling or pushing 
• Following / stalking behaviour 
• Particular concerns over behaviour of employees of the night-time economy who may have gained 
employment to deliberately target females 
• Vehicles loitering without reasons or circulating the evening and night-time economy or main routes 
out 
• Instances on social media discussing or highlighting the above experiences which appear not to 
have been reported to police. 

 
Once you have taken action the Police suggest using the Community Partnership Intel form to make 
reports, with as much detail as possible including, times, descriptions, locations, and vehicle registration 
details. Please let us know if there is any CCTV coverage, too. You can also tell the Police  about the above 
behaviours anonymously through Crimestoppers 0800 555 111. 
 
18.2 Ask for Angela 
 
Ask for Angela’ is a national scheme supported by bars, clubs, other licensed premises and events across 
North Devon in connection with Devon and Cornwall Police. The scheme is advertised by placing posters in 
key areas such as female toilets. For more posters please get in touch with your local policing team. 

The initiative allows people who feel unsafe, vulnerable or threatened to ask for help by approaching venue 
staff and using the “Angela” code word. 

This codeword will indicate to staff that the customer requires help with their situation and a trained member 
of staff can then assist them in accessing the discreet help they need. This might be through being reunited 
with a friend, seeing them to a taxi or by calling the venue security or police. 

We aim to provide a list of licensed premises supporting Ask for Angela here. 

In support of this initiative please ensure that ALL of your staff are briefed on this scheme.  They need to 

know why and what to do if someone at the bar ‘Asks for Angela’, which may include: 

 Offer to take the person asking for help to a part of a venue not in sight of the public or potential threat 

(staff room, kitchen, toilet). 

 Offer to call the person  a taxi or assist them in calling a friend/family member to come and collect 

them. 

 Where safe to do so (the person asking for help is out of sight and the staff consider it safe) request 

the person causing distress leaves the venue. 

 Ask the person in distress what it is they want to do?  (It might be they just want to alert staff that 

things are becoming uncomfortable and might need someone to keep watch whilst they collect 

possessions from the area they were seated). 

 Do not allow the person asking for help to leave the venue in sight of the person causing them 

distress as this could lead to them being followed out of the venue and placed at higher risk. 

 If the person causing distress becomes angry consider calling the police for assistance or follow your 

corporate policy on this issue. 

 
 

18.3 Anti Drink Spiking Initiatives 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm, Tab stops: Not at  2 cm

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.63 cm + Indent at:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Black,
Contextual Alternates

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Black,
Contextual Alternates

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Black,
Contextual Alternates

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Black,
Contextual Alternates

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 49

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

34 

 

Spiking is where someone adds drugs or alcohol to another person’s drink without them knowing, it is 
illegal. 
 

In reference to the Local Government Association (LGA) Guidance note on drink spiking prevention, this 
Licensing Authority expects licence holders and applicants to have a zero-tolerance policy towards drinks 
spiking.  This involves as a minimum ensuring all reports of spiking are acted upon and that all incidents 
of alleged spiking are recorded and reported to the police.  

 
The LGA has set some recommendations for licence holders, and we would expect our Licence holders 
to follow these where appropriate to their venues. 
 
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/lga-guidance-note-drink-spiking-prevention#recommended-
actions-for-licensed-premises- 
 
Applicants for new and variations of exiting licences as well as those submitting TENs are expected to 
work with the Police in order to consider actions needed to prevent drinks spiking in their venues/events  
 
Where its discretion is engaged this Licensing Authority will impose conditions on licences aimed at 
preventing drinks spiking, specifically any recommended by the police. 
 
18.4 Designated Driver Schemes 
 
This Licensing Authority will support schemes designed to raise awareness of the dangers of drink-driving 
among drivers and those which encourage the use of a designated driver as normal behaviour. Schemes 
may include the provision of free soft drinks by licensed premises as a reward for being such a designated 
driver. 

 
197. LATE NIGHT LEVY 
 
197.1 The  Late  Night  Levy  is a discretionary  power conferred  on  Licensing  Authorities  by Chapter 

2  of Part 2 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. This provision came into force 
on 31st October 2012 and enables a Licensing Authority to charge a levy on premises in the 
authority’s area which are licensed to sell alcohol late at night as a means of raising a financial 
contribution towards the costs of policing the late-night economy.  The levy applies to the whole of 
the Licensing Authority’s area. 

 
197.2 The levy will be payable by the holder of any premises licence or club premises certificate in the 

authority’s area which authorises the sale or supply of alcohol on any days during the ‘late night 
supply period’.  This is a period beginning at or after midnight and ending on or before 6am.  

 
197.3 The decision to introduce the levy is for the licensing authority to make.  Before making any such 

decision, the Licensing Authority must consult the Chief Officer of Police, the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and the holders of relevant late night licences or certificates.  Local residents can 
use existing channels and forums to put forward views and call for the implementation of the levy 
in their area if they wish to do so.  

 
197.4 The Licensing Authority must pay at least 70% of the net levy revenue to the police. A Licensing 

Authority can deduct the costs it incurs in connection with the introduction, administration, 
collection, variation and enforcement of the levy prior to the levy revenue being apportioned 
between the police and Licensing Authority. The licensing authority has discretion to exempt certain 
premises - prescribed by regulations - from the levy and to reduce the amount of the levy by 30% 
for premises which participate in business-led best practice schemes. 

 
197.5 At the time of approving this Policy, this Authority has taken no decision to implement the Late Night 

Levy but is aware that it is a power which it can use if it considers it appropriate for the promotion 
of the licensing objectives.   

 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Page 50

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a

https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/lga-guidance-note-drink-spiking-prevention#recommended-actions-for-licensed-premises-
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/lga-guidance-note-drink-spiking-prevention#recommended-actions-for-licensed-premises-


 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

35 

 

197.6 The Authority will review the need for a Late Night Levy at least every five years in conjunction with 
the review of this policy.  The Authority will, however, consider the introduction of a Late Night Levy 
at any time if circumstances change and evidence supports this course of action.  

 

2018. EARLY MORNING RESTRICTION ORDERS 
 
2018.1  Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMROs) are a discretionary licensing power conferred on 

Licensing Authorities by s.119 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act. and came into 
force on 31st October 2012.  This power enables a Licensing Authority to prohibit the sale of alcohol 
for a specified time period between the hours of midnight and 6 a.m. in the whole or part of its area 
if it is satisfied that this would be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
2018.2  EMROs are designed to address recurring problems such as high levels of alcohol-related crime 

and disorder in specific areas at specific times, serious public nuisance and other instances of 
alcohol-related anti-social behaviour which are not directly attributable to specific premises. 

 
2018.3  The decision to implement an EMRO must be evidence based.  Evidence will be considered 

from partners including Responsible Authorities and local Community Safety Partnerships 
alongside the Authority’s own evidence to determine whether an EMRO is appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives.  

 
2018.4 Measures that may be considered in advance of making an EMRO include: 

 

 introducing a Cumulative Impact Policy 

 reviewing licences of specific problem premises 

 encouraging the creation of business-led practice schemes in the area and 

 the other mechanisms designed for controlling cumulative impact see 8.4 

 encouraging licence or certificate holders to make variations with respect of hours for   
     licensable activities. 
 

2018.5  The only exemptions relating to EMROs are premises which are authorised to sell alcohol 
between midnight and 6.00 am on New Year’s Eve and the provision of alcohol to residents in 
premises with overnight accommodation by means of mini bars and room service. 

 
2018.6 At the time of approving this Policy, this Authority has taken no decision to introduce an EMRO 
but is aware that it is a power which it can use if it considers it appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.   
 
2018.7 The Authority will review the need for an EMRO at least every five years in conjunction with the 

review of this policy.   The Authority will consider the introduction of an EMRO at any time if 
circumstances change and evidence supports this course of action. 

 
2119. PERSONAL LICENCE 
 
2119.1 The Police have the right to object to a person applying for a personal licence if that person 

has a relevant unspent conviction (at the time of application) or if they obtain a relevant conviction 
during the application period of their licence. 

 
2119.2 The Licensing Authority can revoke or suspend a licence in relation to convictions obtained 

after 6 April 2017. 

 
220 FEES 

 
220.1 Following amendments that came into force in October 2012 the Act requires a licensing authority 

to suspend a premises licence or club premises certificate if the annual fee is not paid when it is 
due. 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1 cm, First line:  0 cm

Page 51

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

36 

 

220.2  It is the practice of this Authority to issue an invoice for annual maintenance fee. Non payment 
will then result in a suspension notice being served. Regulations state that the premises licence or 
club premises certificate holder will be given notice of a suspension that is at least 2 working days 
before the suspension is to take place.  

 
220.3 The Authority will not generally refund fees for licence applications, particularly where the Authority 

has incurred costs in accepting and processing applications.  Each case will, however, be decided 
on merit.       

  

 

231. EQUALITY AND HUMAN RIGHTS ISSUES 
 

23.1   We want North Devon to be a place where people have equal access to opportunities and where 
inequality is actively tackled. The Licensing Authority recognises that this can only be done by 
working with our partners to advance equality, promote good community relations and tackle 
discrimination.   

 
(i) 23.2 In developing this policy, the Authority recognises its responsibilities under the Equality Act 
2010, to consider the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination and to promote equal opportunities. 
The Policy therefore supports and is supported by North Devon’s Equality Scheme and any equality 
issues will be addressed in an Equality Impact and Needs Assessment. 

 
(ii)(i) 23.3The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human Rights and 

makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way that is incompatible with a convention right. 
The Authority will have regard to the Human Rights Act when exercising its licensing functions. 

  
(iii)(i) 2.4 Conditions relating to disabled access will not be attached to licences, as this would duplicate 

existing statutory requirements. The Authority therefore takes this opportunity to remind holders of 
premises licences and club premises certificates of their duties under the Equality Act 2010.  

 
 
Duties as a Licence Holder or Applicant to Equality 
 
23.5  Applicants and licensees must make themselves familiar with the law and their responsibilities set out 

within the Equality Act 2010 and relevant guidance for businesses, which can be found on the Equality 
& Human Rights Commission website.  The 2010 Act makes discrimination against any person 
(including employees and customers) unlawful. The 2010 Act defines the relevant protected 
characteristics as age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation.  Any activity in breach of the 2010 Act 
may be considered an offence and will lead to enforcement by the Equality and Human Rights 
Commission.  

 
23.6 There is no one size fits all approach to making a venue inclusive, and each operator will need to 

make an assessment of its own practices and policies. However, the following are common and best 
practice examples that could be adopted:  

 

 Inclusive and transparent policies (for example, admittance policies may clearly stipulate 
adherence to a dress code and refusal if there are concerns about a customer; however, they 
must not prevent admittance based on any of the protected characteristics). 

 Robust complaints procedures that make it easy for customers who feel they have been 
discriminated against to raise their concerns and understand how this will be investigated or 
managed.  

 Accessible venue layouts that make venues welcoming.  

 Comprehensive training on equality and inclusion for all staff, which is regularly refreshed. 
 

 
23.7 Public Sector Equality Duty 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0 cm

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0 cm, Tab stops: Not at  2
cm

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.62 cm, Hanging:  1.38 cm

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Not
Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Not
Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2 cm,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  1.01 cm

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Page 52

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

37 

 

 
The Council must have regard to its public sector equality duty under the 2010 Act.  In summary a 
Public Authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to:  

 eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other conduct that is prohibited by or 
under this Act.  

 advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and persons who do not share it.  

 foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons 
who do not share it.  

 
 

 
242. CONTACT DETAILS 

 

The COVID-19 pandemic demonstrated the need for good contact details, particularly digital ones of licence 
holders.  We held a seminar for the licensed trade and through this we found that many contact details, 
particularly email addresses were either incorrect or those of the solicitors who dealt with the original 
application at the time. This can cause issue for licence holders when we notify them of their annual fee with 
letters sometimes going to solicitors rather than a licence holder. 

 

As such, we expect applicants to include the correct correspondence address for the proposed licence 
holder in their application, and to include an email address.  We also expect licence holders to keep this 
Licensing Authority up to date should either their address, telephone number or email address change. 

 
This will ensure that if needed the Licensing Authority can contact licence holders promptly and it will help to 
avoid unnecessary suspensions of licences where a reminder letter was not received by a licence holder. 
 

25. FURTHER INFORMATION 

 
252.1 Contact details of the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities are available from  

www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing 
 
252.2 Further information and guidance on the Act can be viewed on the Authority’s website at 

www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing.  Application forms can be downloaded from the site or 
electronic applications submitted online. 

 
252.3 Further information on alcohol and entertainment licensing is available on the Home Office 

website at www.gov.uk 
  

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Page 53

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a

http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing


 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

38 

 

       APPENDIX A – GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 

 
Alcohol, authorised sale of  
- it is a mandatory condition of a Premises Licence that every supply of alcohol must be made or  authorised by a 
person who holds a Personal Licence. 

 
Alcohol, retail sale of 
defined by the Act (s.192) as any sale of alcohol other than to: 

 
- a trader for the purposes of his trade 
- a club which holds a Club premises certificate for the purposes of the Club 
- the holder of a Personal Licence for the purpose of making sales authorised by a Premises Licence 
- the holder of a Premises licence for the purpose of making sales authorised by that licence, or 
  to the premises user in relation to a Temporary Event Notice for the purpose of making sales    
  authorised by that Notice. 
  and which is made for consumption off the premises. 

Appeal 
- the Act provides for right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against a decision of the Licensing Authority.  
Appeals must be brought within 21 days of notification of the Authority’s decision. 
 
Authorised Person 
- an officer of the Licensing Authority who has been authorised by the Authority – generally for the purposes of 
inspection and/or enforcement – under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003; 
- an inspector appointed under s.18 of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974; 
- an office of the local authority exercising a statutory function in relation to pollution control or harm to human 
health; 
- in relation to a vessel, an inspector or surveyor of ships appointed under s.256 of the Merchant Shipping Act 
1995; 
- a person prescribed under s.13 (2) of the Act. 

 
British Board of Film Classification 
- the body responsible for determining the age rating of films screened in the UK.  Current ratings are: 
U    –  generally suitable for audiences over 4 years of age 
PG  – suitable for general viewing but some scenes may be unsuitable for young children 
12A – suitable for children aged 12 years and over 
18   -  suitable only for adults 

 
Club Premises Certificate 
- A certificate authorising the use of premises by a qualifying club for one or more club activities. 

 
Designated Premises Supervisor 
- The individual specified in the premises licence as the premises supervisor. - in relation to premises selling 
alcohol, the person (who must hold a Personal Licence, who will normally have been given the day to day 
responsibility for running the premises by the holder of the Premises Licence or will be the Premises Licence 
holder himself. 

 
Hearing  
  - a meeting of a Licensing sub-Committee – generally held in public - to determine an application for a Premises 
Licence where relevant representations have been received from a Responsible Authority or an interested party.  
The hearing will be held before a licensing ‘panel’ comprising three members of the Licensing Committee who will 
hear evidence from the applicant and from the objectors. 

 
Hot Food or Hot Drink  
  - food or drink supplied on or from any premises is “hot” for the purposes of Schedule 2 to the Act if  the food or 
drink, or any part of it: 
(i) before it is supplied, is heated on the premises or elsewhere for the purpose of enabling it to be consumed at a 
temperature above the ambient air temperature and, at the time of supply, is above that temperature, or 
(ii) after it is supplied, may be heated on the premises for the purpose of enabling it to be consumed at a 
temperature above the ambient air temperature. 

 
 

Page 54

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

39 

 

 
 

Late Night Refreshment  
   - the provision, between 11 pm and 5 am, of hot food or hot drink, to members of the public or a section of the 
public on or from any premises, whether for consumption on or off the premises between 11 pm and 5 am, or-at 
any time between those hours when members of the public, or a section of the public, are admitted to any 
premises, a person supplies, or holds himself willing to supply, hot food or hot drink to any persons, or to persons 
of a particular description, on or from those premises, whether for consumption on or off the premises. 

 
Licensing Committee 
- The committee established by the licensing authority to discharge the licensing functions of the authority. 

 
Licensing Hours 
- The hours during which authorised licensable activities take place. 

 
Licensing Qualification 
- A qualification accredited or certified by the Secretary of State. 

 
Operating Schedule  
- a document containing a statement including the following matters: 

 

 the relevant licensable activities 

 the times at which the licensable activities are to take place and any other times when premises are open to 
the public 

 information regarding the person who will be specified in the Premises Licence as the Premises Supervisor 

 where the licensable activities involve the supply of alcohol, whether it is for the supply on and/or off the 
premises 

 the steps being taken to promote the licensing objectives. 
 

Personal Licence 
- A licence which authorises an individual to supply or authorise the supply of alcohol in accordance with a 

premises licence.. 

 
Premises Licence 
-  A licence authorising premises to be used for one or more licensable activities. 

 
Qualifying Club 
- in order to be a ‘qualifying club’ for the purposes of the Act, a club must meet the following criteria: 

 

 a person must not be admitted to membership or enjoy the privileges of membership without a period of at 
least 48 hours between their application for membership and their admission, 

 the club must be established in good faith as club, and 

 the club must have at least 25 members. 
 

(NB.  A proprietary club (i.e. a commercial club which is established and operated for profit) cannot be regarded 
as a ‘qualifying club’ for the purposes of the Licensing Act 2003). 

 
Relevant Persons 
- References to relevant persons in relation to any premises are references to the following:  

 the Chief Officer of Police for any police area in which the premises are situated, 

 the local authority by which statutory functions are exercisable in any area in which the premises are situated 
in relation to minimising or preventing the risk of pollution of the environment or of harm to human health (i.e. 
the Council’s Environmental Protection and Health and Safety Teams). 
 

Responsible Authorities 
- the public bodies that must be fully notified of applications and that are entitled to make relevant representations 
to the licensing authority in relation to the grant, variation, minor variation or review of a premises licence. (See 
Appendix C) 
 
Temporary Event Notice 
- a Notice authorising a permitted temporary activity involving one or more licensable activities subject to certain 
conditions and limitations.  
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

 North Devon Council 
Licensing Statement of Licensing Policy 2024-2029approved 21.11.18 

40 

 

Zoning 
- The adoption of fixed terminal hours in designated areas. 

 

Page 56

Agenda Item 6
Appendix a



 

Licensing Act 2003 Policy Review 2023 Consultation Responses 

 

*Comments by report author in regard to those responses received are found in italic 

font and below relevant responses.  

 

Webform responses (17) follow: 

 

1.Are you representing an organisation? 

 Yes (5) 
 

 No (12) 
 
 
2.Is the Policy easy to understand? 

 Yes (14) 
 

 No (3) 
 
3.If you answered 'no' please say why not. 
 

 Not easy reading. Not easy understanding. 

 

 Overly detailed and complex.  

 

 It appeared convoluted in some places and overly wordy.  

 

It is believed that the legislation concerned is complex and as a result the 

policy is required to be sufficiently detailed to cover a number of important 

areas which need clarity. It is not believed it is overly detailed. The level of 

detail provided is of a similar nature to other local authorities policies 

nationally. Prior to the subsequent recommendation to Strategy and 

Resources Committee further work will be undertaken to examine whether the 

language can be shortened or simplified without losing its meaning. It is 

understood new software is now available to assist with this aim.  

4.Paragraph 5.1.6 (of the proposed policy revision) has been amended to 
reflect the Licensing Authority's learned experience of issues with licensed 
premises enforcement, and concerns with licensed premises being run behind 
the scenes by persons who may not otherwise be able to possess a licence 
themselves.  The Licensing Authority is proposing to support representations 
made by the Police with regard to the crime prevention objective and would 
likely refuse an application made to the Authority.  Do you have any comments 
or suggestions? 

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



 Agree 

 

 Fully endorse any additional control to prevent abuse of the law  

 

 Not easily to prove.  

 

This is certainly the position, and largely forms the rationale for this addition.   

 

 None  

 

 No  

 

 I think the police should have the right to refuse any application which they 

deem to be unsuitable and to prevent further criminal activities taking place.  

 

The legislation does not facilitate this.  

 

 No 

 

 All premises should be run accountably.  

 

Agreed, and due to the omission in the legislation the new paragraph is 

suggested. 

 

 It is good that this has been identified and that representations will be 

considered. 

 

 Thank you for addressing this in the revised policy. 

5.Paragraph 5.2 (of the proposed policy revision) a form to assist persons 

wishing to make a representation online Make a representation 

(northdevon.gov.uk).  Do you have any comments or suggestions on the form? 

 

 No 

 

 No 

 

 Make it easy to fill in and not a tick box excercise beloved of bureaucracy.  

 

It is believed that it is easy to fill in and it is solely an option available, as those 

wishing to can still write to the licensing authority directly without utilising the 

form. 

 

 I couldn't easily see how to save and amend it.  

 

It is a standard Word form that can be saved and amended. 

Page 58

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b

https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/entertainment-and-alcohol-licences/make-a-representation/
https://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/entertainment-and-alcohol-licences/make-a-representation/


 

 It helps to concentrate the mind on the Licensing Objectives but does not 

leave space for context which may be helpful for a none standard application.  

 

If an application is deemed to be non-standard by the individual seeking to 

make representation, there is an option to email the licensing authority 

directly. An extra box will also be inserted which cites ‘any other comments’. 

6.Paragraph 5.4 (of the proposed policy revision) lists new example conditions 

to be met when making Mobile, Remote, Internet and Other Delivery Sales. Do 

you have any comments or suggestions on the example conditions? 

 Agree 

 

 Agree that we need to move with the times 

 

 No  

 

 To involvedneeds to be firmly enfotced 

 

 Yes 

 

 How does the responsibility fall should a delivery driver fail to challenge 25 

and/or delivers to a minor.  

Stock return/processes of events upon refusal. 

S151 of the Licensing Act cites a person who works on relevant premises in 
any capacity, whether paid or unpaid, commits an offence if he knowingly 
delivers to an individual aged under 18— 
(a)alcohol sold on the premises, or 
(b)alcohol supplied on the premises by or on behalf of a club to or to the order 
of a member of the club. 
 
Responsibility in regard failure to challenge 25 and any offence will be 
dependent upon on the conditions imposed on the licence. 

 

 No 

 

 Does this assume all companies will deliver and not get a third party to 

deliver?  Third party companies may be less likely to check ages.  The other 

conditions seem sensible to ensure awareness of restrictions and the product 

This is not assumed. Example conditions are provided in the policy which cover 
third party delivery such as: 
 
Every third party courier delivery box shall be labelled with the words “Age 
Restricted Product”. 
 

Page 59

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



There shall be mechanism either by an App or on the delivery package to show 
the delivery driver is aware it is an age restricted product to ensure ID checks 
are made upon delivery of alcohol.  
 

 Residential or business "premises" rather than "address".  Some businesses 

just have PO Boxes or the address could be that of a carpark with no secure 

buildings. 

 

One of the example conditions cites: Alcohol shall only be delivered to a 
residential or business address and not to a public place or vehicle. 

 

7.Paragraph 9.4 (of the proposed policy revision) now includes the Licensing 

Authority's stance in respect of the protection of children.  For example where 

its discretion is engaged the Licensing Authority will consider 

refusal/revocation in the first instance where test purchases have found 

venues selling age restricted products to children. Do you have any comments 

or suggestions on this? 

 

 Agree  

 

 Fully support.  

 

 Underage drinking has always been an issue an is a precursor to further anti-

social behaviour  

 

 No  

 

 Difficult to understand what is meant  

 

 Unclear in regard to vapes & bulk buying/re-selling.  

 

 

Vapes are an age restricted product and will be included. It was not believed 

necessary to document different products for simplicity of reading. This 

section solely relates to children and bulk buying for re-sale is not included, 

this area moves into whether any offence committed is a relevant offence 

under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

 No 

 

 I would have thought that evidence of supplying age restricted products to 

children would prevent a license being issued.  

 

A licence may have already been granted hence the need to include 

revocation. 

Page 60

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



 

8.Paragraphs 11.2 and 11.3 (of the proposed policy revision) provide new 

information regarding psychoactive substances and the view taken by the 

Licensing Authority whereby persons are seen to be using or selling these 

substances. Do you have any comments or suggestions on the addition of 

psychoactive substances? 

 Agree  

 

 The law should be as strict as possible in these circumstances 

 

 No 

 

 There is no restriction in Braunton with the late night establishments all 

allowing the sale and distributionn of psychoactive substances, its known and 

you can see it going on in the bars and behind the public houses,  no police 

are ever patrolling in Braunton which has a high degree of late night revellers 

all enjoying the 1.00 am late closing at XXXX.  It gets more prevalent all the 

time.  The dealers are all resident in the village and whilst we residents are 

aware of who they are, clearly no-one in authority is doing anything about 

curbing the sales of illegal substances, even offering delivery to Croyde and 

holiday camps nearby.  

It is believed this comment possibly relates to drugs rather than psychoactive 

substances, and this will be passed to Police colleagues.  

 

 Strict enforcement necessary 

 I think all licensed premises, licensee’s need to be held accountable for any 

misuse of drugs that occur on their premises. 

There also needs to be regular policing of premises where this is suspected. 

 

 Yes 

Great addition but places uncertainties on shops that sell balloons etc, while 

this is not the substance itself they are often key to their consumption.  

 

Agreed but it is not believed that this can be included in the policy as those 

premises selling balloons may well not require any form of licence. 

 

 No 

 

 As above I would have thought knowing allowing illegal activity would lose 

your license.  

 

This paragraph relates to the refusal of persons using these substances into 

licensed premises and not the licensees themselves.  

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



9.Paragraph 18.0 (of the proposed policy revision) now lists the initiatives 

supported by the Licensing Authority to target violence against women and 

girls in the evening and night time economy.  These include; Project Nighteye, 

Ask for Angela, Designated Driver Schemes and Anti-Drink Spiking 

Initiatives.  Do you have any comments or suggestions on the addition of 

these initiatives? 

 Agree 

 

 Violence also occurs against men and this policy should not be gender 

specific.  

 

The Government has specifically selected violence against women and girls 

as a strategy due to data which exists regarding crimes. 

 

 The law should be as strict as possible in these circumstances 

 

 More police presence at weekends and during holiday periods 

 

 Active help must be seen to available and not just words 

 

 Inclusion of smaller stores and bottle shops  

Response times to these 999 calls. 

 

 This policy should also include violence against men too.  

 

The Government has specifically selected the prevention of violence against 

women and girls as a strategy due to data which exists regarding crimes. 

Other areas of the policy include crimes more broadly. 

 

 Get the police to walk the beat  

 

 It is good that awareness is being raised regarding the types of behaviour that 

constitute a possible risk of violence against women as many still do not see 

these behaviours as unacceptable.  It all raises awareness and helps to 

change minds and habits in the long run. 

 

Comments relevant to the police above, will be passed to Devon and Cornwall 

Police Licensing. 

 

10.Paragraph 24.0 (of the proposed policy revision) the requirement for licence 

holders to keep their contact details up-to-date and notify the Licensing 

Authority of a change of address, change to an email address, telephone or 

mobile number. Do you agree with the requirement to give up-to-date contact 

details?  

Page 62

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



 Yes: (16) 

 

 No: (0) 

It is noted that despite the numerous letters sent by way of the consultation, very 

little response has been made further to the suggestion to contact the authority 

with a suitable email for newsletters and communications. As such despite a 

change to national legislation it is unlikely that the licensing authority will be 

fruitful in its aim with para 24. 

 

12. Are there any other comments you would like to make in respect of the 
Policy?  If you have none please enter none. 
 

 Enforcement is the key to this. 

 

 Reassuring to see that measures are being taken and now the changes need 

to be monitered and any transgressions acted upon swiftly 

 

 Active enforcement of policy necessary not just words 

 

 Will there be any training materials/info packs for these new changes before 

they become law. Any amended policy will not become ‘law’.  

Updates will be made available on the Council’s website and through other 
means such as via Barnstaple PubWatch. 
 

 With regard to open venues, e.g. music events and beer gardens, there is 
little regard to the impact on: 
a) the environment with noise pollution, light pollution (and even sewage and 
litter). Birds, bats etc will be impacted.  
 
Whilst nuisance is a licensing objective, the ‘protection of the environment’ is 
not, and this is something which has been lobbied for by this Licensing 
Authority (by way of a letter to the Home Office) in recent times. 
 
b) human health, specifically noise related hearing damage. There is no limit 
on the decibel level that can be experienced in a venue, especially important 
for developing neurology. I have seen children wearing ear defenders in 
venues but this is not the norm, and babies are frequently in venues with no 
hearing protection, accompanied by adults enjoying loud music and often 
under the influence of alcohol so their judgement about the health of their 
children is compromised. Anecdotally, people will often report that their ears 
are ringing after attending a venue. That indicates that the damage is done 
and by then it is irreperable.  
 
Health is not a licensing objective under the Act. 
 
To prevent hearing damage, I suggest mandatory noise level monitoring and 

Page 63

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



all music to be less than 90dB at 3m away from speakers. 
Same applies to noise pollution effect on wildlife. For light pollution 
prevention, no lasers or upward facing lighting of any kind. 
 
A new paragraph at 3.4.4 has been included to cover light pollution reflecting 
that found in the Section 182 guidance.  
 

 I like pubs. It must be really hard to run one in today's climate. Please don't 
add to the load that publicans have by increasing bureaucracy just to please 
the government. 
 

 The on sales off sales seems confusing and the government aren't making it 
any clearer.  
 
There has been a change of position from the Government and it is noted 
that the Home Office issued an update on 14/08/23 in reference to the 
policy change relating to Regulatory Easements.  In its update, the Home 
Office confirmed that "the Government has decided to extend the alcohol 
licensing regulatory easements relating to off-sales, set out in the 
Business and Planning Act 2020 (BPA), until 31 March 2025." 
 
In 1.2 it seems to say plays, music etc are regulated entertainment then in 
4.5.5 no license is needed under certain circumstances.  I found this 
confusing 
 
This is the legal position, and officers would agree that this area is confusing.  
 
Nuisance is mentioned but not defined.  One person's fun is another's 
nuisance. 
 
Nuisance is defined in the Section 182 Guidance and in the policy at 3.4. A 
new paragraph at 3.4.1 is now also included to better define this within the 
policy document. 
 
If conditions are imposed when issuing a license they should be followed up 
on.  If non compliance is detected punitive punishments should follow.  It's the 
only way to licensees to take their responsibility seriously. 
 
Consideration must be given, by the applicant, to the areas and impact (5.3.3) 
but is any check done regarding the suitability of the venue for the use 
planned to take place either structurally or culturally? 

 

 From Croyde Area Residents Association (CARA): It is understood that 
Georgeham Parish Council have made representations regarding recent 
licensed premises applications in the Parish so CARA will not repeat that.   
 
Smaller rural community and more remote areas with sensitive landscapes 
would probably suit more tailored conditions specific to the particular location.  
Especially unusual ones such as where you have outside seating only and  
are next to open countryside where sound travels or very close to a rocky 

Page 64

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



access to the beach.   
 
With a rural village which is a tourist destination - the centre of the village has 
the concentration of pubs cafes and shops.  The rest is mostly residential 
housing.  Noise travels far in these sort of areas - especially Croyde which is 
bowl shaped in topography.  The village is also a place where people live and 
work and go to school.  The recent move towards licences for alcohol and 
music events regularly in the quieter residential areas of the Parish affects the 
quality of life and also the quality of holiday experience for many who visit to 
enjoy peace and tranquility and care should be taken in assessing the 
implications of such licenses longer term. TENs licenses may be an option or 
more specifically tailored conditions to meet the individual circumstances.  
 
Thought also needs to be given to whether fields that are used for seasonal 
camping in an AONB should be licensed premises as that may ultimately lead 
to a change in character of an area when that change should be dictated by 
planning law and the granting of an alcohol license.  TENs licenses may 
therefore be a more appropriate tool in these circumstances rather than 
granting a license effectively for ever and applying conditions.  
 
 I would also be helpful to acknowledge that a significant proportion of North 
Devon is in the AONB or National Park and there may well be tensions 
between protection of the natural environment and encouraging business and 
a clear high level strategic policy addressing this potential conflict would be 
helpful.   
 
The definition of nuisance given in 3.4.1 is welcome and could include 
reference to aggressive and intimidatory behaviour. 
 

 The definition of nuisance updated to include an additional paragraph. 
Aggressive and intimidatory behaviour is one of those areas which may, 
depending on the situation, fall to the definition of crime and disorder.  
 

 Members may want to consider the inclusion of an additional section, for 
areas perceived as sensitive, by way of their AONB designation or similar, 
albeit further advice provided to members below in respect of this (see 
Georgeham Parish Council representation). 

 

Comments received directly (6): 

 

1. We have a very small bar turning over around £1500 per annum, so think you 
should base your fee on turnover and NOT rateable value. 

 
Thank you for providing an opportunity to comment on this proposed policy 

document. 

 Fees are prescribed under the Act and they are based upon rateable value. 

2. Dear Sir/Madam, 

Page 65

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



 

Witheridge Parish Council considered your correspondence below when it 

met last week and resolved as detailed in the exert from its minutes:- 

7.4. NDC- Consultation on Revised Licensing Act 2003 Statement of 

Licensing Policy. 

RESOLVED. Cllr Northam proposed, Cllr Dorow seconded and all were in 

favour supporting the draft policy, specifically proposals detailed below being 

prioritised as mandatory not “suggested”:-  

 Event Management 

 Risk Assessment requirements 

 Neighbour Disturbance 

 Local Consultation 

The Licensing Authority is unable to mandate any areas which are not 

similarly prescribed in the Licensing Act 2003. 

3. Hi as a former premises licence holder could I please make the following 

comments. 

 

Transfer of licence is an over complex procedure which includes several 

forms – this should be reduced to one more straight forward form – including 

instead of having to repeat certain area such as addresses this should give 

the option ‘ as in section (1)’ for example.all of which we have to do on line- 

which brings me to point 2:- 

This is agreed, however the legislation prescribes the process and statutory 

application forms.  

The council in general sends out paperwork- I received the exact same letter 

twice one because I am (was) licensee and one because of gaming machines 

( by post) when one email would suffice – saving the council and 

consequently constituents quite alot of money. 

Agreed hence the inclusion of paragraph 24 re contact details, however due 

to this not being a requirement for licence holders the position of repeated and 

duplicate paperwork may remain.  

( My replacement as Licensee also received 2 copies by post thought this was 

probable due to transition.) 

 

4. Hi 

 

Have quickly read the draft policy, and noted that 18.1 does not read 

correctly,  

violence is spelt wrong, and should it be womens and girls in the evening an? 

Page 66

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



 

Regards 

 

This has been updated. 

 

 

5. Response from Georgeham Parish Council: 

 

The Policy document refers to: 

 

1. Standard licensed premises conditions and advice which GPC agrees is a 
helpful and sensible approach in the majority of cases.  
Where locations are environmentally sensitive such as being located in 

remoter rural areas or adjacent to countryside, beaches, cliffs in the Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty or close to SSSI’s more tailor made conditions 

may be appropriate. Licensing premises to sell alcohol is also ultimately a 

land use and may in certain situations be in direct conflict with the AONB 

designation or the permitted planning use of the land.  

It would be clearer if this was acknowledged somewhere in the policy. This 

would help prevent any misunderstanding that if you have a premises licence 

you are then all set to go when there is planning permission that needs to be 

obtained.  

There are situations where granting a license for alcohol to be sold on 

premises could cause harm to the AONB. For example where the seating is 

outside in open countryside next to hedgerows. In this situation the licensing 

criteria would dictate bright lighted areas for safety but the AONB 

considerations would be for dark skies and protection of natural habitats. 

 

A new paragraph at 3.4.4 has been included to cover light pollution reflecting 
that found in the Section 182 guidance.  
 
There are clearly some areas of North Devon which are more environmentally 

sensitive than others. This could be acknowledged in the Policy document 

with reference to careful thought being given to more tailor made licensing 

conditions that also respect NDDC’s statutory duty to protect and enhance the 

AONB ; 

2. Risk rating premises – this again is a sensible approach provided the full 
gamut of risks are appreciated.  
High risk factors in relation to licenses in smaller rural or coastal communities 

could include 

a) Remoteness of location from emergency services – this makes 
such rural/coastal areas higher risk to public safety if alcohol and 
other substances are not robustly dealt with by establishments on 
site as emergency services are not readily available; 
 

Page 67

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



b) Barriers to emergency services eg blocked single track roads at 
busy times – again higher risk to public safety as emergency 
services cannot get through. Last week it took a concrete lorry over 
1.5 hours to get to Putsborough because of cars parked on the 
highway blocking the access to and from Putsborough beach. What 
if there had been a fire in a licensed premises or a medical 
emergency in that sort of location; 

 

c) Close proximity to natural hazards eg cliffs, sea, unlit uneven 
surfaces (NB AONB so need to minimise light pollution) – again 
higher risk to public safety 

 

The Licensing Team will be aware that there have been a number of Licensing 

applications in Georgeham Parish over the past couple of years – some of which 

have been fairly unique in what they proposed. These were all located in the 

North Devon Coast Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty – including some being 

in highly prominent/sensitive locations: 

 

1. Application for licensed premises where all the seating is open air and alcohol 
is served from a separate bar area. The location is away from the village 
centre, next to open countryside on the one side and residential area on the 
other. Also next to a busy road and the southern access route to the SW 
Coast Path, Croyde Bay Beach and the cliffs. Specific conditions tailored to 
address this were agreed ; 

2. Application for a premises license for a horse box parked in a car park (whose 
permitted use is a car park only) with no seating or sanitation or waste 
disposal provision for customers. The reliance for seating, sanitary and waste 
provision appeared to be being placed on public and community funded 
seating areas, sanitation and waste disposal provisions, some way away. The 
proposal encouraged customers to consume alcohol while walking around. 
There was genuine concern that applications of this type indirectly 
encouraged sale of alcohol that is then quickly taken out of eyesight of the 
supplier who can then no longer monitor who actually drinks the alcohol. This 
application was withdrawn.  

3. Application for a large seasonal camping field in a sensitive open countryside 
area to be a licensed premises. Tailor made conditions attached to the 
licence. 
 

Conditions that have been negotiated recently have variously included 

1. No off sales from the premises  
2. Restrictions on hours of opening 
3. Only serving alcohol with food 
4. Enhanced first aid training for staff at the licensed premises 
5. For a large licensed area – qualified security staff 
6. Secure storage of alcohol and confiscated drugs 
7. Conditions regarding litter and clearing up 

Page 68

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



8. No high percentage alcohol beer cider or lager 
9. No plastic drinking vessels (Croyde Beach is meant to be plastic free and the 

owners work closely with Plastic Free North Devon) there is also impact on 
marine/coast wildlife from plastic and other litter 

10. Controls on lighting of the premises 
11. Reduced area for selling alcohol on the premises and specification of what 

entrances/exits are to be used by customers/monitoring of those customer 
exits/entrances to prevent removal of alcohol from the premises. 

 

It is appreciated that this is a summary of what has happened in a small rural 

Parish but it may have some resonance for other areas with similar land 

characteristics and designations. 

If an alcohol license is granted for a defined premises, that license stays in 

perpetuity unless the terms of the license are breached and a review is initiated 

that results in the license being removed. It may be considered that the use of 

TENs licences is a preferable alternative to the granting of permanent premises 

licence to cover the desired activity. 

Finally the explanation of the interplay between having licensed premises and the 

right to play music is a welcome addition to the Policy as is the right of the LA to 

impose conditions regarding music. The imposition of conditions regarding 

playing of music when premises are licensed should be given special care and 

attention in quieter rural settings. “ 

The policy outlines that between certain hours the playing of live/recorded music 

is deregulated, and that the authority is unable to impose conditions in these 

instances unless an application for a review is received.  

Members may want to consider the inclusion of an additional section, for areas 
perceived as sensitive, by way of their AONB designation or similar, however 
members should exert caution in adding any further complexity to the application 
process as proposed. It is believed that the application process does work as 
intended and that this is demonstrated in the six most recent applications dealt 
with in the Croyde area, resulting in mediated amendments to applications and 
applications which have been withdrawn namely: 
 

Campsite application -withdrawn when representations were shared 
with the applicant who now facilitates alcohol sales by means of a TEN.  
 
Application - withdrawn when representations were shared with the 

applicant and no further application received. 

Tea room application- amended after mediation achieved prior to 

hearing when representations were shared with the applicant’s 

solicitor. 

Carpark application amended after mediation achieved prior to hearing 

when representations were shared with the applicant’s solicitor. 

Page 69

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b



Moveable premises proposed to be stationed in area - application 

withdrawn when representations were shared with the applicant and no 

further application received. 

Application - agreed after mediation achieved when representations 

were shared with the applicant. 

 
6. Response from Manager, North Devon Coast Areas of Outstanding Natural 

Beauty 

We would like to propose inclusion of the following aim in relation to the nationally 

designated Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  

Aim: Protection of the Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

 Have regard to the purpose of conserving and enhancing the natural beauty 
of the AONB. Natural beauty includes the landscape, geology, wildlife and 
cultural heritage of the areas. 

 Respect the special qualities of the AONB landscape including a strong sense 
of tranquillity, remoteness and the dark night skies that contribute to its natural 
beauty 

 Economic, social and recreational needs can be met within the designated 
AONB insofar as they are consistent with the conservation of natural beauty 

 
Our justification for this is as follows: 
 

 The Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 legislation 

 Section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way (CRoW) Act 2000 places a 
duty on all public bodies ‘to have regard to the purpose of conserving and 
enhancing the natural beauty’ of the AONB “in exercising or performing any 
functions in relation to or so as to affect land” and that includes the licensing 
function. 

 Section 92 of the CRoW Act clarifies that the conservation of natural beauty 
includes the conservation of ‘flora, fauna and geological and physiographical 
features’. 

 
By including the above aim, some account can be taken of the environmental impact 
of proposed activities in protected areas alongside the four existing key aims of the 
policy. 
 
We hope you can take this into account as part of your consultation process. 
We look forward to hearing from you and happy to respond to any further queries. 
 

Comments echo those made above, in that matters pertaining to the environment  

are not part of the Licensing Objectives stipulated under the Licensing Act 2003. 

There is concern that to go any further from the Licensing Objectives would stray into 

an unjustified approach which over steps the Licensing realm and into Planning and 

Environmental Health considerations.   

Page 70

Agenda Item 6
Appendix b


	Agenda
	2 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 4 July 2023 (attached)
	6 Review of Licensing Act 2003 Policy
	Appendix A Tracked Changes Policy
	Structure Bookmarks
	Part
	Span
	 
	Figure
	  
	 
	P
	Span
	 

	P
	Span
	 

	P
	Span
	 

	LICENSING ACT 2003


	Formatted: Left
	Span
	P
	Span
	Statement of Licensing Policy


	Span
	 

	Span
	Span
	P
	Span
	Tracked changes detail proposed policy


	Span
	amendments for consultation


	 

	Span
	Span
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Environmental Health and


	Housing Services


	Formatted: Indent: Left: 2 cm, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, No underline

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, No underline, Font color: Auto,

Subscript

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm
	Span
	Span
	 
	 
	 
	 
	  
	Table of Contents


	 
	 
	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	 
	 
	Topic 
	 

	 
	 
	Page




	TR
	Span
	1. Introduction 
	1. Introduction 

	4


	4




	TR
	Span
	2. Consultation 
	2. Consultation 

	6


	6




	TR
	Span
	3. The Licensing Objectives 
	3. The Licensing Objectives 

	6


	6




	TR
	Span
	4. The Licensing Function


	4. The Licensing Function


	 
	Counter Terrorism and Public Safety



	7


	7




	TR
	Span
	5. The Licensing Process 
	5. The Licensing Process 

	14


	14




	TR
	Span
	6. Licensing Hours 
	6. Licensing Hours 

	16


	16




	TR
	Span
	7. Licence Conditions 
	7. Licence Conditions 

	17


	17




	TR
	Span
	8. Cumulative Impact 
	8. Cumulative Impact 

	19


	19




	TR
	Span
	9. Enforcement 
	9. Enforcement 

	20


	20




	TR
	Span
	10. Children in Licensed Premises 
	10. Children in Licensed Premises 

	22


	22




	TR
	Span
	11. Drugs/Illegal Substances 
	11. Drugs/Illegal Substances 

	23


	23




	TR
	Span
	12. Door Supervisors 
	12. Door Supervisors 

	23


	23




	TR
	Span
	13. Vessels 
	13. Vessels 

	24


	24




	TR
	Span
	14. Licensing of Public Land 
	14. Licensing of Public Land 

	24


	24




	TR
	Span
	15. Beer Gardens or Other Outdoor Spaces 
	15. Beer Gardens or Other Outdoor Spaces 

	24


	24




	TR
	Span
	16. Temporary Activities 
	16. Temporary Activities 

	24


	24




	TR
	Span
	17. Late Night Levy 
	17. Late Night Levy 

	26


	26




	TR
	Span
	18. Early Morning Restriction Orders 
	18. Early Morning Restriction Orders 

	26


	26




	TR
	Span
	19. Personal Licence 
	19. Personal Licence 

	27


	27




	TR
	Span
	20. Fees 
	20. Fees 

	27


	27




	TR
	Span
	21. Equality Issues 
	21. Equality Issues 

	27


	27




	TR
	Span
	22. Further Information 
	22. Further Information 

	28


	28




	TR
	Span
	21. Appendices


	21. Appendices



	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	A Glossary 
	A Glossary 

	29
	29




	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	Span
	 
	  
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Span
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	Version 
	Version 

	32.0 
	32.0 

	Date reviewed 
	Date reviewed 

	June 202318


	June 202318




	TR
	Span
	Author


	Author



	 
	 
	K NichollsH Bee



	Next Review Date 
	Next Review Date 

	June 20283


	June 20283




	TR
	Span
	Approved by Strategy and

Resources Committee

Licensing


	Approved by Strategy and

Resources Committee

Licensing


	Committee



	Proposed

06.11.239.10.18


	Proposed

06.11.239.10.18



	Approved by Council 
	Approved by Council 

	Proposed: 221.11.2318


	Proposed: 221.11.2318






	Span
	Span
	Span
	 
	Licensing Statement of Policy 202419


	Licensing Act 2003


	 
	Published by


	 
	The Licensing Team


	Environmental Health & Housing Services


	North Devon Council


	Lynton House


	Commercial Road


	Barnstaple


	Devon


	EX31 1DG


	Published and Effective TBC: 7 January 2024


	 
	Telephone 01271 388870


	licensing@northdevon.gov.uk


	 
	www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing

Formatted: Font color: Red
	 
	1 INTRODUCTION


	 
	NB. This Policy is intended to provide general guidance only. It does not constitute a definitive statement of law.

Applicants who require legal advice on a specific licensing topic are advised to consult a licensing solicitor. Text in the

shaded boxes is advisory or explanatory and intended only to give general assistance.

 
	 
	1.1 Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires each Licensing Authority “to determine a policy with

respect to the exercise of its licensing functions”.


	 
	This Statement of Licensing Policy (“the Policy”) draws its authority from the Licensing Act 2003

("the Act") and has been prepared in accordance with revised Guidance issued by the Home Office

under section 182 of the Act in 6 April 2018.August 2023.


	 
	The Policy has four main purposes:


	 
	 to assist the Licensing Authority in determining licence applications in a consistent and

equitable manner,


	 to assist the Licensing Authority in determining licence applications in a consistent and

equitable manner,


	 to assist the Licensing Authority in determining licence applications in a consistent and

equitable manner,



	 to inform and advise applicants,


	 to inform and advise applicants,



	 to inform and advise residents and businesses, and


	 to inform and advise residents and businesses, and



	 to inform a court at appeal.


	 to inform a court at appeal.




	 
	1.2 The Policy relates to the licensable activities identified by the Act, namely: -


	 
	 Retail sale of alcohol


	 Retail sale of alcohol


	 Retail sale of alcohol



	 Supply of alcohol to club members


	 Supply of alcohol to club members



	 Provision of 'regulated entertainment' - to the public, to club members or with a view to profit.

Regulated entertainment is defined by the Act as:


	 Provision of 'regulated entertainment' - to the public, to club members or with a view to profit.

Regulated entertainment is defined by the Act as:




	 
	 A performance of play


	 A performance of play


	 A performance of play



	 An exhibition of a film


	 An exhibition of a film



	 An indoor sporting event


	 An indoor sporting event


	 An indoor sporting event



	 Boxing or wrestling entertainment


	 Boxing or wrestling entertainment



	 A performance of live music


	 A performance of live music



	 Any playing of recorded music


	 Any playing of recorded music



	 A performance of dance


	 A performance of dance



	 Entertainment of a similar description to live music, recorded music or dance.


	 Entertainment of a similar description to live music, recorded music or dance.




	 The supply of hot food and/or hot drink from any premises including mobile food stalls

between 11pm and 5 am.


	 The supply of hot food and/or hot drink from any premises including mobile food stalls

between 11pm and 5 am.




	 
	1.3 This Policy sets out those matters that North Devon District Council Licensing Authority (“the

Authority”) will normally take into account when determining licence applications. Additionally, the

document seeks to provide clarity for applicants, residents and members of the business

community, thus enabling them to make plans to move to, remain in or invest in the District with

some measure of certainty.


	  
	Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by s.122 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility

Act 2001) requires a Licensing Authority to prepare and publish a statement of its licensing policy every five

years. Such a policy must be published before the Authority carries out any function in respect of individual

applications made under the terms of the 2003 Act.

 
	 
	The Licensing Authority will keep this policy  statement under continual review and make such changes as it

feels are necessary in accordance with any changes in the legislation and with local circumstances. Where

revisions are made, the Authority will publish a statement of those revisions. 
	 
	 
	P
	1.4 The Licensing Authority Area


	 
	In being largely rural in character, and an area of outstanding natural beauty, North Devon, in

common with other parts of Devon, has much to offer its residents and visitors. The holiday and

entertainment industries, therefore, are major contributors to the economy of the district.


	 
	North Devon is 108,590 hectares (419 square miles) in size, and has an estimated resident

population of 99,4005,400(1),  of which 52,8% live in rural areas (1).comprised of in the region of

48,4195,766(2)  households. Of those residents 486,5800(1)  are male and 5048,9600(1)  are female.

 The median age of the resident population is 48 years of age.  With individuals aged 16 to 64

estimated to number 55,200(1).  The total population from minority ethnic groups in 2011 was 2.1%.In

2021, 91.8% of North Devon residents reported their country of birth as England(1).

 
	 
	 
	Almost half of the population lives in, or close to, Barnstaple, whilst there are smaller

concentrations of population at Braunton, Ilfracombe and South Molton. Holiday locations such as

Croyde and Woolacombe have national and international renown.


	 
	Despite the popularity and benefits of the area, however, the median gross weeklyannual pay for

employees in full time employment or part time employment (not including self-employed) in North

Devon for 202216 was £554, which is lower than the £642.20 national average (3).is £17,565(3)

some £5,519(3) below the median for all employees in the UK. The rate of unemployment is

2.53%(4) , which is 1.12%(4) lower than the national average.


	 
	At the time of preparing this Policy, the Authority has responsibility for regulating:


	 
	 64524 alcohol-licensed premises/clubs


	 64524 alcohol-licensed premises/clubs


	 64524 alcohol-licensed premises/clubs



	 676 non-alcohol-licensed premises


	 676 non-alcohol-licensed premises



	 36549 standard temporary events (202217 figure).


	 36549 standard temporary events (202217 figure).



	 12233 late temporary events ( 202217 figure)


	 12233 late temporary events ( 202217 figure)




	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Figure
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	  Data Sources

 
	1. 202117 Population estimates published by Office for National Statistics


	2. NDC derived figure for numbers of properties banded for Council Tax Figure 149.69.202318


	3. ONS annual survey of hours and earnings 2022 2017 Office for National Statistics population estimate

 
	4. Office of National Statistics Jan – Dec 2022April 2017 to March 2018 Office for National Statistics annual population survey
	P
	2. CONSULTATION


	 
	2.1 In preparing this Policy the Licensing Authority has consulted the following: -


	 
	 The Chief Officer of Police


	 The Chief Officer of Police


	 The Chief Officer of Police



	 Devon & Somerset Fire and Rescue Service


	 Devon & Somerset Fire and Rescue Service



	 Public Health Devon


	 Public Health Devon



	 Devon Safeguarding Children’s Board


	 Devon Safeguarding Children’s Board



	 Devon County Council Trading Standards


	 Devon County Council Trading Standards



	 Representatives of holders of premises licences issued by this authority


	 Representatives of holders of premises licences issued by this authority



	 Representatives of holders of Club premises certificates issued by this authority


	 Representatives of holders of Club premises certificates issued by this authority



	 Representatives of holders of Personal Licences issued by this authority


	 Representatives of holders of Personal Licences issued by this authority



	 Local businesses and their representatives


	 Local businesses and their representatives



	 Local residents and their representatives


	 Local residents and their representatives




	 
	2.2 Consultation took place for a period of 69 weeks, between 11 July 2023 – 22 August 20236 July

2018 to 17 September 201822 A a period considered taking into consideration the Consultation

Principles (November 2013) outlined by the Cabinet Office.


	 
	2.3 The approved policy will be published on our website. (
	2.3 The approved policy will be published on our website. (
	www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing
	www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing

	). Copies

will also be available for viewing at the Licensing Team’s Offices at North Devon Council, Lynton

House, Commercial Road, Devon, EX31 1DG.



	 
	2.4 Should you have comments regarding the Policy please write to the above address or email


	2.4 Should you have comments regarding the Policy please write to the above address or email


	licensing@northdevon.gov.uk 
	licensing@northdevon.gov.uk 

	.



	 
	2.5 Proper weight will be given to the views of organisations and individuals prior to implementing this

Policy.


	 
	2.6 This Policy was approved at a meeting of the Full Council on the 21 November 2018TBC: 22

November 2023 and published on our website as effective as of TBC: 7 January 2024.


	 
	2. 7 This Policy will remain in force for a maximum period of five years and will then be subject to review

and further consultation. The Authority may revise the Policy at any time during the five year period

if it considers it appropriate to do so. The Authority will consult on any substantial revisions to the

Policy.


	 
	Section 5(3) of the Act places a legal obligation on licensing authorities to consult the above individuals,

groups and organisations when determining and publishing its Statement of Licensing Policy. However, the

Authority may consult beyond the statutory requirements if it believes this is necessary and appropriate

 
	 
	3. THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES


	 
	3.1 The Authority has a duty under s.4 of the Act to carry out its licensing functions with the aim of

promoting the four licensing objectives. The objectives are:


	 
	 the prevention of crime and disorder


	 the prevention of crime and disorder


	 the prevention of crime and disorder



	 public safety


	 public safety



	 the prevention of public nuisance


	 the prevention of public nuisance



	 the protection of children from harm


	 the protection of children from harm




	 
	Each licensing objective is of equal importance. When discharging its licensing function, the

Authority will attach the utmost importance to the promotion of the objectives.


	 
	3.2 Prevention of Crime and Disorder
	 
	3.2.1 The Authority will endeavour to reduce crime and disorder throughout the district in accordance

with its statutory duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. Where relevant

representations are made, the Licensing Authority may look more favourably upon applications

where the applicant has addressed the issue of preventing crime and disorder in a positive way.


	 
	3.2.2 The Authority will require applicants to take appropriate and proportionate measures to promote

the crime and disorder objective. Such measures may include those listed in the Authority’s

guidance for applicants which can be viewed at www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing.


	 
	3.3 Public Safety


	 
	3.3.1 All premises will be risk-rated by the Licensing Authority, and are to be subject to both announced

and unannounced inspections (including multi-agency inspections).


	 
	3.3.2 The Authority will require applicants to take appropriate and proportionate measures to promote

the public safety objective. Such measures may include those listed in the Authority’s guidance for

applicants which can be viewed at www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing.


	 
	3.4 Prevention of Public Nuisance


	3.4 Prevention of Public Nuisance


	3.4 Prevention of Public Nuisance


	3.4 Prevention of Public Nuisance





	 
	3.4.1 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however not

narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may include

in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and

environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. Public

nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and

insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.


	3.4.1 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however not

narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may include

in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and

environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. Public

nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and

insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.


	3.4.1 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however not

narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may include

in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and

environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. Public

nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and

insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.


	3.4.1 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however not

narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may include

in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and

environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. Public

nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and

insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.


	3.4.1 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however not

narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may include

in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and

environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. Public

nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and

insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.






	 
	3.4.2 Public nuisance can include low level nuisance affecting a few people living locally, as well

as a major disturbance affecting the wider community. Nuisance is generally attributable to

noise (from loud music or from rowdy customers), vibration, light pollution, noxious smells

and litter. Applicants will be required to demonstrate that they have adequate measures in

place in their applications to prevent nuisance and disturbance.


	3.4.2 Public nuisance can include low level nuisance affecting a few people living locally, as well

as a major disturbance affecting the wider community. Nuisance is generally attributable to

noise (from loud music or from rowdy customers), vibration, light pollution, noxious smells

and litter. Applicants will be required to demonstrate that they have adequate measures in

place in their applications to prevent nuisance and disturbance.


	3.4.2 Public nuisance can include low level nuisance affecting a few people living locally, as well

as a major disturbance affecting the wider community. Nuisance is generally attributable to

noise (from loud music or from rowdy customers), vibration, light pollution, noxious smells

and litter. Applicants will be required to demonstrate that they have adequate measures in

place in their applications to prevent nuisance and disturbance.


	3.4.2 Public nuisance can include low level nuisance affecting a few people living locally, as well

as a major disturbance affecting the wider community. Nuisance is generally attributable to

noise (from loud music or from rowdy customers), vibration, light pollution, noxious smells

and litter. Applicants will be required to demonstrate that they have adequate measures in

place in their applications to prevent nuisance and disturbance.


	3.4.2 Public nuisance can include low level nuisance affecting a few people living locally, as well

as a major disturbance affecting the wider community. Nuisance is generally attributable to

noise (from loud music or from rowdy customers), vibration, light pollution, noxious smells

and litter. Applicants will be required to demonstrate that they have adequate measures in

place in their applications to prevent nuisance and disturbance.






	 
	3.4.3Noise from people entering and leaving licensed premises, particularly late at night or in the

early hours of the morning, can be a significant problem. Customers under the influence of alcohol

are often less inhibited about their behaviour and may be unaware of the noise they are creating.

As background noise levels are lower at night, any noise is more intrusive for residents trying to

sleep.


	 
	3.4.2 3.4.4Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting

outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may itself give rise

to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities and responsible authorities

will need to balance these issues.


	 
	3.4.3 The Licensing Authority will require applicants to take appropriate and proportionate measures for

the prevention of public nuisance. Such measures may include those listed in the Authority’s

guidance for applicants which can be viewed at www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing.


	 
	3.5 Protection of Children from Harm


	 
	3.5.1 The Authority recognises the great variety of premises for which licences may be sought. These

include theatres, members’ clubs, sports clubs, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, cafes,

takeaways, community halls, schools and off-licences. The Authority will not restrict access by

children to any particular type of premises unless it is considered necessary to do so in order to

protect them from harm.


	Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Outline numbered + Level: 3 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at: 2 cm + Indent at: 3.27 cm

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 3.27 cm, First line:

0 cm

Formatted: List Paragraph, Outline numbered + Level: 3 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at: 2 cm + Indent at: 3.27 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left: 2.27 cm, No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 1 cm, No bullets or

numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 2 cm, No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
	3.5.2 The Authority will require applicants to take appropriate and proportionate measures for the

protection of children. Such measures may include those listed in the Authority’s guidance for

applicants which can be viewed at www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing.


	 
	4.0 THE LICENSING FUNCTION


	 
	4.1 Regulation


	 
	4.1.1 Licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed premises, in qualifying clubs and at

temporary events under the provisions of the Act. Licensing also involves making judgements

about risk, in particular the risk of any adverse effect on the licensing objectives of granting licences

and club premises certificates.


	 
	4.1.2 The licensing function is only one means of delivering the licensing objectives and should not be

seen as a panacea for solving all alcohol- and entertainment-related problems within the

community. The Authority recognises that as well as the licensing function there are a number of

other mechanisms for addressing alcohol-related nuisance, crime and disorder such as:


	 
	 planning controls


	 planning controls


	 planning controls



	 Community Alcohol Partnerships


	 Community Alcohol Partnerships



	 installation and/or expansion of CCTV systems in problem areas


	 installation and/or expansion of CCTV systems in problem areas



	 powers to designate parts of the District as places where alcohol may not be consumed

publicly (Public Space Protection Designated Public Places Order)


	 powers to designate parts of the District as places where alcohol may not be consumed

publicly (Public Space Protection Designated Public Places Order)




	S.27 and s.30 Dispersal Orders (Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003)


	  Section 35 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014

 
	  Section 35 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014

 
	  Section 35 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014

 

	 police powers to close some premises for up to 24 hours in extreme cases of disorder or

excessive noise (Licensing Act, ss.160 & 161)


	 police powers to close some premises for up to 24 hours in extreme cases of disorder or

excessive noise (Licensing Act, ss.160 & 161)



	 the power of Responsible Authorities and other persons to apply for a review of the licence

(see 9.2)


	 the power of Responsible Authorities and other persons to apply for a review of the licence

(see 9.2)



	 Section 76 Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 provides for service of a

Closure Notice for a period of 24 Hours where the use of particular premises has resulted,

or is likely soon to result, in nuisance to members of the public or that there has been, or is

likely soon to be, disorder near those premises associated with the use of those premises

and that the Notice is necessary to prevent the nuisance or disorder from continuing,

recurring or occurring. Section 77 of the said Act allows an extension for a further 24 hours.

Section 80, facilitates an application to the Magistrates Court to close the premises. If a

Closure Order is made the closure period is for up to 3 months.


	 Section 76 Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 provides for service of a

Closure Notice for a period of 24 Hours where the use of particular premises has resulted,

or is likely soon to result, in nuisance to members of the public or that there has been, or is

likely soon to be, disorder near those premises associated with the use of those premises

and that the Notice is necessary to prevent the nuisance or disorder from continuing,

recurring or occurring. Section 77 of the said Act allows an extension for a further 24 hours.

Section 80, facilitates an application to the Magistrates Court to close the premises. If a

Closure Order is made the closure period is for up to 3 months.




	 
	The Authority will therefore continue to work in partnership with other Licensing Authorities, the

Responsible Authorities, other agencies such as North Devon and Torridge Community Safety

Partnership and with local businesses and residents in a co-ordinated approach to tackling alcohol�related crime and anti-social behaviour.


	 
	4.1.3 In discharging its licensing function, the Licensing Authority will comply with relevant legislation

and have regard to:


	 
	(i) Strategies


	  
	 current North Devon and Torridge community Safety Partnership Strategy


	 current North Devon and Torridge community Safety Partnership Strategy


	 current North Devon and Torridge community Safety Partnership Strategy



	 current Government alcohol strategy


	 current Government alcohol strategy



	 NDC Corporate Plan 2015 -2018 New policy TBC


	 NDC Corporate Plan 2015 -2018 New policy TBC




	 
	(ii) Policies/Codes of Practice


	 
	Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.73 cm, First line: 1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Body Text Indent, Indent: Left: 2 cm, Hanging:

1 cm, Tab stops: 3 cm, Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm
	Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.73 cm, First line: 1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Body Text Indent, Indent: Left: 2 cm, Hanging:

1 cm, Tab stops: 3 cm, Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm
	 Regulators’ Compliance Code (BIS) ( April 2014)


	 Regulators’ Compliance Code (BIS) ( April 2014)



	 North Devon Council’s Corporate Enforcement Policy, July 2022


	 North Devon Council’s Corporate Enforcement Policy, July 2022



	 NDC Community Engagement Framework


	 NDC Community Engagement Framework




	 DCC Local Transport Plan


	 DCC Local Transport Plan


	 DCC Local Transport Plan



	 Age Restricted Products and Services: A Code of Practice for Regulatory Delivery


	 Age Restricted Products and Services: A Code of Practice for Regulatory Delivery




	 
	(iii) Guidance


	(iii) Guidance


	(iii) Guidance




	 
	 Guidance issued under s.182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Home Office)


	 Guidance issued under s.182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Home Office)


	 Guidance issued under s.182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Home Office)



	 The Purple Guide to Health, Safety and Welfare at Music and Other Events


	 The Purple Guide to Health, Safety and Welfare at Music and Other Events



	 The Event Safety Guide (HSE)


	 The Event Safety Guide (HSE)



	 Guide to Fire Precautions in Entertainments and Like Premises


	 Guide to Fire Precautions in Entertainments and Like Premises



	 Good Practice Guide on the Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs (Institute of Acoustics)


	 Good Practice Guide on the Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs (Institute of Acoustics)



	 Good Practice in Managing the Evening and Late Night Economy (ODPM)


	 Good Practice in Managing the Evening and Late Night Economy (ODPM)



	 Technical Standards for Places of Public Entertainment (ABTT/IOL)


	 Technical Standards for Places of Public Entertainment (ABTT/IOL)



	 Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts (Noise Council)


	 Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts (Noise Council)



	 Home Office Guide to Safer Clubbing


	 Home Office Guide to Safer Clubbing



	 ‘No Proof of Age – No Sale’ (Trading Standards handbook)


	 ‘No Proof of Age – No Sale’ (Trading Standards handbook)



	 The Portman Group Code of Practice on the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic

Drinks


	 The Portman Group Code of Practice on the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic

Drinks




	 
	4.1.4 The central purpose of the licensing function is to promote the licensing objectives through the

effective regulation of licensed premises, qualifying clubs and temporary events. The Authority is

keen to foster a safe and vibrant leisure economy and will work with applicants and licence holders

to encourage and sustain well managed premises which make a positive contribution to the

community. The Authority will expect applicants and licence holders to demonstrate that they have

given thought to and have in place adequate measures to ensure that the operation of their

premises will not have an adverse effect on the quality of life of persons living and/or working in the

vicinity of the premises.


	 
	4.1.5 The powers of the Licensing Authority under the Act may be carried out by the Licensing and

Community Safety Committee, by a sub-Committee of the Licensing and Community Safety

Committee or by one or more officers acting under delegated authority. Many licensing procedures

are largely administrative with no perceived areas of contention. In the interests of efficiency, these

procedures will generally be carried out by licensing officers.


	 
	4.1.6 The Authority will ensure that all Officers and Members have received adequate and appropriate

training for their roles under the Licensing Act 2003.


	 
	4.1.7 The Authority will delegate its functions in the following ways:


	 
	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	Matter to be dealt with 
	Matter to be dealt with 
	 

	Full Committee 
	Full Committee 

	Sub-Committee 
	Sub-Committee 

	Officers


	Officers




	TR
	Span
	Application for personal

licence


	Application for personal

licence



	 
	 

	If a police objection made 
	If a police objection made 

	If no police objection

made


	If no police objection

made




	TR
	Span
	Application for personal

licence with relevant unspent

convictions or relevant

convictions arising during

tenure of a licence


	Application for personal

licence with relevant unspent

convictions or relevant

convictions arising during

tenure of a licence



	 
	 

	Decision to revoke or

suspend if referred


	Decision to revoke or

suspend if referred



	All cases unless referred

for revocation or

suspension


	All cases unless referred

for revocation or

suspension




	TR
	Span
	Application for premises

licence/club premises

certificate


	Application for premises

licence/club premises

certificate



	 
	 

	If a relevant representation

made


	If a relevant representation

made



	If no relevant

representation made


	If no relevant

representation made




	TR
	Span
	Application for provisional

statement


	Application for provisional

statement



	 
	 

	If a relevant representation

made


	If a relevant representation

made



	If no relevant

representation made


	If no relevant

representation made




	TR
	Span
	Application to vary premises

licence/club premises

certificate


	Application to vary premises

licence/club premises

certificate



	 
	 

	If a relevant representation

made


	If a relevant representation

made



	If no relevant

representation made


	If no relevant

representation made




	TR
	Span
	Application for minor variation

of premises licence/club

premises certificate


	Application for minor variation

of premises licence/club

premises certificate



	 
	 

	 
	 

	All cases
	All cases




	Table
	TBody
	TR
	Span
	Matter to be dealt with 
	Matter to be dealt with 
	 

	Full Committee 
	Full Committee 

	Sub-Committee 
	Sub-Committee 

	Officers


	Officers




	TR
	Span
	Application to vary designated

premises supervisor


	Application to vary designated

premises supervisor



	 
	 

	If a police objection made 
	If a police objection made 

	All other cases


	All other cases




	TR
	Span
	Request to be removed as

designated premises

supervisor


	Request to be removed as

designated premises

supervisor



	 
	 

	 
	 

	All cases


	All cases




	TR
	Span
	Application for transfer of

premises licence


	Application for transfer of

premises licence



	 
	 

	If a police objection made 
	If a police objection made 

	All other cases


	All other cases




	TR
	Span
	Applications for interim

authorities


	Applications for interim

authorities



	 
	 

	If a police objection made 
	If a police objection made 

	All other cases


	All other cases




	TR
	Span
	Application to review premises

licence/club premises

certificate


	Application to review premises

licence/club premises

certificate



	 
	 

	All cases


	All cases



	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	Decision on whether a

complaint is irrelevant frivolous

vexatious etc.


	Decision on whether a

complaint is irrelevant frivolous

vexatious etc.



	 
	 

	 
	 

	All cases


	All cases




	TR
	Span
	Decision to object when local

authority is a consultee and

not the relevant authority

considering the application


	Decision to object when local

authority is a consultee and

not the relevant authority

considering the application



	 
	 

	All cases


	All cases



	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	Determination of an objection

to a temporary event notice


	Determination of an objection

to a temporary event notice



	 
	 

	All cases


	All cases



	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	Determination of application to

vary premises licence for

community premises to include

alternative licence condition


	Determination of application to

vary premises licence for

community premises to include

alternative licence condition



	 
	 

	If a police objection made 
	If a police objection made 

	All other cases


	All other cases




	TR
	Span
	Decision whether to consult

other responsible authorities

on minor variation application


	Decision whether to consult

other responsible authorities

on minor variation application



	 
	 

	 
	 

	All cases


	All cases




	TR
	Span
	Suspension of premises

licence/club premises

certificate for non-payment of

annual fee


	Suspension of premises

licence/club premises

certificate for non-payment of

annual fee



	 
	 

	 
	 

	All cases


	All cases




	TR
	Span
	Review of Statement of

Licensing Policy


	Review of Statement of

Licensing Policy



	All cases (Full

Council)


	All cases (Full

Council)



	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	Implementation of a Late Night

Levy


	Implementation of a Late Night

Levy



	All cases (Full

Council)


	All cases (Full

Council)



	 
	 

	 
	 


	TR
	Span
	Creation of an Early Morning

Restriction Order


	Creation of an Early Morning

Restriction Order



	All cases (Full

Council)


	All cases (Full

Council)



	 
	 

	 
	 




	 
	4.2 The Licensing Authority as Responsible Authority


	 
	4.2.1 Section 103 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 amended the Licensing Act

by making the Licensing Authority a ‘responsible authority’. This enables the Authority to make

representations about an application for a premises licence or club premises certificate or to apply

for a review of a premises licence or a club premises certificate.


	 
	4.2.2 In cases where the Authority is acting in its capacity as a responsible authority, it has established

a clear separation of responsibilities within the Authority’s Licensing Team in order to ensure

procedural fairness and to avoid potential conflict of interest.


	4.2.2 In cases where the Authority is acting in its capacity as a responsible authority, it has established

a clear separation of responsibilities within the Authority’s Licensing Team in order to ensure

procedural fairness and to avoid potential conflict of interest.


	4.2.2 In cases where the Authority is acting in its capacity as a responsible authority, it has established

a clear separation of responsibilities within the Authority’s Licensing Team in order to ensure

procedural fairness and to avoid potential conflict of interest.


	4.2.2 In cases where the Authority is acting in its capacity as a responsible authority, it has established

a clear separation of responsibilities within the Authority’s Licensing Team in order to ensure

procedural fairness and to avoid potential conflict of interest.


	4.2.2 In cases where the Authority is acting in its capacity as a responsible authority, it has established

a clear separation of responsibilities within the Authority’s Licensing Team in order to ensure

procedural fairness and to avoid potential conflict of interest.






	 
	4.3 Integrating Strategies and Avoiding Duplication


	 
	4.3.1 The Authority recognises that unnecessary and over-burdensome regulation can prevent

businesses from thriving and growing. The Authority will therefore endeavour to regulate licensed

premises in a proportionate manner in accordance with the Regulators’ Compliance Code.

Premises will be assessed on the basis of risk to the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Premises with a high risk-rating will be inspected more frequently than premises with a low risk�rating.


	 
	4.3.2 The Authority will endeavour to ensure that this Statement of Licensing Policy is aligned with and

supports local crime prevention, transport, tourism and cultural strategies (see 4.1.3). To this end,
	the Authority will work closely with other agencies and will contribute, where appropriate, to the

development of policies and initiatives to tackle alcohol-related crime and disorder. This may

include promoting and participating in schemes such as Best Bar None, Purple Flag, and Business

Improvement Districts etc.


	 
	4.3.3 The Authority recognises that it is a fundamental principle of the Act that the licensing function

should not duplicate other statutory regulation. In particular, the Licensing Authority recognises

that licensing applications should not be seen as a repeat of the planning application and building

control approval processes and that there is no legal basis to refuse a licence application because

it does not have planning permission. Applicants are recommended, however, to ensure that

appropriate planning permissions are obtained before an application for a premises licence or club

premises certificate is made. (See Section 7 – Licence Conditions – for further advice).


	 
	Home Office guidance makes it clear that licensing committees are not bound  by decisions made by planning,  and vice�versa. The Guidance also states that, where, as a condition of a planning permission, a terminal hour has been set for

use of the premises for commercial purposes and this is different to the licensing hours, the applicant must observe the

earlier closing times. (Home Office Guidance  14.64 and  14.65)

 
	 
	4.4 Large Scale Public Events and the Safety Advisory Group (SAG) Function


	 
	4.4.1 The Council recommends that organisers of large scale public events (outdoor music concerts,

sporting events, festivals, carnivals, firework displays etc.) consult the Council at the earliest

opportunity to discuss arrangements for the licensing of those activities falling under the Act.


	 
	 In respect of some events, the organisers may require a single premises licence to cover a

wide range of activities at different locations within the premises. This may involve the

preparation of a substantial operating schedule and event management plan. For other

events, applications for connected premises licences or TENs may be made which in

combination will represent a single event. The Authority consider it is essential to have proper

co-ordination of such arrangements and will expect organisers to work with the Authority in

ensuring that responsible authorities are aware of the connected nature of the individual

applications. Despite this being said, it will always be the preference of the Licensing Authority

that instead of multiple TENs an application for a premises licence is made considering the

improved clarity of arrangements for all parties by way of conditions imposed.


	 In respect of some events, the organisers may require a single premises licence to cover a

wide range of activities at different locations within the premises. This may involve the

preparation of a substantial operating schedule and event management plan. For other

events, applications for connected premises licences or TENs may be made which in

combination will represent a single event. The Authority consider it is essential to have proper

co-ordination of such arrangements and will expect organisers to work with the Authority in

ensuring that responsible authorities are aware of the connected nature of the individual

applications. Despite this being said, it will always be the preference of the Licensing Authority

that instead of multiple TENs an application for a premises licence is made considering the

improved clarity of arrangements for all parties by way of conditions imposed.


	 In respect of some events, the organisers may require a single premises licence to cover a

wide range of activities at different locations within the premises. This may involve the

preparation of a substantial operating schedule and event management plan. For other

events, applications for connected premises licences or TENs may be made which in

combination will represent a single event. The Authority consider it is essential to have proper

co-ordination of such arrangements and will expect organisers to work with the Authority in

ensuring that responsible authorities are aware of the connected nature of the individual

applications. Despite this being said, it will always be the preference of the Licensing Authority

that instead of multiple TENs an application for a premises licence is made considering the

improved clarity of arrangements for all parties by way of conditions imposed.


	 In respect of some events, the organisers may require a single premises licence to cover a

wide range of activities at different locations within the premises. This may involve the

preparation of a substantial operating schedule and event management plan. For other

events, applications for connected premises licences or TENs may be made which in

combination will represent a single event. The Authority consider it is essential to have proper

co-ordination of such arrangements and will expect organisers to work with the Authority in

ensuring that responsible authorities are aware of the connected nature of the individual

applications. Despite this being said, it will always be the preference of the Licensing Authority

that instead of multiple TENs an application for a premises licence is made considering the

improved clarity of arrangements for all parties by way of conditions imposed.


	 In respect of some events, the organisers may require a single premises licence to cover a

wide range of activities at different locations within the premises. This may involve the

preparation of a substantial operating schedule and event management plan. For other

events, applications for connected premises licences or TENs may be made which in

combination will represent a single event. The Authority consider it is essential to have proper

co-ordination of such arrangements and will expect organisers to work with the Authority in

ensuring that responsible authorities are aware of the connected nature of the individual

applications. Despite this being said, it will always be the preference of the Licensing Authority

that instead of multiple TENs an application for a premises licence is made considering the

improved clarity of arrangements for all parties by way of conditions imposed.






	 
	 Applicants planning a large scale event - whether this involves licensable activities or not -

are likely to be requested to submit an application to the Safety Advisory Group (SAG). SAG

comprises of personnel from relevant statutory authorities and will provide the applicant with

advice and guidance to help ensure public health and safety. A SAG meeting will generally

be recommended where there is a higher risk to public safety and more than 500 persons are

expected to attend the event although smaller events with perceived high risks to public safety

may also be required to attend a SAG meeting. It will be the responsibility of the event

organiser to submit an application to SAG. It will be the responsibility of the Authority to

arrange and convene SAG meetings. Individuals seeking advice are recommended to contact

the Authority if in any doubt as to whether a SAG application is required and seek further

advice from 
	 Applicants planning a large scale event - whether this involves licensable activities or not -

are likely to be requested to submit an application to the Safety Advisory Group (SAG). SAG

comprises of personnel from relevant statutory authorities and will provide the applicant with

advice and guidance to help ensure public health and safety. A SAG meeting will generally

be recommended where there is a higher risk to public safety and more than 500 persons are

expected to attend the event although smaller events with perceived high risks to public safety

may also be required to attend a SAG meeting. It will be the responsibility of the event

organiser to submit an application to SAG. It will be the responsibility of the Authority to

arrange and convene SAG meetings. Individuals seeking advice are recommended to contact

the Authority if in any doubt as to whether a SAG application is required and seek further

advice from 
	 Applicants planning a large scale event - whether this involves licensable activities or not -

are likely to be requested to submit an application to the Safety Advisory Group (SAG). SAG

comprises of personnel from relevant statutory authorities and will provide the applicant with

advice and guidance to help ensure public health and safety. A SAG meeting will generally

be recommended where there is a higher risk to public safety and more than 500 persons are

expected to attend the event although smaller events with perceived high risks to public safety

may also be required to attend a SAG meeting. It will be the responsibility of the event

organiser to submit an application to SAG. It will be the responsibility of the Authority to

arrange and convene SAG meetings. Individuals seeking advice are recommended to contact

the Authority if in any doubt as to whether a SAG application is required and seek further

advice from 
	 Applicants planning a large scale event - whether this involves licensable activities or not -

are likely to be requested to submit an application to the Safety Advisory Group (SAG). SAG

comprises of personnel from relevant statutory authorities and will provide the applicant with

advice and guidance to help ensure public health and safety. A SAG meeting will generally

be recommended where there is a higher risk to public safety and more than 500 persons are

expected to attend the event although smaller events with perceived high risks to public safety

may also be required to attend a SAG meeting. It will be the responsibility of the event

organiser to submit an application to SAG. It will be the responsibility of the Authority to

arrange and convene SAG meetings. Individuals seeking advice are recommended to contact

the Authority if in any doubt as to whether a SAG application is required and seek further

advice from 
	 Applicants planning a large scale event - whether this involves licensable activities or not -

are likely to be requested to submit an application to the Safety Advisory Group (SAG). SAG

comprises of personnel from relevant statutory authorities and will provide the applicant with

advice and guidance to help ensure public health and safety. A SAG meeting will generally

be recommended where there is a higher risk to public safety and more than 500 persons are

expected to attend the event although smaller events with perceived high risks to public safety

may also be required to attend a SAG meeting. It will be the responsibility of the event

organiser to submit an application to SAG. It will be the responsibility of the Authority to

arrange and convene SAG meetings. Individuals seeking advice are recommended to contact

the Authority if in any doubt as to whether a SAG application is required and seek further

advice from 
	 Applicants planning a large scale event - whether this involves licensable activities or not -

are likely to be requested to submit an application to the Safety Advisory Group (SAG). SAG

comprises of personnel from relevant statutory authorities and will provide the applicant with

advice and guidance to help ensure public health and safety. A SAG meeting will generally

be recommended where there is a higher risk to public safety and more than 500 persons are

expected to attend the event although smaller events with perceived high risks to public safety

may also be required to attend a SAG meeting. It will be the responsibility of the event

organiser to submit an application to SAG. It will be the responsibility of the Authority to

arrange and convene SAG meetings. Individuals seeking advice are recommended to contact

the Authority if in any doubt as to whether a SAG application is required and seek further

advice from 
	www.northdevon.gov.uk/sag
	www.northdevon.gov.uk/sag

	.







	 
	 
	4.5  Counter  Terrorism  and  Public  Safety

 
	 
	North  Devon  Council  will  give due consideration to appropriate counterterrorism

measures and advice when considering licence applications, for example at high

profile or large premises or events or where there are factors which may increase

attractiveness to attacks, and in particular when in receipt of relevant advice from

police counter terrorist staff.

 
	Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, No bullets or numbering,

Tab stops: Not at 3 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left: 2.54 cm, No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, First line: 1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Bold
	It will be  particularly relevant to consider conditions around health care provision in

this regard. Any additional licensing conditions must be appropriate and

proportionate to  the venue.  The Licensing Authority will pay particular attention to

terrorist threats when making specific licence conditions in relation to security or

health care provision at appropriate premises and events applying for a licence.

 
	 
	When  appropriate  to  do  so,  the  Licensing  Authority  may recommend conditions

such as ensuring appropriate access for emergency services and vehicles; good

communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example

communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts;

and ensuring the presence of sufficiently  trained first aiders on the premises and

appropriate first aid kits.

 
	 
	In some instances, the authority may wish to tailor its approach, depending on the

particular nature of the application, and go further when addressing concerns

around possible terrorist or other such risks.  In making their consideration the

Licensing Authority will be mindful of the Annex in the Section 182 guidance. This

Annex will help to inform and support its  decision making with regards to additional

licence conditions for premises and events, that may benefit from further security

planning and health care provision in the aftermath of a particular type of incident.

 
	 
	4.65 Related Legislation


	  
	4.65.1 There is a significant interplay between the Licensing Act and other legislation. The Authority

will endeavour to interpret and apply other statutory requirements in a way which is consistent with

the promotion of the licensing objectives.


	 
	4.65.2 Anti-Social Behaviour and Policing Act 2014


	 
	Under the provisions of the Act, consumption of alcohol is not a licensable activity. However, the

Authority recognises that consumption of alcohol can be a major contributory factor to disorder and

nuisance both within and outside licensed premises. This Council has adopted the relevant powers

under the Anti-Social Behaviour and Policing Act 2014 to designate parts of the District as places

where alcohol may not be consumed publicly.


	 
	Five Aareas within Barnstaple, and IlfracombeCroyde, Ilfracombe, South Molton, and Woolacombe

are currently designated with 
	Five Aareas within Barnstaple, and IlfracombeCroyde, Ilfracombe, South Molton, and Woolacombe

are currently designated with 
	Public Spaces Protection Orders 
	Public Spaces Protection Orders 

	Public Space Protection Orders

(PSPO’s) Please refer toThis page contains



	http://www.northdevon.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/entertainment-and-alcohol�licences/alcohol-free-zones/ for zone maps and more information on the powers available to

authorised officersthe police in a controlled zone. The Authority, in conjunction with the police,

North Devon and Torridge community Safety Partnership and other Responsible Authoritiesand

partners, will keep this under review and may recommend the designation of other areas if there is

evidence that this is necessary to reduce or prevent alcohol-related crime and disorder.


	 
	4.65.3 Gambling Act 2005


	 
	The provision of gaming machines and certain forms of low-stakes gambling (e.g. poker, bingo) are

permitted in alcohol-licensed premises and qualifying clubs under the Gambling Act 2005. The

type of gambling allowed and stakes and prizes are specified in regulations and are set at levels

which are designed to keep this form of gaming a low-risk, sociable activity. Generally, such gaming

should be ancillary to the primary use of the premises. The Authority may take action against a

premises where it believes that gaming is becoming the dominant activity or is having a detrimental

effect on the licensing objectives.


	 
	4.65.4 Health Act 2006

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
	 
	The introduction of the Health Act 2006 which prohibited smoking in enclosed or substantially

enclosed spaces in England has had a significant impact on alcohol-licensed premises and


	qualifying clubs. In many premises, customers wishing to smoke must do so in beer gardens,

outdoor patio areas or in the street. This can result in noise, nuisance and anti-social behaviour for

nearby residents, businesses and passers-by, especially late at night when background noise levels

are low. The Authority will expect applicants and licence holders to have particular regard to the


	management of customers in the immediate vicinity of their premises to ensure that their behaviour

does not cause offence or undermine the licensing objectives.


	 
	4.65.5 Live Music Act 2012; The Licensing Act 2003 (Descriptions of Entertainment) (Amendment)

Order 2013: The Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order 2013 and 2014


	  
	Since 2012 The Government has made deregulatory changes that have amended the Act meaning

that no licence is required for some activities.


	 
	Included in this de-regulation are the following:


	 
	 plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided

that the audience does not exceed 500.


	 plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided

that the audience does not exceed 500.


	 plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided

that the audience does not exceed 500.



	 dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided

that the audience does not exceed 500.


	 dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided

that the audience does not exceed 500.



	 films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises

between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and

the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening from a person who is responsible for the

premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by age classification ratings.


	 films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises

between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and

the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening from a person who is responsible for the

premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by age classification ratings.



	 indoor sporting events: no licence is required for an event between 08.00 and 23.00 on any

day, provided that those present do not exceed 1000.


	 indoor sporting events: no licence is required for an event between 08.00 and 23.00 on any

day, provided that those present do not exceed 1000.



	 boxing or wrestling entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of

Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided

that the audience does not exceed 1000.


	 boxing or wrestling entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of

Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided

that the audience does not exceed 1000.



	 live music and recorded music: no licence is required at certain times of the day,dependant

upon the nature of the premises and other licences in place.


	 live music and recorded music: no licence is required at certain times of the day,dependant

upon the nature of the premises and other licences in place.



	 unamplified live music: no licence is required provided it takes place between 8am and 11pm

(all venues). This is subject to the right of a licensing authority to impose conditions about live

music following a review of a premises licence where the premises are authorised to supply

alcohol for consumption on the premises.


	 unamplified live music: no licence is required provided it takes place between 8am and 11pm

(all venues). This is subject to the right of a licensing authority to impose conditions about live

music following a review of a premises licence where the premises are authorised to supply

alcohol for consumption on the premises.



	 amplified live music: no licence is required provided it takes place between 8am and 11pm

before audiences of no more than 500 persons on premises authorised to supply alcohol for

consumption on the premises. This is subject to the right of a licensing authority to impose

conditions about live music following a review of a premises licence.


	 amplified live music: no licence is required provided it takes place between 8am and 11pm

before audiences of no more than 500 persons on premises authorised to supply alcohol for

consumption on the premises. This is subject to the right of a licensing authority to impose

conditions about live music following a review of a premises licence.



	 amplified live music: no licence is required provided it takes place between 8am and 11pm

before audiences of no more than 500 persons in workplaces (but not necessarily for workers)

not otherwise licensed under the 2003 Act (or licensed only for the provision of late night

refreshment).


	 amplified live music: no licence is required provided it takes place between 8am and 11pm

before audiences of no more than 500 persons in workplaces (but not necessarily for workers)

not otherwise licensed under the 2003 Act (or licensed only for the provision of late night

refreshment).



	 provision of entertainment facilities, and it widens the licensing exemption for live music

integral to a performance of Morris dancing or dancing of a similar type, so that the exemption

applies to live or recorded music instead of unamplified live music.


	 provision of entertainment facilities, and it widens the licensing exemption for live music

integral to a performance of Morris dancing or dancing of a similar type, so that the exemption

applies to live or recorded music instead of unamplified live music.




	 
	 
	 
	An overview of circumstances in which entertainment facilities are not licensable can be viewed at

Section 16.5.to 16.9 of the Home Office revised guidance issued under 182 of the Act. (April 2018

version).


	 
	Any conditions relating to live music which are attached to a premises licence or a Club Premises

Certificate will stay in place but will be suspended between 8.00 am and 11.00 pm. However, the

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: List Paragraph, Justified, Indent: Left: 2 cm,

Hanging: 1 cm, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 4.44 cm +

Indent at: 5.08 cm, Tab stops: 3 cm, Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Underline, Font color:

Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Underline, Font color:

Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Red
	Licensing Authority will be able to re-impose these conditions (or attach new conditions) following

a review of a licence.


	 
	Any current licence condition that relates to an activity for which a licence is no longer required

will have no effect, except in certain circumstances where non-licensable activities take place at

the same time as other activities for which a licence is required. Licence holders wishing to

remove such conditions may apply for a minor licence variation. In the course of considering such

applications, the Licensing Authority will generally remove such conditions unless there are

sufficiently serious specific concerns about the hosting of deregulated entertainment activities in

relation to the remaining licensable activities taking place in the premises in question.


	  
	The Authority recognises the importance of encouraging live music as part of the Authority’s wider

cultural strategy and will endeavour to promote this activity through its licensing function. However,

applicants and licence holders must be aware that, although certain types of live music are no

longer licensable, this does not mean that such activity is totally exempt from licensing controls.

The legal duty on licence holders to promote the licensing objectives remains. A Responsible


	Authority or any other person may apply for a review of a premises licence where it can be

demonstrated that live music provided under the provisions of the Live Music Act undermines any

of the licensing objectives.


	 
	When considering whether an activity constitutes ‘the provision of regulated entertainment’ each

case will be treated on its own merits. There will inevitably be a degree of judgement as to whether

a performance constitutes live music or not. If in doubt, organisers of events should check with the

Licensing Authority.


	  
	The impact of this Policy on regulated entertainment, particularly live music and dancing will be

monitored. Where it appears that such events are being deterred or constrained by licensing


	requirements, the Policy will be reviewed.


	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	4.65.6 Immigration Act 2016


	 
	From 6 April 2017 the provisions of Immigration Act 2016 which relate to Licensing became

effective. These provisions amend the Act making the Secretary of State a responsible authority

in respect of premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment. In effect this conveys the

role of responsible authority to Home Office Immigration Enforcement who exercises the powers

on the Secretary of State’s behalf.


	 
	Applicants for personal or premises licence (for sale of alcohol/provision of late night refreshment)

must be able to satisfy the Licensing Authority that they have permission to be in the United

Kingdom and are entitled to undertake work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.


	 
	Licences will not be issued to disqualified persons who are:


	 
	 unlawfully present in the UK


	 unlawfully present in the UK


	 unlawfully present in the UK



	 not permitted to work in the UK


	 not permitted to work in the UK



	 permitted to work, but not in this licensable activity


	 permitted to work, but not in this licensable activity




	 
	A premises or personal licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017

will lapse if the holder’s permission to live or work in the UK comes to an end.


	 
	The application for personal and premises licences must submit one of the documents listed in

Annex A of the Home Office’s Employer Right to Work Checks Supporting Guidance (

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/right-to-work-checks-employers-guide)_with their

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, First line: 0 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 2 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
	application, to show that they have the right to work in the UK and to undertake work in a

licensable activity. Applicants may provide photocopies or scanned copies of the documents,

which do not need to be endorsed as a copy of the original. Applicants are not required to submit

original copies of documents. As an alternative to using one of the documents listed in the above

guidance, applicants may choose to demonstrate their right to work by allowing this Licensing

Authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service. As a

result, we invite applicants to provide their shared code available from 
	application, to show that they have the right to work in the UK and to undertake work in a

licensable activity. Applicants may provide photocopies or scanned copies of the documents,

which do not need to be endorsed as a copy of the original. Applicants are not required to submit

original copies of documents. As an alternative to using one of the documents listed in the above

guidance, applicants may choose to demonstrate their right to work by allowing this Licensing

Authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service. As a

result, we invite applicants to provide their shared code available from 
	https://www.gov.uk/prove�right-to-work 
	https://www.gov.uk/prove�right-to-work 

	in their application. This code along with the applicant’s date of birth allows this

Licensing Authority to check their immigration status via the online service.



	In order to establish the applicant’s right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant

is allowed to work in the United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from

doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.


	An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an

immigration status that can be shared digitally. The Home Office online right to work checking

service sets out what information and/or documentation applicants will need in order to access the

service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service should submit copies

of documents as set out above.


	Licence applications will not be determined until applicants have complied with the necessary

guidance.


	Where an applicant has restrictions on the length of time they may work in the UK, a premises

licence or personal licence may still be issued, but the licence will cease to have effect when the

right to work lapses.


	The licensing authority is under no duty to carry out on-going immigration checks to see whether

a licence-holder’s permission to be in the UK has been brought to an end, and the Act does not

place a duty on the licensing authority to withdraw or revoke the licence if this occurs.


	The Home Office as a Responsible Authority may request a review of a licence, where a licence

is prejudicial to the prevention of illegal working. This may be as a result of:


	· An enforcement operation or data sharing that identifies a relevant offence,


	· The issue of a civil penalty for employing illegal workers,


	· The identification of a licence holder whose leave to be in the UK, or their permission to work,

has come to an end.


	 
	 
	 
	4.65.7 Sexual Entertainment Venues


	 
	Performances of dance which are “relevant entertainment” within the meaning of the Local

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“the 1982 Act”) are not affected by The

Licensing Act 2003 (Descriptions of Entertainment) (Amendment) Order 2013, regardless of the

size of the audience or the time of day. “Relevant entertainment” is defined in the 1982 Act as a

live performance or live display of nudity that, ignoring financial gain, can be assumed to be

provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the audience.


	In almost all cases where a performance of dance is potentially licensable as both the provision of

relevant entertainment (under the 1982 Act) and regulated entertainment (under the 2003 Act),

the 1982 Act disapplies the entertainment licensing regime in the 2003 Act in favour of its stricter

regime for the control of sex establishments. However, an authorisation under the 2003 Act will be

required where:


	Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Bold
	Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Bold
	Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Bold
	Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Bold
	 the premises are not licensed as a sex entertainment venue under the 1982 Act, and


	 the premises are not licensed as a sex entertainment venue under the 1982 Act, and






	 relevant entertainment has been provided at those premises on no more than 11 occasions

in any 12 month period, with none of those occasions lasting longer than 24 hours or taking

place within a month of any other such occasion.


	 relevant entertainment has been provided at those premises on no more than 11 occasions

in any 12 month period, with none of those occasions lasting longer than 24 hours or taking

place within a month of any other such occasion.


	 relevant entertainment has been provided at those premises on no more than 11 occasions

in any 12 month period, with none of those occasions lasting longer than 24 hours or taking

place within a month of any other such occasion.


	 relevant entertainment has been provided at those premises on no more than 11 occasions

in any 12 month period, with none of those occasions lasting longer than 24 hours or taking

place within a month of any other such occasion.


	 relevant entertainment has been provided at those premises on no more than 11 occasions

in any 12 month period, with none of those occasions lasting longer than 24 hours or taking

place within a month of any other such occasion.






	 
	Where the promoter of a sexual entertainment venue wishes to provide any of the licensable

activities as outlined in the Licensing Act 2003 in addition to relevant entertainment, a premises

licence will also be required to authorise such activities.


	 
	The Council’s Sex Establishment Policy is the subject of a separate public consultation and the

adopted policy stands separate from this Licensing Policy. The Policy may be viewed on the Sex

Establishment Toolkit available on 
	The Council’s Sex Establishment Policy is the subject of a separate public consultation and the

adopted policy stands separate from this Licensing Policy. The Policy may be viewed on the Sex

Establishment Toolkit available on 
	www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing
	www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing

	.



	 
	 
	   
	5. THE LICENSING PROCESS


	 
	5.1 Applications


	 
	5.1.1 Application forms may be downloaded from the Authority’s website. Applicants are strongly

recommended to discuss their application with a member of the Licensing Team prior to formal

submission. The Authority may reject applications which have not been completed correctly or

contain insufficient information.


	 
	5.1.2 The Authority will act in accordance with the section 182 Guidance with respect to-


	 
	 when applications, notices, or relevant representations are ‘given’ i.e. submitted to the Authority


	 when applications, notices, or relevant representations are ‘given’ i.e. submitted to the Authority


	 when applications, notices, or relevant representations are ‘given’ i.e. submitted to the Authority



	 holding and deferring electronic applications


	 holding and deferring electronic applications




	 
	5.1.3 The Act requires that applications for premises licences/club premises certificates – or variations

thereof – are advertised in accordance with regulations. The Authority will need to be satisfied that

the applicant has complied fully with these regulations and may request copies of notices and

advertisements to verify that the application has been properly made. If an application has not

been correctly advertised, the Authority is are likely to reject the application. Further guidance on

advertising applications is available on the Authority’s website at www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing


	 
	5.1.4 When preparing applications, it is essential that applicants give full consideration to the nature of

the premises, the locality in which a premises is situated, the potential risks involved in carrying out

licensable activities and put in place measures which are appropriate for the promotion of the

licensing objectives. (See also 7.5)


	 
	5.1.5 Applicants and licence holders should ensure that they have due regard to any planning restrictions

on the use of the premises when applying for a licence to avoid any enforcement action by a council

officer.


	 
	5.1.6 The Licensing Authority has become aware of some concerning practices with persons not identified

as a Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) having ‘control’ over a

licensed premises, and in effect running a premises ‘behind the scenes’. This may be for reasons

of criminality, for example whereby individuals may possess a relevant offence under the Licensing

Act 2003 which would preclude them becoming a DPS. This Licensing Authority takes a very

serious view of instances whereby it believes this to be the case. It will carefully consider

representations and be supportive of the Police when genuinely exceptional circumstances exist.

For example, whereby the Chief of Police cites that exceptional circumstances of a case are such

that granting an application for a change of a DPS would undermine the crime prevention objective,

and evidence exists of such, then it is highly likely that an application would meet refusal.


	 
	 
	5.2 Representations


	Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Body Text Indent, Justified, Indent: Hanging: 1

cm, Tab stops: 2 cm, Left

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Italic

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Italic

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color: Black, Pattern:

Clear (White)
	 Representations must be made to the Authority in writing within the 28 day consultation

period.


	 Representations must be made to the Authority in writing within the 28 day consultation

period.


	 Representations must be made to the Authority in writing within the 28 day consultation

period.


	 Representations must be made to the Authority in writing within the 28 day consultation

period.


	 Representations must be made to the Authority in writing within the 28 day consultation

period.



	 For this purpose, a representation made by e-mail will be acceptable. A form to assist persons

in making a representation is found at wwwnorthdevon.gov.uk/LA03rep


	 For this purpose, a representation made by e-mail will be acceptable. A form to assist persons

in making a representation is found at wwwnorthdevon.gov.uk/LA03rep






	 
	 
	5.2.1 Section 18(6) of the Licensing Act 2003 defines what constitutes a ‘relevant’ representation. To be

relevant, a representation must relate to the likely effect of the grant of a licence on the promotion

of one or more of the licensing objectives. There is nothing in the Act to say that a representation

must be of a negative nature. The Act specifically refers to ‘representations’ rather than ‘objections’

recognising that representations may express positive support for an application. The Authority will

consider both positive and negative representations provided they are relevant.


	 
	5.2.2 Where no relevant representations are received, the application will be granted on the terms applied

for. Where relevant representations are received, the application will be considered by a Licensing

sub-Committee at a hearing as will any application for review of a licence (see 9.2). The Authority

has established its own hearing procedures as provided for by regulations made under the Act and

these are available on request to the Licensing Authority and Authorities website at


	www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing


	 
	Home Office Guidance states “A hearing is not required where an application has been properly made and no

Responsible Authority or other person has made a relevant representation. In these cases, the licensing authority must

grant the application on the terms sought subject only to conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule and

relevant mandatory conditions under the Act”. (Guidance 9.2)

 
	 
	5.2.3 Any party to a hearing may expand on their representation but may not add new or different

representations.


	 
	5.2.4 Representations which are deemed by the Authority to be repetitious, frivolous, vexatious are likely

be disregarded.


	 
	5.2.5 Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the Licensing Authority is required by

regulations to provide the applicant with copies of the relevant representations that have been

made. In exceptional circumstances, a person wishing to make a representation may be reluctant

to do so because of fears of intimidation or harassment if their personal details are disclosed to the

applicant. Where the Authority considers that the person has a genuine and well-founded fear of

intimidation and may be deterred from making a representation, the Authority may consider

alternative approaches. For example, the Authority may advise the individual to provide the relevant

Responsible Authority with details of how they consider that the licensing objectives are being

undermined so that the Responsible Authority can make representations if appropriate and justified.

Alternatively, the Authority may advise the individual to request their local Councillor to make a

representation on their behalf. Where appropriate, the Authority may decide to withhold some or

all of the person’s details from the applicant. The Authority will only withhold such details where

the circumstances justify such action. Persons making representations should be aware that their

personal details will normally be disclosed during the hearing process.


	 
	 
	5.3 Determining Applications


	 
	5.3.1 When determining a licence application, the overriding principle adopted by this Authority will be

that each application will be determined on its merits. The Authority will have regard to any

guidance issued by the Home Office, this Statement of Licensing Policy and any measures it deems

necessary to promote the licensing objectives. The Authority may depart from the guidelines in this

Policy if it has justifiable and compelling reasons to do so. The Authority will give reasons for any

such departure from policy.


	 
	5.3.2 The Authority will expect applicants to demonstrate in their applications active steps for the

promotion the licensing objectives. When determining an application, a key consideration for the
	Authority will be the adequacy of measures proposed in the Operating Schedule to promote the

licensing objectives having regard to the type of premises, the licensable activities to be provided,

the nature of the location and the needs of the local community.


	 
	5.3.3 The Authority will also have regard to wider considerations affecting the residential population,

businesses and the amenity of an area. These include alcohol-related violence and disorder, anti�social behaviour, littering, fouling, noise and the capacity of the infrastructure and police resources

to cope with the movement of large numbers of people, particularly late at night and in the early

morning.


	 
	5.3.4 Since the introduction of the Act, the Authority’s experience is that the vast majority of complaints

about licensed premises are caused by public nuisance, in particular excessive noise from live and

recorded music and disturbance caused by customers congregating outside licensed premises.

The Authority will expect applicants to have particular regard to these issues and to include in their

Operating Schedules adequate and effective steps to control noise and disturbance from their

premises. Existing licence holders will also be expected to demonstrate – through the effective

management of their premises – that they are taking appropriate and reasonable steps within their

control to minimise disorder, anti-social behaviour and public nuisance.


	 
	Public nuisance is not defined in the Licensing Act 2003 and retains its broad common law meaning. It should be noted

that public nuisance can include low-level nuisance affecting a few people living locally as well as major disturbance

affecting the whole community. It may also include the reduction of the living and working amenity and environment of

persons and businesses in the vicinity of licensed premises. (Home Office Guidance 2.16)

 
	 
	5.3.5 When deciding whether to grant a licence, the Authority may take account of any non-compliance

with other statutory requirements brought to its attention, if these undermine the licensing

objectives. This is because any non-compliance with other statutory requirements may

demonstrate that the premises are unsuitable for the activities proposed, or that the management

of the premises is not sufficiently competent to protect the public from harm or nuisance.


	 
	5.3.6 When determining an application, the Authority will consider all relevant evidence, both oral and

written, provided by parties to a hearing. Evidence which is irrelevant may be disregarded. The

Authority encourages applicants and persons making representations to attend hearings so that

they can give evidence. Where an individual fails to attend the hearing, the Authority will consider

their application or representation but may attach less weight to it.


	 
	5.3.7 It should be noted that, when determining an application, the Authority is making a judgement about

risk. A key purpose of the licensing function is not to respond to crime and disorder, nuisance or

public harm once it has happened but to make an informed assessment of the risk of such things

occurring if a licence is granted and to take such steps as it considers appropriate to prevent or

minimise such risks.


	 
	5.3.8 The Authority will generally give its decision on an application at the end of a hearing and will give

clear reasons for its decision. In all other cases, the Authority will make its determination within five

working days.


	 
	5.3.9 Any party to a hearing who is dissatisfied with the Authority’s decision may appeal to the

Magistrates’ Court. An appeal must be made within 21 days of formal notification of the decision.


	 
	5.4 Mobile, Remote, Internet and Other Delivery Sales


	 
	5.4.1 The Licensing Authority shall have due regard to sales of alcohol which are made remotely, by

mobile methods, internet or by other delivery sales.


	 
	5.4.2 Persons who wish to run premises providing ‘alcohol delivery services’ should notify the relevant

Licensing Authority that they are operating such a service in their operating schedule, and premises

with existing premises licences who wish to include such a service should consider applying to vary

their licence to add this activity.
	 
	5.4.3 The expectation of the Licensing Authority is that conditions suggested by way of operating

schedules for these types of activities are extremely robust in order to negate any perceived issues.

The following form examples:


	 
	5.4.3 Persons who wish to run premises providing ‘alcohol delivery services’ should notify the relevant

Licensing Authority that they are operating such a service in their operating schedule, and premises

with existing premises licences who wish to include such a service should consider applying to vary

their licence to add this activity.


	 
	 Every third party courier delivery box shall be labelled with the words “Age Restricted Product”.


	 Every third party courier delivery box shall be labelled with the words “Age Restricted Product”.


	 Every third party courier delivery box shall be labelled with the words “Age Restricted Product”.




	 
	 There shall be mechanism either by an App or on the delivery package to show the delivery driver

is aware it is an age restricted product to ensure ID checks are made upon delivery of alcohol.


	 There shall be mechanism either by an App or on the delivery package to show the delivery driver

is aware it is an age restricted product to ensure ID checks are made upon delivery of alcohol.


	 There shall be mechanism either by an App or on the delivery package to show the delivery driver

is aware it is an age restricted product to ensure ID checks are made upon delivery of alcohol.




	 
	 The premises licence holder will ensure that an age verification policy will apply whereby all

delivery drivers/riders will be trained to ask any customer to whom alcohol is delivered, who

appears to be under the age of 25 years to produce, before being delivered alcohol, identification

being a passport or photocard driving licence bearing a holographic mark or other form of

identification that complies with any mandatory condition that may apply to this licence.


	 The premises licence holder will ensure that an age verification policy will apply whereby all

delivery drivers/riders will be trained to ask any customer to whom alcohol is delivered, who

appears to be under the age of 25 years to produce, before being delivered alcohol, identification

being a passport or photocard driving licence bearing a holographic mark or other form of

identification that complies with any mandatory condition that may apply to this licence.


	 The premises licence holder will ensure that an age verification policy will apply whereby all

delivery drivers/riders will be trained to ask any customer to whom alcohol is delivered, who

appears to be under the age of 25 years to produce, before being delivered alcohol, identification

being a passport or photocard driving licence bearing a holographic mark or other form of

identification that complies with any mandatory condition that may apply to this licence.




	 
	 Alcohol shall only be delivered to a residential or business address and not to a public place or

vehicle.


	 Alcohol shall only be delivered to a residential or business address and not to a public place or

vehicle.


	 Alcohol shall only be delivered to a residential or business address and not to a public place or

vehicle.




	 
	 All off sales deliveries to be in sealed containers.


	 All off sales deliveries to be in sealed containers.


	 All off sales deliveries to be in sealed containers.




	 
	 A warning shall be displayed on the digital platform on which an order is placed informing

customers that they must be aged 18 or over to make a purchase of alcohol and notifying

customers that the driver/rider will carry out age verification on delivery. The customer will be

required to declare that he or she aged 18 or over. If the driver/ider is not satisfied that the

customer is aged 18 or over any alcohol in the order will be withheld


	 A warning shall be displayed on the digital platform on which an order is placed informing

customers that they must be aged 18 or over to make a purchase of alcohol and notifying

customers that the driver/rider will carry out age verification on delivery. The customer will be

required to declare that he or she aged 18 or over. If the driver/ider is not satisfied that the

customer is aged 18 or over any alcohol in the order will be withheld


	 A warning shall be displayed on the digital platform on which an order is placed informing

customers that they must be aged 18 or over to make a purchase of alcohol and notifying

customers that the driver/rider will carry out age verification on delivery. The customer will be

required to declare that he or she aged 18 or over. If the driver/ider is not satisfied that the

customer is aged 18 or over any alcohol in the order will be withheld




	 
	 The Licence holder shall notify the Licensing Authority of the digital platform(s) used for the

sales of alcohol and any changes to those platforms.


	 The Licence holder shall notify the Licensing Authority of the digital platform(s) used for the

sales of alcohol and any changes to those platforms.


	 The Licence holder shall notify the Licensing Authority of the digital platform(s) used for the

sales of alcohol and any changes to those platforms.




	 
	 
	6.0 LICENSING HOURS


	 
	6.1 In general, the Licensing Authority will deal with the issue of licensing hours on the individual merits

of each application. However, when issuing a licence with hours beyond midnight higher standards

of control and supervision will be expected in order to promote the licensing objectives - especially

for premises situated in or near residential areas.


	 
	6.2 The Act does not provide for standard closing times. Licensed premises will generally be permitted

to sell alcohol during the hours they intend to open provided they can demonstrate to the

satisfaction of the Licensing Authority that the premises will be operated in a manner consistent

with the licensing objectives Home Office guidance and this Policy. However, there is no

presumption that applications for extended hours will take precedence over the human rights of

local residents and businesses.


	 
	6.3 The licensed hours will normally be approved where the applicant can show that the proposal would

not adversely affect the licensing objectives. The Licensing Authority may, however, set an earlier

terminal hour where it considers this is appropriate to the nature of the activities and the amenity of

the area or is necessary to achieve one or more of the licensing objectives.


	Formatted: Body Text Indent, Indent: Left: 1 cm, Hanging:

1 cm, Right: 0 cm, Widow/Orphan control, Tab stops: 2 cm,

Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color:

Red

Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color:

Red

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 1.68 cm +

Indent at: 2.32 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color:

Red

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 1.68 cm +

Indent at: 2.32 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color:

Red

Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color:

Red

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 1.68 cm +

Indent at: 2.32 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color:

Red

Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Font color:

Red

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 1.68 cm +

Indent at: 2.32 cm

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 1.68 cm +

Indent at: 2.32 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Red

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 1.68 cm +

Indent at: 2.32 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Red

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 1.68 cm +

Indent at: 2.32 cm

Formatted: Font color: Red
	Home Office Guidance states that the licensing objectives should be the Authority’s paramount consideration

at all times when determining applications. If the Licensing Committee or a sub-Committee believes that

granting longer hours would undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it with

appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested. (Guidance 10.14)

 
	 
	6.4 The Licensing Authority recognises that fixed and artificially early closing times in certain areas can

lead to peaks of disorder and disturbance on the streets when large numbers of people tend to

leave licensed premises at the same time. Flexible licensing hours in relation to the sale of alcohol

may therefore be considered as a potential means of reducing friction at late night food outlets, taxi

ranks and other ‘flashpoints’ in areas where there have already been incidents of disorder and

disturbance.


	 
	6.5 Shops, stores and supermarkets will generally be permitted to sell alcohol for consumption off the

premises during the normal hours they intend to open for shopping purposes. However, in the case

of individual shops, which are known to be a focus of disorder and disturbance then, where relevant

representations are received from a Responsible Authority or an interested party, the Licensing

Authority may consider a restriction on licensed hours where this is necessary to promote one or

more of the licensing objectives.


	 
	6.6 Because opening hours (i.e. hours when there are no licensable activities taking place) may in

themselves impact on the licensing objectives, the Authority will require any proposed change to

opening hours for an existing licence to be authorised by way of a variation to the licence. This

can be achieved by way of a minor variation application.


	 
	7. LICENCE CONDITIONS


	 
	7.1 Conditions attached to a premises licence or club premises certificate are a key element of the

regulatory framework established by the Act. There are three types of condition:


	 
	 mandatory conditions set out in the Act,


	 mandatory conditions set out in the Act,


	 mandatory conditions set out in the Act,



	 conditions consistent with the operating schedule, and


	 conditions consistent with the operating schedule, and



	 conditions imposed by the Licensing Authority.


	 conditions imposed by the Licensing Authority.




	 
	The Licensing Authority may only impose conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate where it has

received a relevant representation about an application. The application will then be determined at a hearing by a

Licensing sub-Committee.  If no relevant representation is received, the application must be granted on the terms applied

for subject only to the mandatory conditions and conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule.

 
	 
	7.2 Conditions are crucial in setting the parameters within which premises can lawfully operate. Any

contravention of a condition on a premises licence or club premises certificate is a criminal offence

so it is essential that conditions are worded clearly, precisely and unambiguously. In addition,


	conditions must:


	 
	(i) be appropriate, reasonable and proportionate


	(i) be appropriate, reasonable and proportionate


	(i) be appropriate, reasonable and proportionate



	(ii) be enforceable


	(ii) be enforceable



	(iii) not duplicate other statutory requirements


	(iii) not duplicate other statutory requirements



	(iv) be relevant to the particular type, location and character of the premises concerned


	(iv) be relevant to the particular type, location and character of the premises concerned



	(v) not be standardised


	(v) not be standardised



	(vi) not replicate offences set out in the Act or in other legislation


	(vi) not replicate offences set out in the Act or in other legislation



	(vii) be written in a prescriptive format


	(vii) be written in a prescriptive format




	 
	7.3 The Authority encourages applicants to seek technical advice from the appropriate Responsible

Authorities when preparing their Operating Schedules as this will enable any problems to be

resolved at an early stage and will reduce the likelihood of representations.


	 
	7.4 Experience has shown that many of the conditions volunteered by applicants are poorly worded,

unclear or ambiguous and therefore unenforceable. As an aid to applicants, the Authority has

prepared a menu of suggested measures to promote the licensing objectives which applicants are
	encouraged to consider when preparing their operating schedules. These measures are not

prescriptive but will help to ensure that licence conditions are expressed clearly and consistently

and enable enforcement to be carried out equitably. The measures can be viewed at


	www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing. The Authority, in consultation with the applicant, may amend


	the wording of proposed conditions where this is unclear, ambiguous or unenforceable.


	 
	  Home Office guidance states that it is not acceptable for licensing authorities to simply replicate the wording from an

applicant’s operating schedule. A condition should be interpreted in accordance with the applicant’s intention. ((Home

Office Guidance 10.5)

 
	 
	7.5 The Authority will pay particular attention to the effect – potential or actual - of licensable activities

on those living, working or otherwise engaged in the area concerned and, where relevant

representations are received, may attach conditions if it considers it appropriate for the promotion

of the licensing objectives.


	 
	7.6 Conditions attached by the Authority to Premises Licences and Club premises certificates will relate

to matters falling within the control of individual licensees. It is recognised that the licensing function

cannot be a mechanism for the control of disorderly behaviour by individuals once they are beyond

the direct control of the licence holder. However, the Licensing Authority and Responsible

Authorities may take action where it can be established that there is a clear linkage between

disorderly behaviour and a specific premises.


	   
	7.7 The Authority will not impose inappropriate or over-burdensome conditions on licences. The

Authority may, however, impose conditions where existing legislation does not provide adequate

controls and additional measures are considered to be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing

objectives.


	 
	7.8 Although it is not a legal requirement, the Licensing Authority recommends as good practice - in

respect of premises licensed to sell or supply alcohol for consumption on the premises - that a

Personal Licence holder is on the premises at all times to make or authorise such sales or supplies.

The Authority is keen to encourage the presence of properly trained staff on licensed premises.

Applicants may wish to consider including this as a condition of licence, where appropriate, as a

measure to promote the licensing objectives. Where this is not possible (because the premises is

too small or because staffing levels do not permit) or when the Premises Supervisor/Personal

Licence holder will be absent for a significant length of time, a responsible person should be

authorised to oversee the sale of alcohol in the place of the Premises Supervisor/Personal Licence

holder. The Authority will expect the authorisation to be made in writing, kept securely on the

premises and made available for inspection by an authorised person if requested. Copies of the

authorisation should be sent to the Licensing Authority and the police.


	 
	NB. ‘Authorisation’ does not mean direct supervision. The government recommends that Personal Licence holders give

specific written authorisations to individuals they are authorising to sell or supply alcohol and that such individuals are

clearly identified (Home Office Guidance 10.331  and 10.3)

 
	 
	7.9 Disapplication of Certain Mandatory Conditions for Community Premises


	 
	7.9.1 An amendment to the Licensing Act 2003 made in 2009 allows certain community premises which

have or are applying for a premises licence that authorises alcohol sales to also apply to include

the ‘alternative licence condition’ instead of the usual mandatory conditions in sections 19(2) and

19(3) of the Act (requirement for a DPS and for alcohol sales to be made or authorised by a

personal licence holder). Such an application may only be made if the licence holder is, or is to

be, a committee or board of individuals with responsibility for the management of the premises.


	 
	L
	L
	L
	Span
	 Where it is not clear whether premises are community premises, the Licensing Authority will

approach the matter on a case by case basis. The main consideration being how the premises

are predominantly used. If they are genuinely made available for community benefit most of

the time, and accessible by a broad range of persons and sectors of the local community for
	 Where it is not clear whether premises are community premises, the Licensing Authority will

approach the matter on a case by case basis. The main consideration being how the premises

are predominantly used. If they are genuinely made available for community benefit most of

the time, and accessible by a broad range of persons and sectors of the local community for




	purposes which include purposes beneficial to the community as a whole, the premises will

be likely to meet the definition.


	purposes which include purposes beneficial to the community as a whole, the premises will

be likely to meet the definition.


	purposes which include purposes beneficial to the community as a whole, the premises will

be likely to meet the definition.


	purposes which include purposes beneficial to the community as a whole, the premises will

be likely to meet the definition.


	purposes which include purposes beneficial to the community as a whole, the premises will

be likely to meet the definition.






	 
	 
	 
	 
	8. CUMULATIVE IMPACT


	 
	‘Cumulative impact ‘or ‘saturation’  has been described within the Home Office Guidance and used by  Llicensing

Authorities within their policies since the Commencement of the 2003 Act.  It  is defined in Home Office guidance as ‘the

potential impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives of a significant number of licensed premises concentrated

in one area’. Whilst flexible opening hours may encourage the gradual dispersal of customers from premises, it is possible

that the behaviour of customers from a concentration of premises, taken together, may have a disproportionate impact

on the amenity of the surrounding area. Where a Licensing Authority believes that a particular area is becoming saturated

with licensed premises, it may adopt a  cumulative  impact assessment’  and refuse  applications for new premises licences

where relevant representations relating to cumulative impact have been received.

 
	 
	8.1 ‘Cumulative impact assessments’ (CIA) were introduced in the 2003 Act by the Policing and Crime

Act 2017, with effect from 6 April 2018.


	 
	8.2 The Authority may publish a cumulative impact assessment (CIA) to help limit the number or types

of licence applications granted in areas where there is evidence to show that the number or density

of licensed premises in the area is having a cumulative impact and leading to problems which are

undermining the licensing objectives.


	 
	8.3 This should not, however, be equated with 'need' which relates more to the commercial demand for

a particular type of premises. The issue of 'need' is a matter for planning consideration or for the

market to decide and does not form part of this licensing policy statement.


	 
	8.4 If the Authority receives relevant evidence suggesting that the cumulative impact of new and

varied licences is leading to an area becoming saturated with premises of a particular type and

thereby creating problems of disorder and nuisance over and above the impact of the individual

premises, the Authority may consider the issue of cumulative impact when determining an

application. The onus is on any person, or organisation, submitting evidence to prove the

assertion that the grant of the licence would cause the cumulative impact claimed.


	 
	8.5 The Authority does not propose to operate a quota system of any kind, which would have the effect

of pre-determining any application; nor does it seek to impose general limitations on trading hours

in particular areas. The Authority recognises that pubs, clubs, restaurants, hotels, theatres, concert

halls and cinemas have contrasting characteristics and styles of operation. Proper regard will be

given to those differences and the impact they are likely to have on the promotion of the licensing

objectives.


	8.5 The Authority does not propose to operate a quota system of any kind, which would have the effect

of pre-determining any application; nor does it seek to impose general limitations on trading hours

in particular areas. The Authority recognises that pubs, clubs, restaurants, hotels, theatres, concert

halls and cinemas have contrasting characteristics and styles of operation. Proper regard will be

given to those differences and the impact they are likely to have on the promotion of the licensing

objectives.


	8.5 The Authority does not propose to operate a quota system of any kind, which would have the effect

of pre-determining any application; nor does it seek to impose general limitations on trading hours

in particular areas. The Authority recognises that pubs, clubs, restaurants, hotels, theatres, concert

halls and cinemas have contrasting characteristics and styles of operation. Proper regard will be

given to those differences and the impact they are likely to have on the promotion of the licensing

objectives.


	8.5 The Authority does not propose to operate a quota system of any kind, which would have the effect

of pre-determining any application; nor does it seek to impose general limitations on trading hours

in particular areas. The Authority recognises that pubs, clubs, restaurants, hotels, theatres, concert

halls and cinemas have contrasting characteristics and styles of operation. Proper regard will be

given to those differences and the impact they are likely to have on the promotion of the licensing

objectives.





	 
	8.6 There must be an evidential basis for the Authority to make the decision to publish a CIA. The

Community Safety Partnership, the Police and Environmental Health, may hold relevant

information which would assist the Licensing Authority when establishing the evidence base for

publishing a CIA. Evidence of cumulative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives

needs to relate to the relevant problems identified in the specified area to be covered by the CIA.

Information which the Authority may be able to draw on includes:


	 
	L
	Span
	 local crime and disorder statistics, including statistics on specific types of crime and crime

hotspots;


	 local crime and disorder statistics, including statistics on specific types of crime and crime

hotspots;



	 statistics on local anti-social behaviour offences;


	 statistics on local anti-social behaviour offences;



	 health-related statistics such as alcohol-related emergency attendances and hospital

admissions;


	 health-related statistics such as alcohol-related emergency attendances and hospital

admissions;



	 environmental health complaints, particularly in relation to litter and noise;


	 environmental health complaints, particularly in relation to litter and noise;



	 complaints recorded by the local authority, which may include complaints raised by local

residents or residents’ associations;


	 complaints recorded by the local authority, which may include complaints raised by local

residents or residents’ associations;



	 residents’ questionnaires;
	 residents’ questionnaires;


	 evidence from local and parish councillors; and


	 evidence from local and parish councillors; and


	 evidence from local and parish councillors; and



	 evidence obtained through local consultation.


	 evidence obtained through local consultation.



	 Cconsult with those mentioned in section 5(3) of the Licensing Act 2003;


	 Cconsult with those mentioned in section 5(3) of the Licensing Act 2003;




	 
	8.7 This Licensing Authority may consider this evidence, alongside its own evidence of the impact of

licensable activities within its area, and consider in particular the times at which licensable activities

are carried on. Information which may inform consideration of these issues includes:


	 
	 trends in licence applications, particularly trends in applications by types of premises and

terminal hours;


	 trends in licence applications, particularly trends in applications by types of premises and

terminal hours;


	 trends in licence applications, particularly trends in applications by types of premises and

terminal hours;



	 changes in terminal hours of premises;


	 changes in terminal hours of premises;



	 premises capacities at different times of night and the expected concentrations of drinkers

who will be expected to be leaving premises at different times.


	 premises capacities at different times of night and the expected concentrations of drinkers

who will be expected to be leaving premises at different times.




	 
	Where there is evidence that a particular area of the District is already suffering adverse effects

arising from a concentration of late night premises, or that residential areas are under stress, this

may be taken into account in determining any further applications for licences within the area

identified. In such circumstances the Licensing Authority may take into account:


	 
	 The character of the surrounding area;


	 The character of the surrounding area;


	 The character of the surrounding area;



	 The impact of the licence on the surrounding area, both individually and cumulatively with

existing licences;


	 The impact of the licence on the surrounding area, both individually and cumulatively with

existing licences;



	 The nature and character of the proposed operation.


	 The nature and character of the proposed operation.



	 Evidence from a Responsible Authority of potential or actual negative impact on the licensing

objectives in any given area,


	 Evidence from a Responsible Authority of potential or actual negative impact on the licensing

objectives in any given area,



	 The number of substantiated complaints about licensed premises received from residents

and/or businesses in any given area.


	 The number of substantiated complaints about licensed premises received from residents

and/or businesses in any given area.




	 
	8.8 If this Licensing Authority Publishes a CIA it will review it every three years.


	 
	8.9 The concept of cumulative impact may be relevant to the town centres of Barnstaple and Ilfracombe

which, since the introduction of the Act, have seen a significant rise in the number of licensed

premises granted extended hours, resulting in a general trend towards later disorder and nuisance

which places significant demands on police resources.


	 
	8.10 This Authority does not currently propose to adopt a CIA in relation to cumulative impact. However,

the Authority recognises that there is a significant concentration of licensed premises in Barnstaple

and Ilfracombe town centre which, collectively, has the capacity to have a disproportionate effect

on residents and businesses both in the town centre and in the immediately adjacent area.

Therefore, when considering applications for new licences/club premises certificates or applications

to vary existing premises licences/club premises certificates - especially where longer hours are

sought - applications will only be granted where the Authority is completely satisfied that there will

be no adverse effect on the licensing objectives.


	 
	 
	9. ENFORCEMENT


	 
	9.1 Enforcement Activity and Policy


	9.1 Enforcement Activity and Policy


	9.1 Enforcement Activity and Policy


	9.1 Enforcement Activity and Policy





	  
	9.1.1 The Licensing Authority employs enforcement officers to investigate complaints against licensed

premises, allegations of unlicensed activities, and the breach of licence conditions. Enforcement

may be carried out independently by these authorised persons or in partnership with other

enforcement agencies and Responsible Authorities. Where joint enforcement work is envisaged,

the Licensing Authority will establish appropriate protocols, which will be reviewed at regular

intervals. 
	 
	9.2.1 9.2 In general, action will be taken in accordance with the Authority’s Licensing Corporate

Enforcement Policy  (July 2022) and The Regulators Code (April 2014). The Authority will apply the

key principles of targeting, consistency, transparency and proportionality in accordance with the

Regulatory Compliance Code. Inspection and enforcement will be risk-based with a lighter touch

being adopted for premises which are well managed and where there is little or no evidence of

crime and disorder, public nuisance or other problems.

 
	 
	9.3 An incremental approach will be adopted starting with a verbal or written warning for infringements

of the law or failure to comply with licence conditions. Failure to respond to such warnings will result in

stronger enforcement measures being taken, which could lead to a prosecution or an application being

made for the review of a licence or club premises certificate (see 9.2). (Please refer to section 18.0 with

regard to the suspension of a premises licence or club premises certificate for non-payment of an

annual maintenance fee).


	 
	9.4 Where there are implications pertaining to the protection of children the Licensing Authority will

take a robust stance, for example where its discretion is engaged this Licensing Authority will

consider refusal/revocation in the first instance where test purchases have found venues selling

age restricted products to children.


	9.2.2


	  
	  
	  
	  
	  




	9.2.3 The Licensing Authority will refer to the following Policies when considering enforcement:


	 
	 The Regulators Code (April 2014).


	 The Regulators Code (April 2014).


	 The Regulators Code (April 2014).


	 The Regulators Code (April 2014).


	 The Regulators Code (April 2014).






	 
	 
	 
	9.2 Review


	9.2 Review


	9.2 Review


	9.2 Review





	 
	9.2.1 A Responsible Authority and any other person can, at any time following the grant of a Premises

Licence or Club Premises Certificate, apply to the Licensing Authority to review the

 
	licence/certificate because of concerns arising at the premises which may have an adverse impact

on any of the licensing objectives. The Authority regards this as a valuable protection for residents

and businesses. Applications for a review must be made in writing and will be considered by a

Licensing sub-Committee at a hearing.


	 
	9.2.2 Any application for a review should be treated seriously. Responsible authorities will aim to give

licensees early warning of any concerns identified at a premises, and talk to the licence or

certificate holder to establish whether there are any steps they may be willing to take to rectify the

situation. Similarly those seeking a review which are not a responsible authority are encouraged

to take initial steps such as:


	9.2.2 Any application for a review should be treated seriously. Responsible authorities will aim to give

licensees early warning of any concerns identified at a premises, and talk to the licence or

certificate holder to establish whether there are any steps they may be willing to take to rectify the

situation. Similarly those seeking a review which are not a responsible authority are encouraged

to take initial steps such as:


	9.2.2 Any application for a review should be treated seriously. Responsible authorities will aim to give

licensees early warning of any concerns identified at a premises, and talk to the licence or

certificate holder to establish whether there are any steps they may be willing to take to rectify the

situation. Similarly those seeking a review which are not a responsible authority are encouraged

to take initial steps such as:


	9.2.2 Any application for a review should be treated seriously. Responsible authorities will aim to give

licensees early warning of any concerns identified at a premises, and talk to the licence or

certificate holder to establish whether there are any steps they may be willing to take to rectify the

situation. Similarly those seeking a review which are not a responsible authority are encouraged

to take initial steps such as:


	9.2.2 Any application for a review should be treated seriously. Responsible authorities will aim to give

licensees early warning of any concerns identified at a premises, and talk to the licence or

certificate holder to establish whether there are any steps they may be willing to take to rectify the

situation. Similarly those seeking a review which are not a responsible authority are encouraged

to take initial steps such as:






	 
	 asking the Licensing Authority to talk to the licence holder on their behalf


	 asking the Licensing Authority to talk to the licence holder on their behalf


	 asking the Licensing Authority to talk to the licence holder on their behalf



	 asking their local MP or Councillor to speak to the licence holder on their behalf


	 asking their local MP or Councillor to speak to the licence holder on their behalf



	 talking to the relevant responsible authority (e.g. Environmental Protection Team in relation

to noise nuisance or the police in relation to crime and disorder) to establish whether there

is other action that can be taken to resolve the problem.


	 talking to the relevant responsible authority (e.g. Environmental Protection Team in relation

to noise nuisance or the police in relation to crime and disorder) to establish whether there

is other action that can be taken to resolve the problem.




	 
	9.2.3 The review process is not intended as a means of challenging the grant of a licence following the

failure of representations to persuade the Licensing Authority on an earlier occasion. No more than

one review from a person other than a Responsible Authority will be entertained in relation to a

particular premises within a period of twelve months on similar grounds, save in compelling

circumstances (e.g. where new problems have arisen) or where it arises following a closure order

made under s.160 or s.161 of the Act.


	9.2.3 The review process is not intended as a means of challenging the grant of a licence following the

failure of representations to persuade the Licensing Authority on an earlier occasion. No more than

one review from a person other than a Responsible Authority will be entertained in relation to a

particular premises within a period of twelve months on similar grounds, save in compelling

circumstances (e.g. where new problems have arisen) or where it arises following a closure order

made under s.160 or s.161 of the Act.


	9.2.3 The review process is not intended as a means of challenging the grant of a licence following the

failure of representations to persuade the Licensing Authority on an earlier occasion. No more than

one review from a person other than a Responsible Authority will be entertained in relation to a

particular premises within a period of twelve months on similar grounds, save in compelling

circumstances (e.g. where new problems have arisen) or where it arises following a closure order

made under s.160 or s.161 of the Act.


	9.2.3 The review process is not intended as a means of challenging the grant of a licence following the

failure of representations to persuade the Licensing Authority on an earlier occasion. No more than

one review from a person other than a Responsible Authority will be entertained in relation to a

particular premises within a period of twelve months on similar grounds, save in compelling

circumstances (e.g. where new problems have arisen) or where it arises following a closure order

made under s.160 or s.161 of the Act.


	9.2.3 The review process is not intended as a means of challenging the grant of a licence following the

failure of representations to persuade the Licensing Authority on an earlier occasion. No more than

one review from a person other than a Responsible Authority will be entertained in relation to a

particular premises within a period of twelve months on similar grounds, save in compelling

circumstances (e.g. where new problems have arisen) or where it arises following a closure order

made under s.160 or s.161 of the Act.






	 
	Formatted: Indent: Left: 2 cm, No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left: 1.25 cm, Hanging: 0.75

cm, Tab stops: 2 cm, Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 3 + Aligned at: 3.17 cm +

Indent at: 3.81 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Normal, Right: 0.5 cm, No widow/orphan

control, Tab stops: 1.66 cm, Left + Not at 2 cm
	Formatted: Indent: Left: 2 cm, No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left: 1.25 cm, Hanging: 0.75

cm, Tab stops: 2 cm, Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 3 + Aligned at: 3.17 cm +

Indent at: 3.81 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Normal, Right: 0.5 cm, No widow/orphan

control, Tab stops: 1.66 cm, Left + Not at 2 cm
	Formatted: Indent: Left: 2 cm, No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left: 1.25 cm, Hanging: 0.75

cm, Tab stops: 2 cm, Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 3 + Aligned at: 3.17 cm +

Indent at: 3.81 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Normal, Right: 0.5 cm, No widow/orphan

control, Tab stops: 1.66 cm, Left + Not at 2 cm
	Formatted: Indent: Left: 2 cm, No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left: 1.25 cm, Hanging: 0.75

cm, Tab stops: 2 cm, Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 3 + Aligned at: 3.17 cm +

Indent at: 3.81 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Normal, Right: 0.5 cm, No widow/orphan

control, Tab stops: 1.66 cm, Left + Not at 2 cm
	9.2.4 When considering a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate, the Authority will

expect the applicants for the review to provide evidence of previous infringements of licensing

regulations, failure to comply with licence conditions and/or of failure to promote the licensing


	9.2.4 When considering a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate, the Authority will

expect the applicants for the review to provide evidence of previous infringements of licensing

regulations, failure to comply with licence conditions and/or of failure to promote the licensing






	objectives. Further guidance on the review procedure is available from the Home Office

(www.homeoffice.gov.uk) and North Devon Council (
	objectives. Further guidance on the review procedure is available from the Home Office

(www.homeoffice.gov.uk) and North Devon Council (
	objectives. Further guidance on the review procedure is available from the Home Office

(www.homeoffice.gov.uk) and North Devon Council (
	objectives. Further guidance on the review procedure is available from the Home Office

(www.homeoffice.gov.uk) and North Devon Council (
	objectives. Further guidance on the review procedure is available from the Home Office

(www.homeoffice.gov.uk) and North Devon Council (
	objectives. Further guidance on the review procedure is available from the Home Office

(www.homeoffice.gov.uk) and North Devon Council (
	www.northdevon.gov.uk
	www.northdevon.gov.uk

	/licensing).







	 
	9.2.5 Following a review, the Authority will focus any remedial action directly on the concerns identified

in the representations. In all cases, action will be appropriate, reasonable and proportionate to the

nature of the problems giving rise to the review. Options available to the Authority are:


	9.2.5 Following a review, the Authority will focus any remedial action directly on the concerns identified

in the representations. In all cases, action will be appropriate, reasonable and proportionate to the

nature of the problems giving rise to the review. Options available to the Authority are:


	9.2.5 Following a review, the Authority will focus any remedial action directly on the concerns identified

in the representations. In all cases, action will be appropriate, reasonable and proportionate to the

nature of the problems giving rise to the review. Options available to the Authority are:


	9.2.5 Following a review, the Authority will focus any remedial action directly on the concerns identified

in the representations. In all cases, action will be appropriate, reasonable and proportionate to the

nature of the problems giving rise to the review. Options available to the Authority are:


	9.2.5 Following a review, the Authority will focus any remedial action directly on the concerns identified

in the representations. In all cases, action will be appropriate, reasonable and proportionate to the

nature of the problems giving rise to the review. Options available to the Authority are:






	 
	(ii) to modify the conditions of licence


	(ii) to modify the conditions of licence


	(ii) to modify the conditions of licence



	(iii) to exclude a licensable activity form the scope of the licence


	(iii) to exclude a licensable activity form the scope of the licence



	(iv) to remove the designated premises supervisor


	(iv) to remove the designated premises supervisor



	(v) to suspend the licence for a period of not more than three months


	(v) to suspend the licence for a period of not more than three months



	(vi) to revoke the licence


	(vi) to revoke the licence




	 
	9.2.6 In cases where the crime and disorder objective has been undermined or where it can be

demonstrated that a premises has a history of persistent offending, suspension or revocation of a

licence, even in the first instance, may be seriously considered as a form of deterrence. (See also

10.6).


	9.2.6 In cases where the crime and disorder objective has been undermined or where it can be

demonstrated that a premises has a history of persistent offending, suspension or revocation of a

licence, even in the first instance, may be seriously considered as a form of deterrence. (See also

10.6).


	9.2.6 In cases where the crime and disorder objective has been undermined or where it can be

demonstrated that a premises has a history of persistent offending, suspension or revocation of a

licence, even in the first instance, may be seriously considered as a form of deterrence. (See also

10.6).


	9.2.6 In cases where the crime and disorder objective has been undermined or where it can be

demonstrated that a premises has a history of persistent offending, suspension or revocation of a

licence, even in the first instance, may be seriously considered as a form of deterrence. (See also

10.6).


	9.2.6 In cases where the crime and disorder objective has been undermined or where it can be

demonstrated that a premises has a history of persistent offending, suspension or revocation of a

licence, even in the first instance, may be seriously considered as a form of deterrence. (See also

10.6).






	 
	9.2.7 Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Authority has the right of appeal to the Magistrates’

Court. An appeal must be made within 21 days of the Licensing Authority’s decision.


	9.2.7 Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Authority has the right of appeal to the Magistrates’

Court. An appeal must be made within 21 days of the Licensing Authority’s decision.


	9.2.7 Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Authority has the right of appeal to the Magistrates’

Court. An appeal must be made within 21 days of the Licensing Authority’s decision.


	9.2.7 Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Authority has the right of appeal to the Magistrates’

Court. An appeal must be made within 21 days of the Licensing Authority’s decision.


	9.2.7 Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Authority has the right of appeal to the Magistrates’

Court. An appeal must be made within 21 days of the Licensing Authority’s decision.






	 
	10. CHILDREN IN LICENSED PREMISES


	 
	10.1 The Licensing Authority recognises the great variety of premises for which licences may be sought.

These will include theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, registered clubs, cafes,

takeaways, community halls and schools. As a general principle, access by children to licensed

premises will not be limited, and any restrictions will be left to the discretion of the licensee unless

it is considered necessary to protect children from harm.


	10.1 The Licensing Authority recognises the great variety of premises for which licences may be sought.

These will include theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, registered clubs, cafes,

takeaways, community halls and schools. As a general principle, access by children to licensed

premises will not be limited, and any restrictions will be left to the discretion of the licensee unless

it is considered necessary to protect children from harm.


	10.1 The Licensing Authority recognises the great variety of premises for which licences may be sought.

These will include theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, registered clubs, cafes,

takeaways, community halls and schools. As a general principle, access by children to licensed

premises will not be limited, and any restrictions will be left to the discretion of the licensee unless

it is considered necessary to protect children from harm.


	10.1 The Licensing Authority recognises the great variety of premises for which licences may be sought.

These will include theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, registered clubs, cafes,

takeaways, community halls and schools. As a general principle, access by children to licensed

premises will not be limited, and any restrictions will be left to the discretion of the licensee unless

it is considered necessary to protect children from harm.





	 
	10.2 When deciding whether to limit access to children, the Licensing Authority will judge each

application on its individual merits. Examples which may give rise to concern in respect of children

would include premises:


	10.2 When deciding whether to limit access to children, the Licensing Authority will judge each

application on its individual merits. Examples which may give rise to concern in respect of children

would include premises:


	10.2 When deciding whether to limit access to children, the Licensing Authority will judge each

application on its individual merits. Examples which may give rise to concern in respect of children

would include premises:


	10.2 When deciding whether to limit access to children, the Licensing Authority will judge each

application on its individual merits. Examples which may give rise to concern in respect of children

would include premises:





	 
	 where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is provided


	 where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is provided


	 where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is provided



	 where there is a strong element of gambling taking place


	 where there is a strong element of gambling taking place



	 where a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving

alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in the

context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming beer,

wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal)


	 where a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving

alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in the

context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming beer,

wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal)



	 with a known association with drug taking or dealing


	 with a known association with drug taking or dealing



	 where it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access


	 where it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access



	 in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol


	 in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol



	 for consumption on the premises.


	 for consumption on the premises.




	 
	10.3 Where the exhibition of films is permitted, the Licensing Authority will expect age restrictions to be

complied with in accordance with the British Board of Film Classification’s recommendations. The

Authority will only consider variations to this general rule in exceptional circumstances.


	 
	 
	10.4 Where relevant representations have been received, the Authority may impose licence conditions

at premises where children will be present for regulated entertainment so that sufficient adult staff

must be present to control the access and egress of children and to ensure their safety. Where

children may also be present at an event as entertainers it will be a requirement for there to be a

nominated adult responsible for child performers present at such performances.


	 
	10.5 The Licensing Authority will take strong measures to protect children where any licence holder is

convicted of serving alcohol to minors, where premises have a known association with drug taking

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.27 cm, Tab

stops: Not at 2 cm
	or dealing, gambling takes place on the premises or where entertainment of an adult or sexual

nature is provided. Options which the Authority may consider appropriate to limit access by children

may include:


	:


	 a limit on the hours when children may be present


	 a limit on the hours when children may be present


	 a limit on the hours when children may be present



	 restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when particular

specified activities are taking place


	 restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when particular

specified activities are taking place



	 restricting on the parts of the premises to which children may have access


	 restricting on the parts of the premises to which children may have access



	 age restrictions (for under 18s)


	 age restrictions (for under 18s)



	 restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place requirements for an

accompanying adult ( including for example, a combination of requirements which provide

that children under a particular age must be accompanied by an adult)


	 restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place requirements for an

accompanying adult ( including for example, a combination of requirements which provide

that children under a particular age must be accompanied by an adult)



	 and full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are

taking place.


	 and full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are

taking place.




	 
	10.6 In the event of a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate for under age sales of

alcohol, the Authority will take strong and appropriate action to ensure that children are protected.

This may include, for example, removal of the Designated Premises Supervisor or suspension or

revocation of the licence/club premises certificate.


	 
	10.7 In the event of a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate for under age sales of

alcohol, the Licensing Authority will take strong and appropriate action to ensure that children are

protected. This may include, for example, removal of the Designated Premises Supervisor or

suspension or revocation of the licence/club premises certificate.


	 
	10.8 This Authority has designated the Devon County Council (Devon Children and families

partnership), as the body competent to advise the Authority on issues relating to the protection of

children from harm.

 
	 
	11. DRUGS, /ILLEGAL , AND PSYCHOACTIVE SUBSTANCES


	 
	11.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that drug use is not something that is experienced by all

licensed premises. However, where relevant representations are received, the Licensing Authority

may need to impose special conditions for certain types of venues in order to reduce the sale and

consumption of drugs and to create a safer environment for customers using the premises. The

conditions to be imposed in such cases will be taken from the Authority’s guidance notes which can

be viewed at 
	11.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that drug use is not something that is experienced by all

licensed premises. However, where relevant representations are received, the Licensing Authority

may need to impose special conditions for certain types of venues in order to reduce the sale and

consumption of drugs and to create a safer environment for customers using the premises. The

conditions to be imposed in such cases will be taken from the Authority’s guidance notes which can

be viewed at 
	www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing
	www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing

	. The Authority may also have regard to guidance

published by the Home Office. Where the Authority deems such conditions to be appropriate for

the promotion of the licensing objectives, it will seek advice from an appropriate agency and the

Police.



	 
	 
	Psychoactive Substances, e.g. Nitrous Oxide (NOx)


	 
	11.2 Misuse of nitrous oxide is associated with increased antisocial behaviour including littering, noise

nuisance and vandalism, all of which are detrimental to residents’ quality of life and feelings of safety.

Use of nitrous oxide is also a health concern and has other associated harms.


	 
	11.3 As a result, this Licensing Authority expects Licence Holders to refuse entry to any person seen using

or selling NOx as a psychoactive Substance. Refusals should also be entered into Licence Holders

refusals log.


	 
	Where its discretion is engaged this Licensing Authority may impose conditions to formally

require refusal of persons seen selling or using NOx as a psychoactive Substance.


	 
	 
	12. DOOR SUPERVISORS

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Indent: Left: 2 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Indent: Left: 2 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Indent: Left: 2 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm
	 
	12.1 Whenever any persons are employed at licensed premises to carry out any security activity, all

such persons must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority. The Authority recognises that

certain premises, because of the nature of their operation, their capacity, their licensed hours and

the licensable activities provided, may require stricter supervision for the purpose of reducing crime

and disorder and public nuisance. In such cases, where relevant representations are received, the

Authority may impose a condition that licensed door supervisors must be employed at the premises

either at all times or at such times as certain licensable activities are being carried out.


	 
	12.2 The Authority recognises that Door Supervisors have an important function in terms of supervising

customers not only inside premises but also outside. Door Supervisors will therefore be expected

to take a pro-active role in managing the behaviour of customers outside premises in order to

minimise any disturbance and nuisance to nearby residents. Licence holders should ensure in

particular that, at closing times, they have sufficient Door Supervisors to effectively control ‘surges’

of customers leaving premises.


	12.2 The Authority recognises that Door Supervisors have an important function in terms of supervising

customers not only inside premises but also outside. Door Supervisors will therefore be expected

to take a pro-active role in managing the behaviour of customers outside premises in order to

minimise any disturbance and nuisance to nearby residents. Licence holders should ensure in

particular that, at closing times, they have sufficient Door Supervisors to effectively control ‘surges’

of customers leaving premises.


	12.2 The Authority recognises that Door Supervisors have an important function in terms of supervising

customers not only inside premises but also outside. Door Supervisors will therefore be expected

to take a pro-active role in managing the behaviour of customers outside premises in order to

minimise any disturbance and nuisance to nearby residents. Licence holders should ensure in

particular that, at closing times, they have sufficient Door Supervisors to effectively control ‘surges’

of customers leaving premises.


	12.2 The Authority recognises that Door Supervisors have an important function in terms of supervising

customers not only inside premises but also outside. Door Supervisors will therefore be expected

to take a pro-active role in managing the behaviour of customers outside premises in order to

minimise any disturbance and nuisance to nearby residents. Licence holders should ensure in

particular that, at closing times, they have sufficient Door Supervisors to effectively control ‘surges’

of customers leaving premises.





	 
	12.3 Whenever security operatives are employed at licensed premises to carry out any security function

such operatives must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority (SIA). Competent and

professional door supervisors are key to public safety at licensed premises and the provision of

door supervisors is an action point for the leisure industry to consider in the Home Office Alcohol

Harm Reduction Strategy.


	 
	It is a mandatory condition of a Premises Licence that where the licence requires personnel to carry out security activity

(e.g. screening of customers, dealing with conflict management, crowd control) such personnel are licensed by the

Security Industry Authority. (Licensing Act 2003, s.21)

 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	13. VESSELS


	 
	13.1 There are a number of additional responsible authorities stipulated in the Act which relate to the

licensing of vessels. The Authority will consider any representations made by these Responsible

Authorities when considering applications for premises licences in respect of a vessel. Where, in

the opinion of the Authority, any of the four objectives are undermined, and this cannot be resolved

through the imposition of specific conditions, the application is likely to be refused.


	 
	14. LICENSING OF PUBLIC LAND


	 
	14.1 The Authority recognises that land owned by the local authority and by other public bodies often

lends itself to the performance of public events which involve one or more licensable activities. In

the interests of promoting cultural richness and diversity within the area, the Authority will

encourage the local authority to apply for such licences for the benefit of the community where it is

satisfied that they will not have a negative impact on the licensing objectives.


	 
	14.2 In order to help event organisers and touring entertainment providers plan where licensable

activities will be carried out the DCMS maintain a Register of Licensed Public Spaces in England

and Wales (
	14.2 In order to help event organisers and touring entertainment providers plan where licensable

activities will be carried out the DCMS maintain a Register of Licensed Public Spaces in England

and Wales (
	www.culture.gov.uk
	www.culture.gov.uk

	). When a licence is issued for public land, North Devon Council will

provide those areas licensed and the activities to which the licence relates to the DCMS for use in

this register.



	 
	The Government encourages local authorities to consider establishing a policy of seeking premises licences for public

spaces they own e.g. public parks, promenades, community buildings etc. Where such licences are in force, this removes

the burden on individuals and community organisations of applying for a premises licence or giving a Temporary Event

Notice.

 
	 
	15. BEER GARDENS OR OTHER OUTDOOR SPACES
	 
	15.1 Applicants will want to consider whether they might want to use a garden or other outdoor space

as a location from which alcohol will be consumed. The sale of alcohol is to be treated as taking

place where the alcohol is appropriated to the contract. In scenarios where drink orders are taken

by a member of staff in the garden or outdoor space and the member of staff then collects the

drinks from the licensed premises and returns to deliver them to the customer this would be

treated as an off-sale and any conditions that relate to off-sales would apply.


	 
	15.2 In such cases it will be not necessary to include the garden or other outdoor space on the plan

as part of the area covered by the premises licence. However, it will be necessary for the

applicant to include the garden or other outdoor space on the plan as part of the area covered

by the premises licence if the intention is to provide a service whereby drinks are available for

sale and consumption directly from that area (i.e. the provision of on-sales). This would apply in

the case of an outdoor bar or a service whereby a member of staff who is in the garden or

outdoor space carries with them drinks that are available for sale (without the need for the staff

member to return to the licensed premises to collect them).


	 
	15.3 Irrespective of whether a licence is required for on or off sales, the increase in the use of

outdoor areas since the ending of the pandemic does still need to strike the right balance

between allowing businesses to thrive whilst still protecting residents from being disturbed by

the night time economy. Issues pertaining to noise nuisance may be actioned by way of

alternative legislation and we would encourage applicants to address noise and anti-social

behaviour by way of their management practices and for those requiring an outside area to be

licensed this should be covered in their operating schedule. Mitigating measures to reduce any

disturbance on neighbouring residents could include:


	 limiting the amount of patrons permitted in the outside area, and/or,


	 limiting the amount of patrons permitted in the outside area, and/or,


	 limiting the amount of patrons permitted in the outside area, and/or,


	 limiting the amount of patrons permitted in the outside area, and/or,


	 limiting the amount of patrons permitted in the outside area, and/or,



	 ceasing its use after a certain time.


	 ceasing its use after a certain time.






	 
	15.4 Where disturbance of residence from outside areas is likely, and where its discretion is

engaged, this Licensing Authority may add conditions limiting the numbers of persons

permitted to use any outside areas, and/or seek to cease the use of any outside areas after

21:00 hours.


	 
	 
	15.53If the beer garden or other outdoor area is to be used for the consumption of off-sales only, there

is no requirement to show it on the plan of the premises, but the prescribed application form

requires the applicant to provide a description of where the place is and its proximity to the

premises.


	 
	 
	 
	16 TEMPORARY ACTIVITIES


	 
	16.1 The Licensing Act 2003 makes provision for regulating temporary events involving the supply of

alcohol, the provision of regulated entertainment or the provision of late night refreshment at a

premises which are not authorised by a premises licence or club premises certificate. This provision

can also be used by holders of premises licences and club premises certificates to authorise

extensions to their permitted hours.


	 
	16.2 The system of temporary activities is intended as a light touch process and, as such, the carrying

on of licensable activities does not have to be authorised by way of an application. Instead, a person

wishing to hold an event at which it is proposed to carry out such activities is required to notify the

Licensing Authority by way of a Temporary Event Notice (TEN).


	 
	16.3 A number of limitations are imposed on the use of TENs by the Act. The limitations apply to:


	Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic
	 the number of times a premises user may give a TEN (50 times in a calendar year for a

personal licence holder (inclusive of 10 late TENs only) and five times in a calendar year for

other people, (which is inclusive of 2 late TENs only);


	 the number of times a premises user may give a TEN (50 times in a calendar year for a

personal licence holder (inclusive of 10 late TENs only) and five times in a calendar year for

other people, (which is inclusive of 2 late TENs only);


	 the number of times a premises user may give a TEN (50 times in a calendar year for a

personal licence holder (inclusive of 10 late TENs only) and five times in a calendar year for

other people, (which is inclusive of 2 late TENs only);



	 the number of times a TEN may be given for any particular premises (15* times in a

calendar year);


	 the number of times a TEN may be given for any particular premises (15* times in a

calendar year);



	 the maximum duration of an event authorised by a TEN is 168 hours;


	 the maximum duration of an event authorised by a TEN is 168 hours;



	 a maximum total duration of the events authorised by TENs in relation to individual

premises (21** days in a calendar year);


	 a maximum total duration of the events authorised by TENs in relation to individual

premises (21** days in a calendar year);



	 athe maximum number of 499 people attending at any one time (which includes staff,

performers, and volunteers etc.fewer than 500); and


	 athe maximum number of 499 people attending at any one time (which includes staff,

performers, and volunteers etc.fewer than 500); and



	 the minimum period between events authorised under separate TENs in relation to the

same premises (not including withdrawn TENs) by the same premises user (24 hours).


	 the minimum period between events authorised under separate TENs in relation to the

same premises (not including withdrawn TENs) by the same premises user (24 hours).




	 
	16.4 The Alcohol Licensing (Coronavirus) (Regulatory Easements) (Amendment) Regulations

2021 temporarily increased limits for the 2023 (calendar year): * increased to 20 days and **

increased to 26 days.


	16.4 The Alcohol Licensing (Coronavirus) (Regulatory Easements) (Amendment) Regulations

2021 temporarily increased limits for the 2023 (calendar year): * increased to 20 days and **

increased to 26 days.


	16.4 The Alcohol Licensing (Coronavirus) (Regulatory Easements) (Amendment) Regulations

2021 temporarily increased limits for the 2023 (calendar year): * increased to 20 days and **

increased to 26 days.


	16.4 The Alcohol Licensing (Coronavirus) (Regulatory Easements) (Amendment) Regulations

2021 temporarily increased limits for the 2023 (calendar year): * increased to 20 days and **

increased to 26 days.





	 
	 
	Where events are planned outside the limits above, an application should be made for a limited

duration Premises Licence.


	


	 
	16.4 A TEN can be used for any ‘premises’. This could be a building, a room in a building, a vehicle, a

marquee, an open field etc. A TEN may only be given by an individual (aged over 18) and not by

an organisation or club or business.


	 
	16.5 There are two types of TEN; a standard TEN and a late TEN. A standard TEN must be given no

later than ten working days before the event to which it relates; a late TEN must be given not

before nine and no later than five working days before the event. (NB. Notice periods do not

include the day the Notice is given to the Licensing Authority or the day of the event. If this

minimum period of notice is not given, the Authority will reject the Notice and the licensable

activities may not take place). With regards to giving notice to the relevant authority, as the term

“give” used in section 100 of Licensing Act 2003 is not defined, the Licensing Authority considers

this to mean the date on which the TEN is received by the Licensing Authority and not the date on

which it was sent. Applicants are therefore advised to hand deliver notices if time is short, as late

notices will not be accepted under any circumstances.


	 
	  
	16.6 The police and North Devon Council’s Regulatory Services (‘relevant persons’) may object to a

TEN. If the Authority receives an objection notice from a relevant person that is not withdrawn, it

must (in the case of a standard TEN only) hold a hearing to consider the objection (unless all parties

agree that this is unnecessary). The Authority must consider any objection on the basis of the

licensing objectives and decide whether the event should go ahead. Relevant persons may also

intervene by agreeing a modification of the proposed arrangements directly with the person giving

the TEN. It should be noted that with a late TEN if a relevant person (Devon and Cornwall Police

and the Council’s Environmental Protection and Health and Safety teams) submit an objection the

event will not go ahead.


	 
	16.7 Where an objection is received, the Authority may impose conditions on a TEN but only where the

venue at which the event is to be held has an existing premises licence or club premises certificate.

The Authority may only otherwise intervene if the statutory permitted limits on TENs would be

exceeded.


	Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.25 cm, Hanging: 1.75 cm,

Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … +

Start at: 4 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.27 cm + Indent

at: 2.01 cm

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1 cm

Formatted: No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
	16.8 When giving a TEN, the premises user should consider the promotion of the four licensing objectives.

Organisers are strongly advised to contact relevant persons for advice at the earliest opportunity

when planning events. Planning at an early stage may well minimise or avoid potential objections.


	 
	16.9 Paragraph 7.11 of the Section 182 guidance cites that “Although ten clear working days is the

minimum possible notice that may be given, licensing authorities should publicise their

preferences in terms of advance notice and encourage premises users to provide the earliest

possible notice of events planned by them. Licensing authorities should also consider publicising

a preferred maximum time in advance of an event by when TENs should ideally be given to them.


	16.10 In accordance with this guidance, this Licensing Authority expects event organisers’ to give at

least 28 days’ notice of a temporary event. We also expect that when relevant, events are

discussed with relevant persons (Devon and Cornwall Police and the Council’s Environmental

Protection and Health and Safety teams) prior to submission. This will ensure that full detailed

discussion can take place between the organiser and any other interested parties in order to

ensure promotion of the four licensing objectives. The maximum timescale this Licensing

Authority suggests applicants notify of a TEN in advance of an event is 6 months.


	16.11 Risk Assessments and Event Management Plans: Whilst not a requirement, in order to assist

relevant persons, we would strongly urge that Event Plans/Risk Assessments are either included

with the TEN submission.


	16.12 Where the TEN includes the supply of alcohol, the responsibility for the supply rests with the person

giving the Notice (the ‘premises user’). The premises user does not have to be on the premises for

the entire duration of the event but will be liable for any offences committed.


	 
	 
	 
	16.130 Further advice on Temporary Events is available on our website at

www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing or on the Home Office website at

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/alcohol-licensing#temporary-events. Organisers should also read

‘Safety Advisory Groups’ (Section 4.4) as certain higher risk TENs may be relevant to this

process.


	 
	17.0 PUBWATCH


	 
	17.1 The Licensing Authority will support members of the licensed trade in the formulation and facilitation of

Pubwatch. At the time of this review, one PubWatch is in existence in Barnstaple.


	 
	 
	18.0 INITIATIVES


	 
	The Licensing Authority strongly support the following initiatives:


	 
	18.1 Targeting violence against women and girls in the evening and night time economy


	(Devon and Cornwall Police: Project Nighteye)


	 
	Premises Licence Holders, Designated Premises Supervisors, Personal Licence Holders and staff in licensed

premises working in the evening and night time economy should be aware of the type of behaviours exhibited

by perpetrators of violence against women and girls and when to report these to Devon and Cornwall Police.


	 
	If you hear about, see, or someone tells you about concerning behaviour, the Licensing Authority strongly

supports that you take action according to your management guidance, policy or event control instructions,

this might include dialling 999 and alerting police who may be on patrol or on site. The following form some

examples of behaviours of perpetrators:


	• Males loitering without reason and / or persistently returning to an area after being asked to leave

• Males persistently making unwanted contact towards females

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...

Formatted

...
	• Males blocking females from leaving a space, venue, event, or area

• Males making lewd comments or unwanted sexual advances towards females

• Males trying to isolate females and / or taking them away by physically pulling or pushing

• Following / stalking behaviour

• Particular concerns over behaviour of employees of the night-time economy who may have gained

employment to deliberately target females

• Vehicles loitering without reasons or circulating the evening and night-time economy or main routes

out

• Instances on social media discussing or highlighting the above experiences which appear not to

have been reported to police.


	Once you have taken action the Police suggest using the Community Partnership Intel form to make

reports, with as much detail as possible including, times, descriptions, locations, and vehicle registration

details. Please let us know if there is any CCTV coverage, too. You can also tell the Police about the above

behaviours anonymously through Crimestoppers 0800 555 111.


	 
	18.2 Ask for Angela


	Ask for Angela’ is a national scheme supported by bars, clubs, other licensed premises and events across

North Devon in connection with Devon and Cornwall Police. The scheme is advertised by placing posters in

key areas such as female toilets. For more posters please get in touch with your local policing team.


	The initiative allows people who feel unsafe, vulnerable or threatened to ask for help by approaching venue

staff and using the “Angela” code word.


	This codeword will indicate to staff that the customer requires help with their situation and a trained member

of staff can then assist them in accessing the discreet help they need. This might be through being reunited

with a friend, seeing them to a taxi or by calling the venue security or police.


	We aim to provide a list of licensed premises supporting Ask for Angela here.


	In support of this initiative please ensure that ALL of your staff are briefed on this scheme. 
	In support of this initiative please ensure that ALL of your staff are briefed on this scheme. 
	 
	They need to

know why and what to do if someone at the bar ‘Asks for Angela’, which may include:


	 
	Span

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Offer to take the person asking for help to a part of a venue not in sight of the public or potential threat

(staff room, kitchen, toilet).


	 
	Span


	 
	 
	 
	 
	Offer to call the person 
	 
	a taxi or assist them in calling a friend/family member to come and collect

them.


	 
	Span


	 
	 
	 
	 
	Where safe to do so (the person asking for help is out of sight and the staff consider it safe) request

the person causing distress leaves the venue.


	 
	Span


	 
	 
	 
	 
	Ask the person in distress what it is they want to do? 
	 
	(It might be they just want to alert staff that

things are becoming uncomfortable and might need someone to keep watch whilst they collect

possessions from the area they were seated).


	 
	Span


	 
	 
	 
	 
	Do not allow the person asking for help to leave the venue in sight of the person causing them

distress as this could lead to them being followed out of the venue and placed at higher risk.


	 
	Span


	 
	 
	 
	 
	If the person causing distress becomes angry consider calling the police for assistance or follow your

corporate policy on this issue.


	 
	Span



	 
	 
	18.3 Anti Drink Spiking Initiatives


	Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Red

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Tab stops: Not at 2 cm

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:

0.63 cm + Indent at: 1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Black,

Contextual Alternates

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Black,

Contextual Alternates

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Black,

Contextual Alternates

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Font color: Black,

Contextual Alternates

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm

Formatted: Font: Bold
	Spiking is where someone adds drugs or alcohol to another person’s drink without them knowing, it is

illegal.

 
	 
	In reference to the Local Government Association (LGA) Guidance note on drink spiking prevention, this

Licensing Authority expects licence holders and applicants to have a zero-tolerance policy towards drinks

spiking. This involves as a minimum ensuring all reports of spiking are acted upon and that all incidents

of alleged spiking are recorded and reported to the police.


	 
	The LGA has set some recommendations for licence holders, and we would expect our Licence holders

to follow these where appropriate to their venues.


	 
	https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/lga-guidance-note-drink-spiking-prevention#recommended�actions-for-licensed-premises�
	https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/lga-guidance-note-drink-spiking-prevention#recommended�actions-for-licensed-premises�
	https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/lga-guidance-note-drink-spiking-prevention#recommended�actions-for-licensed-premises�

	 

	 
	Applicants for new and variations of exiting licences as well as those submitting TENs are expected to

work with the Police in order to consider actions needed to prevent drinks spiking in their venues/events


	 
	Where its discretion is engaged this Licensing Authority will impose conditions on licences aimed at

preventing drinks spiking, specifically any recommended by the police.


	 
	18.4 Designated Driver Schemes


	 
	This Licensing Authority will support schemes designed to  raise awareness of the dangers of drink-driving

among drivers and  those  which encourage the use of a designated driver as normal behaviour.  Schemes

may include the provision of free soft drinks by licensed premises as a reward for being such a designated

driver.

 
	 
	197. LATE NIGHT LEVY


	 
	197.1The Late Night Levy is a discretionary power conferred on Licensing Authorities by Chapter

2 of Part 2 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. This provision came into force

on 31st October 2012 and enables a Licensing Authority to charge a levy on premises in the

authority’s area which are licensed to sell alcohol late at night as a means of raising a financial

contribution towards the costs of policing the late-night economy. The levy applies to the whole of

the Licensing Authority’s area.


	 
	197.2The levy will be payable by the holder of any premises licence or club premises certificate in the

authority’s area which authorises the sale or supply of alcohol on any days during the ‘late night

supply period’. This is a period beginning at or after midnight and ending on or before 6am.


	 
	197.3The decision to introduce the levy is for the licensing authority to make. Before making any such

decision, the Licensing Authority must consult the Chief Officer of Police, the Police and Crime

Commissioner and the holders of relevant late night licences or certificates. Local residents can

use existing channels and forums to put forward views and call for the implementation of the levy

in their area if they wish to do so.


	 
	197.4The Licensing Authority must pay at least 70% of the net levy revenue to the police. A Licensing

Authority can deduct the costs it incurs in connection with the introduction, administration,

collection, variation and enforcement of the levy prior to the levy revenue being apportioned

between the police and Licensing Authority.  The licensing authority has discretion to exempt certain

premises -  prescribed by regulations -  from the levy and to reduce the amount of the levy by 30%

for premises which participate in business-led best practice schemes.

 
	 
	197.5At the time of approving this Policy, this Authority has taken no decision to implement the Late Night

Levy but is aware that it is a power which it can use if it considers it appropriate for the promotion

of the licensing objectives.


	Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt
	197.6The Authority will review the need for a Late Night Levy at least every five years in conjunction with

the review of this policy. The Authority will, however, consider the introduction of a Late Night Levy

at any time if circumstances change and evidence supports this course of action.

  
	 
	2018. EARLY MORNING RESTRICTION ORDERS


	 
	2018.1 Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMROs) are a discretionary licensing power conferred on

Licensing Authorities by s.119 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act. and came into

force on 31st October 2012. This power enables a Licensing Authority to prohibit the sale of alcohol

for a specified time period between the hours of midnight and 6 a.m. in the whole or part of its area

if it is satisfied that this would be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.


	 
	2018.2 EMROs are designed to address recurring problems such as high levels of alcohol-related crime

and disorder in specific areas at specific times, serious public nuisance and other instances of

alcohol-related anti-social behaviour which are not directly attributable to specific premises.


	 
	2018.3 The decision to implement an EMRO must be evidence based. Evidence will be considered

from partners including Responsible Authorities and local Community Safety Partnerships

alongside the Authority’s own evidence to determine whether an EMRO is appropriate for the

promotion of the licensing objectives.


	 
	2018.4 Measures that may be considered in advance of making an EMRO include:


	 
	 introducing a Cumulative Impact Policy


	 introducing a Cumulative Impact Policy


	 introducing a Cumulative Impact Policy



	 reviewing licences of specific problem premises


	 reviewing licences of specific problem premises



	 encouraging the creation of business-led practice schemes in the area and


	 encouraging the creation of business-led practice schemes in the area and



	 the other mechanisms designed for controlling cumulative impact see 8.4


	 the other mechanisms designed for controlling cumulative impact see 8.4



	 encouraging licence or certificate holders to make variations with respect of hours for


	 encouraging licence or certificate holders to make variations with respect of hours for




	licensable activities.


	 
	2018.5 The only exemptions relating to EMROs are premises which are authorised to sell alcohol

between midnight and 6.00 am on New Year’s Eve and the provision of alcohol to residents in

premises with overnight accommodation by means of mini bars and room service.


	 
	2018.6 At the time of approving this Policy, this Authority has taken no decision to introduce an EMRO

but is aware that it is a power which it can use if it considers it appropriate for the promotion of the

licensing objectives.


	 
	2018.7 The Authority will review the need for an EMRO at least every five years in conjunction with the

review of this policy. The Authority will consider the introduction of an EMRO at any time if

circumstances change and evidence supports this course of action.

 
	 
	2119. PERSONAL LICENCE


	 
	2119.1 The Police have the right to object to a person applying for a personal licence if that person

has a relevant unspent conviction (at the time of application) or if they obtain a relevant conviction

during the application period of their licence.


	 
	2119.2 The Licensing Authority can revoke or suspend a licence in relation to convictions obtained

after 6 April 2017.


	 
	220 FEES


	 
	220.1Following amendments that came into force in October 2012 the Act requires a licensing authority

to suspend a premises licence or club premises certificate if the annual fee is not paid when it is

due.


	Formatted: Indent: Left: 1 cm, First line: 0 cm
	220.2 It is the practice of this Authority to issue an invoice for annual maintenance fee. Non payment

will then result in a suspension notice being served. Regulations state that the premises licence or

club premises certificate holder will be given notice of a suspension that is at least 2 working days

before the suspension is to take place.


	 
	220.3The Authority will not generally refund fees for licence applications, particularly where the Authority

has incurred costs in accepting and processing applications. Each case will, however, be decided

on merit.


	  
	 
	231. EQUALITY AND HUMAN RIGHTS ISSUES


	 
	23.1 We want North Devon to be a place where people have equal access to opportunities and where

inequality is actively tackled. The Licensing Authority recognises that this can only be done by

working with our partners to advance equality, promote good community relations and tackle

discrimination.


	 
	(i) 23.2 In developing this policy, the Authority recognises its responsibilities under the Equality Act

2010, to consider the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination and to promote equal opportunities.

The Policy therefore supports and is supported by North Devon’s Equality  Scheme and any equality

issues  will be addressed in an Equality Impact and Needs Assessment.

 
	 
	(ii)(i) 23.3The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human Rights and

makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way that is incompatible with a convention right.

The Authority will have regard to the Human Rights Act when exercising its licensing functions.


	(ii)(i) 23.3The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human Rights and

makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way that is incompatible with a convention right.

The Authority will have regard to the Human Rights Act when exercising its licensing functions.


	(ii)(i) 23.3The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human Rights and

makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way that is incompatible with a convention right.

The Authority will have regard to the Human Rights Act when exercising its licensing functions.


	(ii)(i) 23.3The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human Rights and

makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way that is incompatible with a convention right.

The Authority will have regard to the Human Rights Act when exercising its licensing functions.





	  
	(iii)(i) 2.4 Conditions relating to disabled access will not be attached to licences, as this would duplicate

existing statutory requirements. The Authority therefore takes this opportunity to remind holders of

premises licences and club premises certificates of their duties under the Equality Act 2010.


	(iii)(i) 2.4 Conditions relating to disabled access will not be attached to licences, as this would duplicate

existing statutory requirements. The Authority therefore takes this opportunity to remind holders of

premises licences and club premises certificates of their duties under the Equality Act 2010.


	(iii)(i) 2.4 Conditions relating to disabled access will not be attached to licences, as this would duplicate

existing statutory requirements. The Authority therefore takes this opportunity to remind holders of

premises licences and club premises certificates of their duties under the Equality Act 2010.


	(iii)(i) 2.4 Conditions relating to disabled access will not be attached to licences, as this would duplicate

existing statutory requirements. The Authority therefore takes this opportunity to remind holders of

premises licences and club premises certificates of their duties under the Equality Act 2010.





	 
	 
	Duties as a Licence Holder or Applicant to Equality


	 
	23.5 Applicants and licensees must make themselves familiar with the law and their responsibilities set out

within the Equality Act 2010 and relevant guidance for businesses, which can be found on the Equality

& Human Rights Commission website. The 2010 Act makes discrimination against any person

(including employees and customers) unlawful. The 2010 Act defines the relevant protected

characteristics as age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and

maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. Any activity in breach of the 2010 Act

may be considered an offence and will lead to enforcement by the Equality and Human Rights

Commission.


	 
	23.6 There is no one size fits all approach to making a venue inclusive, and each operator will need to

make an assessment of its own practices and policies. However, the following are common and best

practice examples that could be adopted:


	 
	 Inclusive and transparent policies (for example, admittance policies may clearly stipulate

adherence to a dress code and refusal if there are concerns about a customer; however, they

must not prevent admittance based on any of the protected characteristics).


	 Inclusive and transparent policies (for example, admittance policies may clearly stipulate

adherence to a dress code and refusal if there are concerns about a customer; however, they

must not prevent admittance based on any of the protected characteristics).


	 Inclusive and transparent policies (for example, admittance policies may clearly stipulate

adherence to a dress code and refusal if there are concerns about a customer; however, they

must not prevent admittance based on any of the protected characteristics).



	 Robust complaints procedures that make it easy for customers who feel they have been

discriminated against to raise their concerns and understand how this will be investigated or

managed.


	 Robust complaints procedures that make it easy for customers who feel they have been

discriminated against to raise their concerns and understand how this will be investigated or

managed.



	 Accessible venue layouts that make venues welcoming.


	 Accessible venue layouts that make venues welcoming.



	 Comprehensive training on equality and inclusion for all staff, which is regularly refreshed.


	 Comprehensive training on equality and inclusion for all staff, which is regularly refreshed.




	 
	 
	23.7 Public Sector Equality Duty

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0 cm

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0 cm, Tab stops: Not at 2

cm

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.62 cm, Hanging: 1.38 cm

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Not

Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 11 pt, Not Italic, Not

Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 2 cm, No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Hanging: 1.01 cm

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: Not Italic
	 
	The Council must have regard to its public sector equality duty under the 2010 Act. In summary a

Public Authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to:


	 eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other conduct that is prohibited by or

under this Act.


	 eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other conduct that is prohibited by or

under this Act.


	 eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other conduct that is prohibited by or

under this Act.



	 advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic

and persons who do not share it.


	 advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic

and persons who do not share it.



	 foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons

who do not share it.


	 foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons

who do not share it.




	 
	 
	 
	242. CONTACT DETAILS


	 
	The COVID-19 pandemic demonstrated the need for good contact details, particularly digital ones of licence

holders. We held a seminar for the licensed trade and through this we found that many contact details,

particularly email addresses were either incorrect or those of the solicitors who dealt with the original

application at the time. This can cause issue for licence holders when we notify them of their annual fee with

letters sometimes going to solicitors rather than a licence holder.


	 
	As such, we expect applicants to include the correct correspondence address for the proposed licence

holder in their application, and to include an email address. We also expect licence holders to keep this

Licensing Authority up to date should either their address, telephone number or email address change.


	 
	This will ensure that if needed the Licensing Authority can contact licence holders promptly and it will help to

avoid unnecessary suspensions of licences where a reminder letter was not received by a licence holder.


	 
	25. FURTHER INFORMATION


	 
	252.1Contact details of the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities are available from

www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing


	 
	252.2Further information and guidance on the Act can be viewed on the Authority’s website at


	252.2Further information and guidance on the Act can be viewed on the Authority’s website at


	www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing
	www.northdevon.gov.uk/licensing

	. Application forms can be downloaded from the site or

electronic applications submitted online.



	 
	252.3Further information on alcohol and entertainment licensing is available on the Home Office

website at www.gov.uk


	Formatted: Left

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic
	APPENDIX A – GLOSSARY OF TERMS


	 
	 
	Alcohol, authorised sale of


	- it is a mandatory condition of a Premises Licence that every supply of alcohol must be made or authorised by a

person who holds a Personal Licence.


	 
	Alcohol, retail sale of


	defined by the Act (s.192) as any sale of alcohol other than to:


	 
	- a trader for the purposes of his trade


	- a club which holds a Club premises certificate for the purposes of the Club


	- the holder of a Personal Licence for the purpose of making sales authorised by a Premises Licence


	- the holder of a Premises licence for the purpose of making sales authorised by that licence, or


	to the premises user in relation to a Temporary Event Notice for the purpose of making sales


	authorised by that Notice.


	and which is made for consumption off the premises.


	Appeal


	- the Act provides for right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against a decision of the Licensing Authority.

Appeals must be brought within 21 days of notification of the Authority’s decision.


	 
	Authorised Person


	- an officer of the Licensing Authority who has been authorised by the Authority – generally for the purposes of

inspection and/or enforcement – under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003;


	- an inspector appointed under s.18 of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974;


	- an office of the local authority exercising a statutory function in relation to pollution control or harm to human

health;


	- in relation to a vessel, an inspector or surveyor of ships appointed under s.256 of the Merchant Shipping Act

1995;


	- a person prescribed under s.13 (2) of the Act.


	 
	British Board of Film Classification


	- the body responsible for determining the age rating of films screened in the UK. Current ratings are:


	U – generally suitable for audiences over 4 years of age


	PG – suitable for general viewing but some scenes may be unsuitable for young children


	12A – suitable for children aged 12 years and over


	18 - suitable only for adults


	 
	Club Premises Certificate


	- A certificate authorising the use of premises by a qualifying club for one or more club activities.


	 
	Designated Premises Supervisor


	- The individual specified in the premises licence as the premises supervisor. - in relation to premises selling

alcohol, the person (who must hold a Personal Licence, who will normally have been given the day to day

responsibility for running the premises by the holder of the Premises Licence or will be the Premises Licence

holder himself.


	 
	Hearing


	- a meeting of a Licensing sub-Committee – generally held in public - to determine an application for a Premises

Licence where relevant representations have been received from a Responsible Authority or an interested party.

The hearing will be held before a licensing ‘panel’ comprising three members of the Licensing Committee who will

hear evidence from the applicant and from the objectors.


	 
	Hot Food or Hot Drink


	- food or drink supplied on or from any premises is “hot” for the purposes of Schedule 2 to the Act if the food or

drink, or any part of it:


	(i) before it is supplied, is heated on the premises or elsewhere for the purpose of enabling it to be consumed at a

temperature above the ambient air temperature and, at the time of supply, is above that temperature, or


	(ii) after it is supplied, may be heated on the premises for the purpose of enabling it to be consumed at a

temperature above the ambient air temperature.
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Late Night Refreshment


	- the provision, between 11 pm and 5 am, of hot food or hot drink, to members of the public or a section of the

public on or from any premises, whether for consumption on or off the premises between 11 pm and 5 am, or-at

any time between those hours when members of the public, or a section of the public, are admitted to any

premises, a person supplies, or holds himself willing to supply, hot food or hot drink to any persons, or to persons

of a particular description, on or from those premises, whether for consumption on or off the premises.


	 
	Licensing Committee


	- The committee established by the licensing authority to discharge the licensing functions of the authority.


	 
	Licensing Hours


	- The hours during which authorised licensable activities take place.


	 
	Licensing Qualification


	- A qualification accredited or certified by the Secretary of State.


	- A qualification accredited or certified by the Secretary of State.


	- A qualification accredited or certified by the Secretary of State.


	- A qualification accredited or certified by the Secretary of State.


	- A qualification accredited or certified by the Secretary of State.






	 
	Operating Schedule


	- a document containing a statement including the following matters:


	 
	 the relevant licensable activities


	 the relevant licensable activities


	 the relevant licensable activities



	 the times at which the licensable activities are to take place and any other times when premises are open to

the public


	 the times at which the licensable activities are to take place and any other times when premises are open to

the public



	 information regarding the person who will be specified in the Premises Licence as the Premises Supervisor


	 information regarding the person who will be specified in the Premises Licence as the Premises Supervisor



	 where the licensable activities involve the supply of alcohol, whether it is for the supply on and/or off the

premises


	 where the licensable activities involve the supply of alcohol, whether it is for the supply on and/or off the

premises



	 the steps being taken to promote the licensing objectives.


	 the steps being taken to promote the licensing objectives.




	 
	Personal Licence


	- A licence which authorises an individual to supply or authorise the supply of alcohol in accordance with a

premises licence..


	 
	Premises Licence


	- A licence authorising premises to be used for one or more licensable activities.


	 
	Qualifying Club


	- in order to be a ‘qualifying club’ for the purposes of the Act, a club must meet the following criteria:


	 
	 a person must not be admitted to membership or enjoy the privileges of membership without a period of at

least 48 hours between their application for membership and their admission,


	 a person must not be admitted to membership or enjoy the privileges of membership without a period of at

least 48 hours between their application for membership and their admission,


	 a person must not be admitted to membership or enjoy the privileges of membership without a period of at

least 48 hours between their application for membership and their admission,



	 the club must be established in good faith as club, and


	 the club must be established in good faith as club, and



	 the club must have at least 25 members.


	 the club must have at least 25 members.




	 
	(NB. A proprietary club (i.e. a commercial club which is established and operated for profit) cannot be regarded

as a ‘qualifying club’ for the purposes of the Licensing Act 2003).


	 
	Relevant Persons


	- References to relevant persons in relation to any premises are references to the following:


	 the Chief Officer of Police for any police area in which the premises are situated,


	 the Chief Officer of Police for any police area in which the premises are situated,


	 the Chief Officer of Police for any police area in which the premises are situated,



	 the local authority by which statutory functions are exercisable in any area in which the premises are situated

in relation to minimising or preventing the risk of pollution of the environment or of harm to human health (i.e.

the Council’s Environmental Protection and Health and Safety Teams).


	 the local authority by which statutory functions are exercisable in any area in which the premises are situated

in relation to minimising or preventing the risk of pollution of the environment or of harm to human health (i.e.

the Council’s Environmental Protection and Health and Safety Teams).




	 
	Responsible Authorities


	- the public bodies that must be fully notified of applications and that are entitled to make relevant representations

to the licensing authority in relation to the grant, variation, minor variation or review of a premises licence. (See

Appendix C)


	 
	Temporary Event Notice


	- a Notice authorising a permitted temporary activity involving one or more licensable activities subject to certain

conditions and limitations.
	 
	Zoning


	- The adoption of fixed terminal hours in designated areas. 
	 



	Appendix B List of responses with comments


